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PREAMBLE

Armidale Regional Council was proclaimed on 12 May 2016 following the amalgamation of
Armidale Dumaresq Council and Guyra Shire Council. Prior to the merger both councils
shared internal audit services.

The Audit & Risk Committee was initially established to manage internal control,
governance, risk management and external accounting responsibilities of Armidale Regional
Council (the Council).

The Local Government Amendment (Governance and Planning) Act 2016 No 38 (“the
Amending Act”) received assent on 30 August 2016. Some parts of the Amending Act have
not commenced. When Part 4A (s428A(2)) of the Act commences the Committee will be
under a statutory obligation to keep under review the following aspects of the Council's

operations:
a) Compliance
b) Risk management
c) Fraud control
d) Financial management
e) Governance
f) Implementation of the strategic plan, delivery program and strategies
q) Service reviews
h) Collection of performance measurement data by the Council, and
i) any other matters prescribed by the regulations

This Charter establishes the Audit, Risk & Improvement Committee (“ARIC", “the
Committee”) authority and responsibilities, conferred on the Committee by Council and
explains the role of the Committee within the Council.

1. OBJECTIVE

The objective of the Committee is to provide independent assurance and assistance to the
Council on risk management, internal control, governance, internal audits, organisational
performance and external accountability responsibilities.

Specifically, the Committee will assist the Council to:

. Promote a culture of corporate gowvernance and compliance with Council's
statutory, regulatory and policy framework;

. Examine the effectiveness of Council's internal control framework to include
business processes and systems;

. Review the effectiveness of the Council's enterprise risk management
processes;

. Examine the effectiveness of audit processes;
Review external financial statements reporting processes; and
Provide information to the Council for the purpose of improving the performance
of Council's functions.

2. DELEGATED AUTHORITY

The Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee has been established under the delegated
authority of Council in accordance with Council's authority granted by section 355 of the Act.

el
Regional Council
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The Committee is advisory in its function and has no authority to direct the General
Manager or Council officers. The Committee has no executive powers, except those
expressly provided by the Council. In carrying out its responsibilities, the Committee must
at all times recognise that primary responsibility for management of Council rests with the
Council and the General Manager as defined by the Act.

The Council authorises the Committee as a whole (but not individual members of the
Committee), within the scope of its role and responsibilities, to:
. Obtain any information it needs from any employee or external party (subject to
their legal obligations to protect information);
. Discuss any matters with the Auditor General, external auditor, and/or other
external parties (subject to confidentiality considerations);
. Request the attendance of any employee or Councillor at Committee meetings;
. Obtain external legal or other professional advice considered necessary to meet
its responsibilities; and
. Provide advice and seek the agreement of the General Manager concerning
audit investigations into matters under their control.

The Committee can request that the General Manager provide information, such as policies,
procedures and reports to assist them in fulfilling their objectives.

3. COMPOSITION AND TENURE

The Committee is to be appointed by the governing body of the Council.
3.1 Members (Voting)

The Committee shall consist of three (3) independent external members who are
prequalified via the NSW Government's Prequalification Scheme: Audit and Risk Committee
Independent Chairs and Members. Changes to the Committee composition and tenure will
be by approval of the Council.

Councillors are ineligible to sit on the Committee.

Independent members must be selected from the panel of prequalified audit and risk
committee independent chairs and members administered by the NSW Government.

Independent external members are appointed by the Council for either a three or five year
term and may be reappointed, to a maximum of eight (8) consecutive years appointment.
The initial term of membership of a Committee member on any one ARIC Committee will be
three to five-years to ensure that the committee maintains a fresh approach. Members can
be reappointed or extended for a further term or terms but the total period of continuous
membership on any one committee will not be able to exceed eight years. This includes any
term as Chair of the committee. Individuals who have served an eight-year term (either as a
member or Chair) must have a three-year break from serving on the committee before being
appointed again.

3.2 Attendees (non-voting)

. The General Manager, or delegate
. Internal Auditor
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will attend all ARIC meetings (except where excluded by the Committee) however are not
members of the Committee and do not have voting rights.

Council's external auditor may attend any meeting as an independent advisor, and may
meet with the Committee without the presence of the General Manager.

The NSW Auditor-General, as Council’s external auditor, or their representative, is to be
invited to each Committee meeting as an independent non-voting observer and can choose
whether to attend. The Committee can also exclude the external auditor if needed.

The General Manager may be excluded from a meeting, only while the Committee deals
with a matter relating to the standard of performance of the General Manager, or the
terms of the employment of the General Manager.

It is recommended that pursuant to the Local Government Act, the General Manager
should allow the Committee to meet separately with the internal and external auditor,
without the presence of management, on at least one occasion per year.

3.3 Chair of the Committee

The Chair must be prequalified as a Chair in accordance with the requirements to meet the
NSW Government’s prequalified audit and risk committee independent chairs qualification.

The governing body can appoint the Chair for one term only for a period of three to five-
years. The Chair's term can be extended but any extension must not cause the total term of
the Chair to exceed five years.

3.4 Independent member appointment process and member skills

Council is required to ensure that the committee as a collective body has the appropriate mix
of skills, knowledge and experience to successfully implement its terms of reference and add
value to the council.

At least one member of the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee should have accounting
or financial management experience with an understanding of accounting and auditing
standards in a local government context.

Each individual should also have sufficient time to devote to their responsibilities as an ARIC
Committee member.

Independent members shall be requested to nominate their services through a public
invitation process. Appointment will be made by Council resolution, taking into account the
appropriate experience and qualifications of the nominees. There are no specific residency
requirements for independent members, who can be considered and appointed regardless of
where they reside.

The independent external members will be eligible for extension or re-appointment following
a formal review of their performance at the end of each term of appointment.

Members of the Committees must not act in a way that contravenes the Act (which includes
compliance with Council's adopted Code of Conduct and Code of Meeting Practice) or any
other Act. Members of the Committee are also required to comply with other relevant policies
and procedures of Council.
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3.5 Dismissal of committee members and the Chair

The governing body of council may terminate the engagement of the Chair or a
member of the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee where the Chair or member

has:

. breached the conditions of the prequalification scheme

. breached the council's Code of Conduct

. performed unsatisfactorily, or

. declared, or is found to be in, a position of a conflict of interest which is

unresolvable.

4. ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The ARIC Committee is to provide an advisory and assurance role only, and is to have no
administrative function, delegated financial responsibility or any management functions.

In carrying out its responsibilities, the Committee must at all times recognise that primary
responsibility for financial and other reporting, for internal controls, for compliance with
laws, for ethical behaviour, for the management of Council, for risk management and for
organisational improvements, rests with the elected Council and the General Manager in
accordance with the Act.

The responsibilities of the Committee may be revised or expanded by the Council from time
to time. The Committee’s responsibilities are, however, not necessarily limited to:

Audit

Issue (s 428A) Committee role and responsibilities

Internal audit Advisory:

s providing overall strategic and executive direction for internal audit activities

» advising the general manager and governing body of the council of the
resources necessary to successfully deliver the internal audit function

e assessing the adequacy and effectiveness of council’s internal audit activities

= acting as a forum for communication between the governing body, general
manager, senior management, the internal audit function and external audit

e overseeing the coordination of audit programs conducted by internal and
external audit and other review functions, and

e ensuring the council achieves maximum value from its internal audit activities,

Review:

= the appropriateness of council’s Internal Audit Charter, internal audit
policies and procedures
s audit/risk methodologies used

s the findings/recommendations of internal audit activities, particularly recommendations
that have been assessed as the most significant according to the risk to the council if
they are not implemented

= the effectiveness of corrective actions implemented
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* compliance with statutory requirements

* the performance of the Internal Auditor and the internal audit function as part of
the council’s internal audit quality improvement program

= the findings of any external reviews of the internal audit function

Endorsement of:

= the council's Internal Audit Charter, internal audit strategic four-year plan and
annual work plan, and

* the appointment and remuneration of the [nternal Auditor
External audit
Advisary:

e acting as a forum for communication on external audit issues, and

e advising on the findings of external audits and monitoring the implementation
by the council of any recommendations for corrective action.

Risk
Issue (s 428A) Committee’s role and responsibilities
Risk Advisory — advising whether:
management e the council has provided sufficient resources for risk management and staff are able

to carry out their risk management responsibilities
= the council’s risk management framework complies with current Australian
risk management standards
s the council’s risk management framework operates effectively and supports
the achievement of council's strategic goals and objectives
*  management has embedded a positive risk management culture
* risk management is fully integrated into all aspects of the council, including
decision-making processes and operations
& risks are formally considered when developing and implementing all council
policies, programs, projects and other activities, including procurement
= major risks have been identified and assessed by the council and appropriate
risk treatments have been implemented that reflect council's risk criteria
= risk information is captured and communicated in a timely manner across the
council, enabling management and staff to carry out their responsibilities
» there are council-specific, fit-for-purpose tools, systems and processes to help all
those responsible for managing risk to fulfil their responsibilities, and
* the council's risk management policies, procedures and plans are being complied with.

Review the appropriateness and effectiveness of the council's:

e risk criteria

s internal control framework

s risk register and risk profile

*  risk reports

*  risk management framework in relation to its insurance arrangements, and

*  business continuity plans and natural disaster plans (including periodic testing).

Endorsement of:
» the council’s risk management policy, risk management plan and risk criteria prior
to their approval by the gqovernina body of the council, and
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= the council’s risk profile and risk register/s prior to their approval by the
general manager.

Control Providing independent assurance on the following internal controls implemented by the
framework council to manage specific categories of risk:
The council's compliance framework - advising whether:

= management has embedded a culture which is committed to lawful and
ethical behaviour

» the council has in place necessary palicies and procedures and that these are periodically
reviewed and updated

» the council is complying with all necessary legislation, regulations, policies
and procedures

» management has appropriately considered all legal and compliance risks as part of
the council’s risk assessment and management arrangements

» delegations are properly managed and exercised, and

» the council’s system for monitoring compliance is effective

Issue (s 428A) Committee’s role and responsibilities

The council's fraud and corruption framework - advising whether the:

. council's fraud and corruption prevention plan and activities are adequate and
effective, and

. council has appropriate processes and systems in place to capture and
effectively investigate fraud-related information

The council's financial management and external accountability framework — including:

s advising whether the council's financial management processes are adequate

. assessing the policies and procedures for council management's review and
consideration of the council's current and future financial position and performance
and the nature of that review (including the approach taken to addressing variances
and budget risks)

=  advising on the adequacy of early close and year-end review procedures, and
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e reviewing council’s financial statements, including:
O providing input and feedback on council’s financial statements
O advising whether council is meeting its external accountability requirements

O advising whether appropriate action has been taken in response to
audit recommendations and adjustments

O satisfying itself that the financial statements are supported by
appropriate management signoff

O reviewing the ‘Statement by Councillors and Management' (made pursuant
10 s 413(2)i(c) of the Local Government Act)

O reviewing the processes in place designed to ensure that financial
information included in the council's annual report is consistent with the
signed financial statements

O reviewing cash management policies and procedures

O reviewing policies and procedures for the collection, management and
disbursement of grants and tied funding, and

O satisfying itself that the council has a performance management framework that
is linked to organisational objectives and outcomes.

The council's governance framework — including:

e  advising on the adequacy and robustness of the processes and systems that the
council has put in place to govern day-to-day activities and decision-making, and

*  reviewing whether controls over external parties such as contractors and advisors
are sound and effective.

Improvement

Issue (s 428A) Committee's role and responsibilities

Strategic [ advising whether the council is achieving the objectives and goals it set out
planning in its community strategic plan and has successfully implemented its

delivery program, operational plan and other strategies

advising how the council is delivering local services and how it could improve its
service delivery performance

Service delivery

Performance 7 assessing the adequacy of the performance indicators and data the council
data and uses to measure its performance
measurement

Members of the Committee are expected to:
. understand the relevant legislative and regulatory requirements appropriate to
the Council

. contribute the time needed to study and understand the papers provided
apply good analytical skills, objectivity and good judgment; and
express opinions frankly, ask questions that go to the fundamental core of
issues, and pursue independent lines of enquiry.
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Members of the Committee will, at all times in the discharge of their duties and
responsibilities, adhere to Council's Code of Conduct, exercise honesty, objectivity and
probity and not engage knowingly in acts or activities that have the potential to damage the
reputation of the Councils.

Members must also refrain from entering into any activity that may prejudice their ability to
carry out their duties and responsibilities objectively and must at all times act in a proper and
prudent manner in the use of information acquired in the course of their duties. Members
must not use Council information for any personal gain for themselves or their immediate
families or any manner that would be contrary to law or detrimental to the welfare of the
Councils.

Committee members must keep all information relating to Council confidential.

5. REPORTING

A report will be prepared by the Committee on an annual basis on the past financial year
activities and presented to Council.

6. ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS

6.1 Meetings

The Committee will meet at least quarterly. The need for any additional meetings will be
decided by the Chair of the Committee, though other Committee members may make
requests to the Chair for additional meetings. An additional meeting may be convened to
review Council’s financial statements.

A forward meeting plan, including meeting dates and agenda items, will be agreed by the
Committee each year. The forward meeting plan will cover all Committee responsibilities as
detailed in this Charter.

The Chair of the Committee has responsibility to set the Committee meeting agenda.
Meeting agendas will be prepared and provided in advance to members, along with
appropriate briefing materials not less than seven (7) days prior to the meeting. Agenda
items can be referred to the Chair of the Committee by:

Council

General Manager

Other Committee members
Internal Auditor; and
External Auditor.

Meetings are to be conducted in accordance with, and Members bound by, Council's Code
of Meeting Practice.

6.2 Agenda & Minutes

The agenda for each Committee meeting is to be prepared and circulated at least one week
before the meeting. It is to include as standing items internal audit, external audit, risk
management, compliance, fraud and corruption, financial management, governance,
strategic planning, service delivery and performance measurement.
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Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee meeting minutes are to:

include a record of attendance

include items of business considered, decisions and actions arising

be approved by the Chair before circulation

be provided to the governing body to enable Councillors to keep abreast of

assurance issues throughout the year, as well as the general manager, Internal

Auditor and external auditor,;

. be provided within two weeks of the meeting date to ensure relevant individuals
are made aware of any significant issues discussed at the meeting that need to
be dealt with; and

. be treated as confidential unless otherwise specified by the committee - public

access should be controlled to maintain confidentiality in accordance with council

policy.

6.3 Attendance at Meetings and Quorums

A quorum will consist of two (2) Committee members. Meetings can be held in person, by
telephone or by video conference. Meetings are not open to the public.

Internal Audit will be invited to attend each meeting unless requested not to do so by the
Chair of the Committee. The Committee may also request the General Manager or any other
employees to participate for certain agenda items, as well as the external auditor.

In addition to Committee members, the General Manager and the Internal Auditor are to
attend committee meetings as non-voting observers, except where they are excluded by
the committee.

The Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee will be able to request to meet with any of the
following non-voting individuals whenever necessary in order to seek additional information
or explanations:

. privately with the Internal Auditor and/or external auditor without the general
manager present (this is to occur at least annually)

. council's Manager Finance (or equivalent) given their knowledge of, and
responsibility for, council’s financial management

. any councillor (the Chair of the Committee only)
any employee or contractor of the council, and/or
any external independent expert or external party whose advice is needed
(subject to confidentiality considerations).

These individuals must comply with the Committee's request.

The Committee can also request any written reports or other risk management reports from
Council's senior management, or other related information as necessary, to enable it to fulfil
its assurance role in relation to Council’s risk management framework. The Committee can
also request senior managers to present at Committee meetings to discuss their activities
and risks.,

The committee will be able to hold closed ('in-camera’) meetings whenever it needs to
discuss confidential or sensitive issues with only Committee members present.
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The Committee can obtain such external legal or other professional or subject matter
expert advice, as considered necessary to meet its responsibilities. The service provider
and payment of costs for that advice by the council is subject to the prior approval of the
governing body of the council.

6.4 Secretariat & Access to Staff, Resources and Information

The Committee has appointed the Council's Governance Officer or their delegate to be
responsible for providing the Committee with adequate secretariat support. The Secretariat
will ensure the agenda for each meeting and supporting papers are circulated, and ensure
minutes of the meetings are prepared, and maintained. Minutes shall be approved by the
Chair and circulated to each member within two (2) weeks of the meeting being held.

The Committee is to have direct and unrestricted access to Council's General Manager,
senior management and staff and contractors of the Council as required in order to
perform its role.

The Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee is also to have direct and unrestricted
access to such Council resources and information it needs to perform its role.

The Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee may only release Council information to
external parties with the approval of the General Manager. The General Manager's
approval is not required where the information is being provided to an external
investigative, audit or oversight agency such as, but not limited to, the Office of Local
Government, the NSW Audit Office, the Independent Commission Against Corruption or
the NSW Ombudsman for the purpose of informing that agency of a matter that may
warrant its attention.

6.5 Conflict of Interests, Pecuniary Interests, and Code of Conduct

Under s440 of the Local Government Act, ARIC Committee members agree to comply with,
and be bound by Council's Code of Conduct. Complaints or breaches of Council’'s Code of
Conduct will be dealt with in accordance with the Procedures for the Administration of the
Model Code of Conduct for Local Councils in NSW. Committee members should also be
deemed to be a 'designated person’ and required to complete and submit returns of
interests.

As required under the Model Code of Conduct, Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee
members must declare any pecuniary or significant non-pecuniary conflicts of interest at the
start of each Committee meeting, before discussion of the relevant agenda item or issue, or
when the issue arises. Details of any conflicts of interest should also be appropriately
minuted.

Where Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee members or observers at Committee
meetings are deemed to have a real or perceived conflict of interest they are to remove
themselves from Committee deliberations on the issue.

Members will also be required to comply with the conduct requirements of the NSW
Government's panel of prequalified Audit and Risk Committee Independent Chairs and
Members.
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6.6 Induction

New members will receive relevant information and briefings on their appointment to assist
them to meet their Committee responsibilities.

6.7 Assessment Arrangements

As part of council's quality assurance and improvement program, the Committee is to
provide an annual assurance report to the governing body which provides:

. a summary of the work the committee performed to discharge its responsibilities
during the preceding year;
advice on the appropriateness of the Committee's Charter;
an overall assessment of the following aspects of council's operations in
accordance with section 428A of the Local Government Act:

compliance

risk management

fraud control

financial management

governance

implementation of the strategic plan, delivery program and strategies

service reviews

collection of performance measurement data by the council, and

any other matters prescribed by the regulation (i.e. internal audit), and

any other information to help the council improve the performance of its

functions.

0o ©CO0O00CO0OO0O0O0

At least once each council term (i.e. four years), an external strategic review of the
effectiveness of the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee is to be conducted to assess
how the committee is functioning. This will provide accountability and ensure that the
governing body of the council can assess how the committee’s performance and whether
any changes to the committee’s terms of reference or membership are required.

The strategic external review is to consider:

. whether the Committee has fulfilled its terms of reference;

. the appropriateness of the Committee's terms of reference (where the
Committee’s terms of reference contain additional provisions to those contained
in the Model Terms of Reference),

. the performance of Committee members and whether any change of
membership is required;

. the way the Committee, external auditor, council and internal audit function work
together to manage risk and support the council and how effective this is; and

. whether the work of the Committee has contributed to the improvement of the
factors identified in section 428A of the Local Government Act.

The external review is to address the collective performance of the Audit, Risk and
Improvement Committee, as well as the individual performance of each member and the
Chair. In considering the outcomes of the external strategic review, the review is to consider
feedback on each member's performance by the Chair of the Committee, mayor and general
manager. The governing body of council will be able to request the Chair of the committee to
address the council and answer any questions about the operation of the committee.
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TRIM: ARC20/4108

6.8 REVIEW

As part of Council’'s quality assurance and improvement program, where the Audit, Risk and
Improvement Committee’s Terms of Reference include additional provisions, they are to be
reviewed annually by the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee, and once each council
term (i.e. four years) by an external party.
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INTEGRATED PLANNING AND REPORTING
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Attachment 1 Integrated Planning and Reporting (IP&R) - Operational Plan - 2020-2021 - Quarterly Report - Q1 - July
to September 2020

ARMIDALE

Regional Council

Integrated Planning and Reporting
Operational Plan Action Measures and Progress
Quarterly Report, July - September 2020

Plan for the needs of the region

Airport Business Park - Construction, Sale and Opening

- 100% of contracted works completed August 2020

- Certificates and approvals completed for sold lots November 2020
ogres Business Park complete. Opening ceremony took place on 8th October.

In Progress
75%
On track
Below Budget
Measure Compliance with agreements
Progress On target - Tender closing on 12 November for engaging construction engineer.
In Progress
0%
On track
On Budget
Measure Screening operational by December 2020
Progress Security Screening equipment arriving in Armidale by the end of October 2020.
In Progress
75%
On track
On Budget

Complete the design and begin construction on a commercially viable hydrotherapy pool and regional
Measure * Final option agreed by Q1

* Design developed by Q2

* Construction commenced by Q4

JP Progres: Building Better Regions Fund - 4 Grant contract deferred until April 2021, subject to due diligence on business case
and capacity to deliver being conducted by consultants.

In Progress

0%

Needs attention
On Budget

Expansion of Rail Trail Business Case

Complete the expansion of the Business Case by Q4

rogres On track. Progress report to be submitted to Council before the end of the year.
In Progress
50%
On track
Not applicable
Page 2 of 12
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Integrated Planning and Reporting (IP&R) - Operational Plan - 2020-2021 - Quarterly Report - Q1 - July
to September 2020

Kempsey Road Big Hill Project - Improvements to Heavy Vehicle Access
¢ Stage 1 and Stage 2 of Tranche 1 works completed
* Compliance with funding deed

The project is on hold from January 2020 due to natural disaster event and progression of the project is not feasible
Deferred
0%
Critical
Not applicable

Upgrade of infrastructure and facilities at the Guyra Community Hub building

Completed within budget, by December 2020.
Project on target. There is an $11,000 shortfall in budget allocation.

In Progress
75%
On track

On Budget

Partner with local livestock and horticultural industries to ensure the ongoing growth and sustainability of the sectors

Completed assessment and design. Implementation of a staged tender process to expedite the re-construction of the
road. Medium-term works significantly initiated by Q4

Ongoing assessment of post disaster conditions. ARC continue to work with Transport for NSW on scope of works and

implementation of strategy.

In Progress

0%

Critical

Mot applicable

Develop a Tourism Strategy and branding to: * attract visitors to stay in the Armidale Region longer, and
* enhance the economic and cultural offerings and attractions of the region.

Armidale Region Online Presence
* Create online platform

* Increase visitation to website by 5%
* Increase number page views by 6% per session
* [ncrease time on site by 7%

Website brief not yet commenced. Once completed, a tender process can commence to award contract for the
Not Commenced
0%
Needs attention
On Budget
Completion of project by Q1
The Stronger Country Communities Funding grant has seen the successful completion of the following: The
establishment of an approved Primitive Campground Area; vandal resistant amenities consisting of stainless steel
Completed
100%
Not applicable
On Budget

Page 3 of 12
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Integrated Planning and Reporting (IP&R) - Operational Plan - 2020-2021 - Quarterly Report - Q1 - July
to September 2020

Provide Central Business District (CBD) infrastructure that supports a more vibrant and varied offering of shopping

Complete Guyra Main Street Upgrade Stages 2 and 3, including public art and beautification

Works completed Q4

* Public Art - Community consultation will be released with two concept options for selection and inputs.

* Landscaping - Internal crew are currently pricing and preparing program for landscaping installation in several areas
between Ollera and Nincoola Streets.

In Progress
25%

On track
On Budget

Support businesses across the region with resources and events.
Economic Recovery Initiatives
All initiatives completed by Q3
Much of the 'facilitation’ initiatives have been achieved. 'Stimulus', 'Development’ and 'Foundational’ Initiatives are
In Progress
25%
Needs attention
On Budget

Encourage new business investment in the Armidale Region
All planned 20/21 initiatives delivered by June 2021
Building has been brought up to meet current standards and refurbished, including redecorate and new lighting, new
In Progress
50%
Needs attention
On Budget
P1.3
Partner with local police and other community and government agencies to develop strategies to reduce crime,
Upgrade CBD CCTV Cameras, Security and Lighting on the Creeklands path
Plan completed by Q4
* CCTV upgrade - 5 new digital CCTV cameras installed = completed August 2020.
 Solar Lighting at the cycleway - 49 solar lights installed — completed September 2020.
Completed
100%
On track
Below Budget

Deliver and support local programs and events which meet the social and cultural needs of the community

Deliver and support community events and sponsorship

Calendar created by Q2.
Events supported and delivered according to schedule (pending COVID19 restrictions)

Awaiting appointment of Recovery Officer.
Not Commenced
0%
Needs attention
On Budget

Page 4 of 12
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to September 2020

P2.2
Support increased community participation in sports and recreation throughout the region
Curtis Park Amenity and play Equipment Upgrades
Complete project in 2020 within allocated funding
The Playground practical completion has been reached on the 16 Oct 2020 as per contractual agreement.
Completed
100%
On track
Below Budget

Deliver an Arts and Cultural Program throughout the region with an emphasis on enriching the lives of our

Administer a Public Art Fund and Annual Arts and Cultural Program

Arts Fund developed by Q2.

All successful 20-21 grants distributed by Q4

This project was not started in Q1. The aim is to have the Public Arts Fund established in Q2 and promote and
Not Commenced
0%
On track
On Budget

Support and empower the community to deliver community initiatives that improve the lives of residents and visitors
Equipment delivered to all successful applicants by June 2021
Criteria and application process (application form, assessment, etc) are yet to be developed.
Not Commenced
0%
Needs attention
On Budget
P3.4
Develop strategies which promote inclusiveness of people from a culture and linguistically diverse (CALD) background

Provide a Volunteering Engagement and Mentoring Service

Increase the number of registered and trained volunteers.

Online system developed by Q2.
Review of alternative systems currently in progress.
In Progress
25%
On track
On Budget
4.1
Support the delivery of high quality early childhood and out-of-school services in the Guyra region

‘

Implement Stage 1 of the Guyra Early Childhood Learning Centre upgrade
* Building Design finalised

* DA submitted

* Construction Certificate and contract completed

* Tenders drafted, released and awarded by Q2

* Demolition, civil works completed by Q2

* Building construction commenced Q3
A Development Application has been submitted, and a recommendation to go to October Council meeting to engage
In Progress
0%
Critical
Over Budget
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Integrated Planning and Reporting (IP&R) - Operational Plan - 2020-2021 - Quarterly Report - Q1 - July
to September 2020

Provide Aboriginal services and programs
Distribute financial assistance to all successful applicants within funding timelines
A review of community contributions is currently underway and will determine the process and timing of grant
In Progress
25%
Needs attention
On Budget
Develop and deliver an engagement strategy to ensure effective engagement with the community and provide
Undertake a Customer Services Realignment to improve customer engagement.
* Improved customer feedback
* Knowledge Base accessible by 30 September
¢ Hub and Realignment in place and 1st quarterly report completed August 2020
* 85% of current customer service and administration processes mapped by September 2021
* 50% of future state processes mapped by September 2020
¢+ |[ncreased efficiency gains and savings realised by September 2020
* Reduction of costs to outside contractors
s Improved online and face-to-face contact channels
The Administration Hub was placed on hold by the Administrator {Ordinary Council Council Meeting 22 July),
therefore the project has been modified.
Original measures:
* Improved customer feedback tracking has been implemented with complaints register weekly tracking and TRIM
notifications to CS Manager
* The 85% of current processes have been mapped.
* Reduction of costs to outside contractors {Well Done) external call centre has been achieved.
* Content review has commenced with Exempt Planning
Additional Measures
* CS Evaluation report & presentation - complete
* Training Needs - near complete

In Progress
25%
Critical
Below Budget
Financial sustainability is maintained through effective short, medium, and long term financial management,
* Determine SRV options for the purpose of public consultation in Q1
* Run public consultation process an SRV options in Q1
* Determine final SRV position to make application by Q2
Financial modelling is being undertaken and will include an update of the asset management plans. A report to
In Progress
25%
On track
On Budget

Page 6 of 12

Attachment 1

Page 24



Attachment 1

Integrated Planning and Reporting (IP&R) - Operational Plan - 2020-2021 - Quarterly Report - Q1 - July
to September 2020

Develop and implement workforce plans and strategies which commit to building a skilled, motivated, inclusive
and diverse workforce
» Software systems upgraded - additional module for capturing employee data for competence tracking of training
and upskilling requirements.
* Training days per employee
Software upgrade on hold due to budget review. Councils career website has been improved and updated on a
In Progress
50%
Needs attention
Below Budget
Council utilises appropriate data management systems to support service delivery and effective decision
making

Create a Digital Services Strategy to inform technology-based decisions and systems
Strategy implemented by December 2020
This project is to be Deferred, Reassigned and led by IT {with consultation/collaboration from

Deferred
0%
Mot applicable
Mot applicable
Council's strategic planning documents are integrated in a way which delivers community outcomes while
effectively managing budgets, asset management and workforce planning

Develop the Armidale Masterplan 2040

Armidale Masterplan 2014 adopted by Council by Q1

Draft LSPS adopted by Q2
Project under review.
At the Ordinary Council Meeting on 19 August 2020, Council resolved (187/20): a) That Council endorse the draft
Local Strategic Planning Statement for public exhibition, for a minimum of 28 days, commencing 31 August 2020; b)
Deferred
0%
Needs attention
Not applicable
El.1
Maintain and improve local waterways, lagoons and creek lands in partnership with community groups and other
Decreased quantity of sediments entering waterways
Design completed, project manager selected and project underway.
In Progress
0%
On track
On Budget
1.2
Partner with stakeholders to develop strategies and provide programs which improve air quality across the region,
Implement Air Quality Priority Actions as detailed in the EcoARC strategy

‘

* Air Quality Awareness Survey - 50% of residents aware of availability of air quality data
* Achieve a return rate of 1000 people
Project requirements under review

Not Commenced
0%

Needs attention
Not applicable
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Integrated Planning and Reporting (IP&R) - Operational Plan - 2020-2021 - Quarterly Report - Q1 - July
to September 2020

Work with local emergency management agencies and committees to plan for the management of natural disasters
Emergency communication upgrades
* Funding distributed to Guyra SES by August 2020.
* All units purchased and fitted by June 2021.
Satellite Phone on order. Quotes received for UHF system.
In Progress
50%
On track
Below Budget
* Business Continuity Plan completed by Q4
* Temporary role filled and operational in Q1
At the Ordinary Council Meeting on 23 September, it was resolved to reallocate Federal Bushfire Funding including to
replace funding for the Business Continuity Plan and Drought and Resilience Officer with other community projects.
Not Commenced
0%
Needs attention
Not applicable
E
Protect and enhance the natural environment to promote and support biodiversity
mprove environmental monitoring at Guyra Transfer Station
* Bores installed by April2021
* Data published on website quarterly.
A proposal for the installation of two boreholes is being prepared by Council's consultants.

=
B

Not Commenced
0%

On track

On Budget

Installation of Koala Drinkers to support the Koala population
All drinkers installed by Q4
Project under review.
At the Ordinary Council meeting on 23 September 2020, Council resolved (239/20) that Council: a) Adopt the
amended allocation for the Federal Bushfire Funding Grant $1.3m as listed below; b) Note the allocation of the State
Not Commenced
0%
Needs attention
Not applicable

Tree recovery and renewal works
Funded projects completed and funding acquitted by Q4
Estimate completion date for the removal of dead trees is the end of October 2020.
In Progress
75%
On track
On Budget

Page 8 of 12

Attachment 1

Page 26



Attachment 1 Integrated Planning and Reporting (IP&R) - Operational Plan - 2020-2021 - Quarterly Report - Q1 - July
to September 2020
Promote or provide educational programs to increase community awareness of climate change risks and enable the
* Emissions measurement commenced by Q2
+ Committee active and meeting monthly
* 2,000 social media followers
Post Doctorate Dr. Kara Tighe has been appointed, she has begun her literature review and scoping the modelling for
the carbon account.
In Progress
25%
On track
Not applicable
Provide waste and recycling services, and environmentally responsible waste disposal facilities together with
Improved sorting facilities at Long Swamp Road Transfer Station
1 Completed by Q4
) Location and dimension of sorting slab determined.
In Progress
0%
On track
On Budget
e3 .|
Facilitate access to renewable energy for the local community and businesses
Implement Climate Emergency Action Plan
2020/2021 actions completed Q4
g CEWG representatives have been working with Council officers with a view to identify projects which available
In Progress
0%
Needs attention
Not applicable
E3.1
Partnerships with all levels of government to support the provision of essential infrastructure for the region
Replace Pint Pot Bridge in 2021
Replace Dumaresq Creek Bridge in 2021
+ Pint Pot bridge replacement -
- Design in progress
- Construction to start Oct 2020.
- Completion expected to Feb 2021.
* Dumaresq bridge replacement -
- Design in progress
- Construction to start Jan 2021.
- Completion expected to Apr 2021.
In Progress
25%
On track
On Budget
= Refurbishment of timber bridges to achieve no increase in number of load limited bridges.
Awaiting final confirmation of the Funding Agreement.
Not Commenced
0%
On track
Not applicable
Page 9 of 12
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Improved Heavy Vehicle Access to Castle Doyle Agribusinesses
Replace Shingle Hut Bridge on Castledoyle Road in 2021
Shingle Hut bridge replacement is under construction.
In Progress
50%
On track
On Budget

Malpas Pipeline Remediation
2020-2021 works completed by Q4
Work is progressing. Gabion walls around the piers at Site 1 have been installed. The project also includes bridge
structure for future access. Earthworks for bridge pier foundation has been prepared. Currently awaiting the supply
of galvanised rebar for strip footing.
In Progress
25%
On track
On Budget
E3.2
Supply water and waste water services to meet the community needs in Armidale and Guyra, as well as
Dumaresq Dam Wall Stabilisation
Phase 1 (60%) completed Q4

Revised Measure:
Phase 1 (design and tender) completed Q2 Phase 2 (construction) completed Q2 2021/2022
Tenders from selected contractors for the upgrading of the wall returned at the end of September. Currently being
In Progress
75%
On track
On Budget

Increase water storage capacity of Malpas Dam
* Study completed
* Detailed cost estimates completed
The project was put on hold pending the provision of a secure yield analysis for the Malpas Dam Catchment. This has
now been received and the consultant has resumed their evaluation.
In Progress
0%
Needs attention
On Budget
Puddledock Raw Water Main and Pump Station Replacement Program for future water security
50% of works completed Q4
- Pipeline is in design phase
- Technical memorandum received from the designer CARDNO with recommendations on pump site location and
pipe alignment based on hydraulic assessment.
- Proposed recommendations have been accepted by ARC.
- Project is now in full design stage.

In Progress
25%
On track
On Budget
Renewal of sewer mains

Measure * Study completed
» Detailed cost estimates completed

)P Prog! Sewer mains relining contract for this year is complete with 6.5km of main relined (5.6km in Armidale & 0.9km in
Completed
100%
Not applicable
Below Budget

Page 10 of 12
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Renewal of water mains

Proportion of network renewed is greater than 2% per annum
Water main replacements have not commenced to date as we are waiting on design plans.
In Progress
0%
Needs attention
Below Budget

Provide and maintain functional, appropriate, safe and desirable community facilities
20 new GPS units installed and activated
Units purchased and installed
Completed
100%
On track
On Budget
Improved Council building electrical safety
Building compliance
Project delivery not commenced. Program determined, Quotes received.
Not Commenced
0%
On track
On Budget
* Kerb and guttering replaced as per program of works
* Program completed by Q4
Works completed in S5t Andrews Avenue.
In Progress
50%
On track
On Budget
All projects shovel-ready by Q4
1. Airport runway expansion - final concept design being prepared, will be sent to Council for approval to seek
funding opportunities in Q2
3. CBD Precinct Masterplan - preliminary assessment of options being undertaken
4. Stage 2 Guyra Preschool - preliminary work has begun, waiting outcome of Stage 1 funding
In Progress
0%
On track
On Budget
Project completed Q2
1. Electrical design received Essential Energy certification on 15th October
2. Contractor has been engaged and the expected project completion at end of December
In Progress
25%
On track
On Budget
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JP Renewal of Community Facilities

Measure * Complete SRV project within the conditions and allocation
* Budgeted amount applied to prioritised facilities
rogres Projects have been identified and work orders allocated.
In Progress
50%
On track
On Budget
Regular review of open spaces to ensure parks, sportsgrounds, water recreation facilities and other open space meets
Measur Project completed Q1
gres Successfully delivered below budget. Community sports clubs extremely happy with result.
Completed
100%
Not applicable
Below Budget
Measure Project completed by end of Q2
P Progre Council is seeking quotations and work will begin later in the financial year.
Not Commenced
0%
On track
On Budget
E4.1
Maintain safe and effective traffic facilities on the road network
Measure Prioritised Gravel Resheeting Program completed by Q4
P Progres 12.74km of works completed to date. All priority 1 roads for 20-21 now completed. Priority 2 roads commenced.
In Progress
50%
On track

On Budget
Rockvale Road Upgrade - 1.5km from Guyra Road Intersection to improve safety and reduce vehicle

operator costs.
Measur Works completed by Q4
Eres Project pre-start-up meeting held on 19th October, ARC local serviced department is undertaking the full delivery of
In Progress
0%
Needs attention
Over Budget
E4.4
Develop a network of footpaths and cycle ways to encourage sustainable and active transport options
Measure 120m of all weather concrete footpath constructed by June 2021
gress * Construction to start Nov 2020.
* Completion expected to Dec 2020.
In Progress
25%
On track
On Budget
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Attachment 1 Draft Risk Management Policy

ADOPTED BY COUNCIL: [DATE TO BE COMPLETED BY GOVERNANCE]

1. PURPOSE

This document outlines a high-level approach to ensure decisions are made with an understanding of Council’s
risk environment and to facilitate the taking of risks and capitalising on opportunities, within council’s risk
appetite, to assist Council meet its strategic objectives.

2. APPLICATION

Risk management is a fundamental component of decision making in all Council activities. As such all
Councillors and Officers should be guided by this Policy and associated procedures when making any decisions,
and such decisions should consider the risks involved in taking those decisions and the impact of those decisions
on the achievement of Council's objectives.

3. POLICY INTENT

Council maintains a strong commitment to embedding effective risk management into all activities and as such
is a core responsibility of management. Management has the responsibility to evaluate the risk environment, to
put in place appropriate controls and to monitor the effectiveness of these controls, as well as communicate the
risk management framework, plan and procedures throughout Council.

The objectives of this policy are to facilitate Council striking a balance between risk management and
opportunity taking, whilst achieving the objectives set out in Council’s strategic plan by:

1. Ensuring Enterprise-Wide Risk Management is integrated into Council’s strategic and operational
planning processes in order to avoid, eliminate or minimise harm and/or loss.

2. Supporting and enabling effective delivery of equitable and appropriate services and facilities for the
community whilst creating an environment of innovation and business improvement

3. Implementing risk management practices that lead to a risk aware culture

3. Having regard to long-term and cumulative commitments by Council to environment, economic,
social and governance objectives aligned with its Integrated Planning and Reporting framework.

4. COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN OBIJECTIVES

Successful implementation of a risk management framework will enhance the delivery of all Community
Outcomes listed in the Armidale Regional Council Community Strategic Plan 2017 — 2027.

5. POLICY

Details of Policy — what is the actual policy? Most of the content should be in this section of the policy.

5.1 Council’s Risk Management Framework

Council identifies, assesses and manages risk at both an enterprise (‘top-down’) and a business (‘bottom-up’)
level. This process covers the full spectrum of risks including policy, strategic, financial and operational risks,
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including compliance. This Policy aims to achieve the proper identification and oversight of all the risks Council
faces. Council’s risk management approach will encompass the following key elements:

e Risk Management Policy

e Risk Appetite

e Risk Management Plan

e Risk Management Policies and Procedures

This framework is consistent with the accepted Australian Risk Management Standard (AS ISO 31000:2018 Risk
Management) and comprises several important steps:

e |dentifying and analysing the main risks facing the Council
e Evaluating those risks and making judgements about whether they are acceptable or not

e Implementing appropriately designed control systems to manage these risks in a way which is consistent
with Council’s risk appetite

e Treating risks by formulating responses following the identification of unacceptable risks, including
actions to reduce the probability or consequences of events and formulation of contingency plans

e Documenting these processes, with summary tables (risk registers) the main forms of documentation,
supplemented by risk manuals or related documents as appropriate

e Ongoing monitoring, communication and review

The approach aligns with and incorporates the principles of the ‘three lines of defence’ model, which is based on
a set of layered defences that align responsibility for risk taking with accountability for risk control.

Business Units of Council (the first line) own and manage risks and are responsible for implementing controls to
keep risks within the appetite of the organisation; the second line provides specialised risk and compliance
management services; and the third line, primarily via the Internal Audit function, provides assurance to senior
management on the effectiveness of governance, risk management and internal controls.

5.2 Risk Management Culture

Risk Management Culture refers to the set of shared values and behaviours that characterise how Council
considers risk in its day-to-day activities. Risk Management Culture should be embedded into and not separate
from the organisational culture. Risk culture is the glue that binds all the elements of risk management together,
because it reflects the shared values, goals, practices and mechanisms that embed risk into an organisation’s
decision-making processes and risk management into its operating processes.

Council fosters a positive risk management culture where risk management is seen as a positive attribute of
decision-making rather than a corrective measure. Staff are encouraged to have a willingness to engage
effectively with risk.

5.3 Risk Profile and Appetite

Council seeks to manage its risk profile carefully. This reflects the view that satisfactory fulfilment of its
important public responsibilities could be seriously jeopardised if poorly managed risks were to lead to
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significant impairment of operations, financial losses, harm to the environment and/or damage to Council's
reputation.

In support of this, Council will develop a risk appetite for Council’s most significant risks. This will define the
amount of risk Council is willing to accept in pursuit of its strategic goals and will form the basis of Council’s
approach to managing risk and taking opportunities in day to day operational activities as well as strategic
decision making.

5.4 Risk Management Plan

A risk management plan will be developed to provide structure for how Council will implement the Risk
Management Policy and conduct its risk management activities. The primary purpose of the plan is to ensure
that the Council’s arrangements for managing risks are clearly understood and practiced, and identifies where,
when and how different types of decisions relating to risk are made across the Council and by whom.

The Risk Management Plan will include:

e roles, accountabilities and responsibilities in relation to risk management

e the timeframes for risk management activities

e the activities that Council will undertake to implement its risk management policy

e how risk management processes will be implemented and maintained

e resourcing requirements (people, IT and physical assets)

e training and development requirements

e performance measures used to evaluate the success of the risk management framework, and
e how and when the Council’s Risk Management Framework will be reviewed

5.5 Risk Management Procedures

Risk management procedures shall be developed to provide a systematic way of identifying, assessing and
prioritising risks, deciding how they will be managed, and documenting and communicating this across the
Council. All risk management procedures are to be performed in accordance with AS ISO 31000:2018, using
qualitative, semi-quantitative or quantitative methods and techniques that best suit the Council’s operations,
risk management maturity and decision-making needs.

5.6 Decision Making

To ensure its success, the Risk Management Framework will be integrated within all Council’s decision-making
processes, governance structures, operational procedures and integrated planning and reporting processes.

5.7 Risk Management Framework — Continuous Review

The Council executive is responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of the risk management framework can be
assessed. This will be achieved by ensuring that:
e any approved risk treatment plans have performance targets and timelines that can be measured
against goals and objectives, and
e a methodology is implemented to obtain the data needed to measure the impact of the Council’s risk
management framework.
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An annual assessment that identifies that Council’s risk register and risk profile should be undertaken to ensure
that they are current and appropriate.

6. LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS

Risk management is a fundamental component of decision making in all Council activities. As such all policies
and procedures of Council should be guided by this Policy and any associated risk management procedures to
maintain appropriate risk management considerations at the heart of all decisions and processes.

This policy and council’s risk management approach are informed by the Risk Management Guidelines (AS I1SO
31000:2018) issued by Standards Australia.

7. REVIEW

This Policy will be reviewed every two years from the date of each adoption of the policy, or more frequently as
required. This policy will be reviewed within one year of any significant restructure or change to Council’s
operating environment.

8. REPORTING

The General Manager will publish an attestation statement in the Council’s Annual Report indicating, for the
prior financial year, whether Council has complied with its risk management requirements.

9. RESPONSIBLE OFFICER

The Coordinator Governance and Risk is the Responsible Officer for the Policy and will be the principle point of
contact for interpretation or queries on the policy. They will have responsibility for maintaining appropriate
records relating to the Risk Management Framework and its application. The Coordinator Governance and Risk
has additional responsibilities for implementation of actions under this policy which are defined in the next
section.

10. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
10.1 Council

The elected Council is responsible for determining Council’s Risk Appetite. The elected Council is also
responsible, as part of the approval of the annual budget, for the provision of the resources needed to:

e implement an appropriate risk management framework, and
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o deliver risk treatments and internal controls needed to ensure risks are appropriately managed.

10.2 General Manager

Consistent with the General Manager’s role under section 335 of the Local Government Act 1993 to conduct the
day-to-day management of the Council, the General Manager has ultimate responsibility and accountability for
risk management in the Council. This includes:

e approving the Council’s risk management plan, risk treatment plans, risk register and risk profile

e overseeing the Council’s risk management framework and ensuring it is effectively communicated,
implemented and reviewed regularly

e ensuring council operates within its risk appetite
e promoting and championing a positive risk culture

e ensuring that all Council managers and staff (permanent, temporary or contract) understand their risk
management responsibilities and that these are included in all job descriptions, staff induction
programs, performance agreements and performance appraisals

e annually attesting that Council’s risk management framework complies with statutory requirements
and remains contemporary and in line with best practice; and

e approving the Council’s implementation of corrective actions recommended by the Council’s internal
audit function, external audit and ARIC.

10.3 Directors and Managers

Directors and Managers have the responsibility for managing specific policy, project and program risks across
the Council. This includes being responsible, within the sphere of their authority, for:
e promoting awareness of risks and risk treatments that must be implemented

e ensuring Council staff are implementing the Council’s risk management framework as developed and
intended and performing their risk management responsibilities

e identifying risks that will affect the achievement of the Council objectives

e establishing and/or implementing specific policies, operating and performance standards, budgets,
plans, systems and/or procedures to manage risks, and

e monitoring the effectiveness of risk treatment and internal controls.

10.4 Coordinator Governance and Risk

The Coordinator Governance and Risk Manager will be the Responsible Officer for the Policy and will coordinate
the following functions in relation to the Policy:
o implementing effective risk management communication mechanisms within Council

e developing and maintaining a risk reporting framework to enable regular advising/reporting of key
risks, and the management of those risks, to the senior management group and ARIC
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e supporting Directors and Managers by co-ordinating and providing clear and concise risk information,
advice and/or reports that can be used in planning and decision-making

e undertaking regular reviews of both the policy and associated procedures

e helping to build a risk management culture within the Council, including facilitating and driving risk
management at the strategic and operational level and ensuring consistency in practice

e train and educate relevant employees with respect to policy and procedures and ensure documents,
tools, templates and user guides are current and readily available.

e coordinating the various activities relating to risk management within the Council

e ensuring there are easily accessible systems and processes in place to enable all staff to conveniently
undertake risk management in their day-to-day work

e supporting Council staff with their risk management obligations and providing staff with advice and
tools to ensure risk management compliance

e establishing and maintaining an ongoing monitoring system to track the risk management activities
undertaken within Council and assessing the need for further action, and

e assessing risk management information for completeness, accuracy and consistency (for example, risk
registers, risk treatment plans)

10.5 Staff
All Council staff are responsible for:

o helping to identify risks in their business unit
e implementing risk treatment plans within their area of responsibility
e following standard operating procedures (where applicable), and

e communicating or escalating new risks that emerge to their manager.

10.6 Council Executive

The Council executive have responsibility for reviewing and monitoring existing and emerging corporate risks,
possible improvements and business continuity arrangements. An annual review of Council’s corporate risk
register will be undertaken which will be reported to the ARIC.

10.7 Internal Audit

The Internal Audit function develops and implements a risk-based audit program to provide assurance that risks
are identified and key controls to mitigate these risks are well-designed and working effectively and that overall
good governance is evident. Internal Audit reports are reported to the ARIC to ensure independent oversight of
the effectiveness of controls and any recommendations that are made for improvement.
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10.8 Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee (ARIC)

The ARIC will be responsible for providing independent assurance to the General Manager and Council that the
risk management framework is appropriate and working effectively and provide advice on an annual basis that
Council has complied with its risk management requirements. This includes advising whether:

e Council’s risk management framework operates effectively and supports the achievement of the
council’s strategic goals and objectives

e Council’s risk appetite is appropriately reflected in the Council’s internal control framework

e Council is operating within the risk appetite determined by Council

e risk management covers all relevant risk categories including strategic, operational, compliance,
reputational and reporting risks

e Council takes an enterprise risk management approach that is fully integrated into all aspects of the
Council, including decision-making processes and operations

e risks are formally considered when developing and implementing all Council policies, programs, projects
and other activities, including procurement

e major risks have been identified and assessed by the council and appropriate risk treatments have been
implemented that reflect the Council’s risk criteria

e internal controls are effective and appropriate
e Council’s risk management framework complies with AS 1ISO 31000:2018
e resources provided for risk management are sufficient for managing risks facing Council

e risk management policies, procedures and plans are being complied with.

11 RELATED PROCEDURES

A Risk Management Plan and associated Procedures will be developed, consistent with any guidance from the
Office of Local Government, to support the implementation of this Policy.
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INSTRUMENT OF DELEGATION TO
GENERAL MANAGER

Pursuant to Section 377 of the Local Government Act 1993 and a resolution of the Council at its meeting
held on 09 December, 2020 Armidale Regional Council:

1. Revokes all previous delegations granted to the position of General Manager prior to the date of this
Instrument; and

2. Delegates to the position of General Manager, or to the person who acts in that position, all of the
functions, powers, duties and authorities of the Council that it may lawfully delegate under the Local
Government Act 1993, any other Act, regulation, instrument, rule or the like (including any functions,
powers, duties and authorities delegated to the Council by any authority, body, person or the like),
other than those functions prescribed in section 377 of the Local Government Act 1993 as functions
which may not be delegated; subject to:

i the acceptance of tenders being limited to a contract value of up to $250,000 (GST inclusive)
where all other tender requirements of the Local Government Act 1993 and Local Government
(General ) Regulation 2005 are met.

ii. these delegations and authorities being exercised in a manner consistent with relevant
legislation and any applicable resolution of Council.

3. Pursuant to Section 68 of the Noxious Weeds Act 1993 delegates to the position of General Manager,
or to the person who acts in that position, all of the functions under the Noxious Weeds Act 1993,
including, but not limited to, the function of appointing inspectors in accordance with the Act.

4. These delegations and authorities are effective from the date of the Resolution of the Council and
remain in force until amended or revoked by a further resolution of the Council.

Pursuant to a Resolution of the Council at its meeting of Wednesday, 09 December 2020.

Date:

Viv May psm
Interim Administrator

Acknowledgement of Delegations of Authority

I, James Roncon, currently employed by the Council in the position of General Manager, do hereby
acknowledge that | have read and understood this Instrument of Delegation and that | will perform the
functions of the position of General Manager in accordance with the delegations and authorities in this
Instrument of Delegation and the relevant position description.
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Date:

James Roncon
General Manager
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Armidale Regional Council

GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2020

ARMID:ALE

Unleash the Opportunities egional Council
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Overview

Armidale Regional Council is constituted under the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) and has its principal place of business
at:

135 Rusden Street
Armidale NSW 2350

Council's guiding principles are detailed in Chapter 3 of the LGA and includes:

principles applying to the exercise of functions generally by council,

principles to be applied when making decisions,

principles of community participation,

principles of sound financial management, and

principles for strategic planning relating to the development of an integrated planning and reporting framework.

* & & s =

A description of the nature of Council's operations and its principal activities are provided in Note 2(b).

Through the use of the internet, we have ensured that our reporting is timely, complete and available at minimum cost. All
press releases, financial statements and other information are publicly available on our website: www.armidale.nsw.gov.au.

Page 2 of 89
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. . . Fi ial Stat ts 2020
Armidale Regional Council e Faiemens

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Understanding Council's Financial Statements

Introduction

Each year, individual Local Governments across NSW are required to present a set of audited financial statements to their
council and community.

What you will find in the Statements

The financial statements set out the financial performance, financial position and cash flows of Council for the financial year
ended 30 June 2020.

The format of the financial statements is standard across all NSW Councils and complies with both the accounting and reporting
requirements of Australian Accounting Standards and requirements as set down by the Office of Local Government.

About the Councillor/Management Statement

The financial statements must be certified by senior staff as ‘presenting fairly’ the Council’s financial results for the year and
are required to be adopted by Council — ensuring both responsibility for and ownership of the financial statements.

About the Primary Financial Statements

The financial statements incorporate five "primary” financial statements:

1. The Income Statement

Summarises Council's financial performance for the year, listing all income and expenses. This statement also displays

Council's original adopted budget to provide a comparison between what was projected and what actually occurred.

2. The Statement of Comprehensive Income
Primarily records changes in the fair value of Council's Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment.

3. The Statement of Financial Position
A 30 June snapshot of Council's financial position indicating its assets, liabilities and “net wealth™.

4, The Statement of Changes in Equity
The overall change for the year (in dollars) of Council's "net wealth".

5. The Statement of Cash Flows
Indicates where Council's cash came from and where it was spent. This statement also displays Council's original adopted
budget to provide a comparison between what was projected and what actually occurred.
About the Notes to the Financial Statements
The Notes to the Financial Statements provide greater detail and additional information on the five primary financial statements.
About the Auditor's Reports
Council’s financial statements are required to be audited by the NSW Audit Office.
In NSW the auditor provides 2 audit reports:
1. an opinion on whether the financial statements present fairly the Council’s financial performance and position, and
2. their observations on the conduct of the audit, including commentary on the Council’s financial performance and financial
position.

Who uses the Financial Statements?

The financial statements are publicly available documents and must be presented at a Council meeting between seven days
and five weeks after the date of the audit report.

The public can make submissions to Council up to seven days subsequent to the public presentation of the financial statements.

Coundil is required to forward an audited set of financial statements to the Office of Local Government.

Page 3 of 89
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. . . Fi ial Stat ts 2020
Armidale Regional Council e Faiemens

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Statement by Councillors and Management made pursuant to Section 413(2)(c) of the Local
Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended)

The attached General Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:
+ the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended) and the regulations made thereunder,
+ the Australian Accounting Standards and other pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board

+ the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these statements:
+ present fairly the Council's operating result and financial position for the year
+ accord with Council's accounting and other records.
We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 23 September 2020.

Viv May John Rayner
Interim Administrator Acting General Manager
23 September 2020 23 September 2020

Kelly Stidworthy
Responsible Accounting Officer
23 September 2020

Page 4 of 89
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Armidale Regional Council

Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Original
unaudited
budget
2020

32,939
20,084
3,005
11,216
13,650
2,106
632

83,632

25,332
1,469
14,792
16,484
9,865

67,942
15,690

15,690

15,690

2,040

$'000

Income from continuing operations

Rates and annual charges

User charges and fees

Other revenues

Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes
Interest and investment income

Rental income

Total income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs

Borrowing costs

Materials and contracts

Depreciation and amortisation

Other expenses

Net losses from the disposal of assets

Revaluation decrement / impairment of IPP&E
Total expenses from continuing operations

Net operating result from continuing operations

Loss on boundary adjustment
Loss on boundary adjustment

Net result for the year

Net result attributable to council

Net operating result for the year before grants and contributions

provided for capital purposes

Notes

Ja
3o
3d,3e

3d,3e

13e

Financial Statements 2020

Actual Actual
2020 2019
33,409 32,256
18,001 21,334
2,786 3,162
14,557 14,691
21,567 16,230
1,376 1,973
872 -
92,658 89,646
23,750 24,385
2,000 1,654
21,274 18,750
17,594 18,198
8.231 9,632
1,454 1,102
2,099 608
76,402 74,329
16,256 15,317
(40,446) -
(24,190) 15,317
(24,190) 15,317
(5,311) (913)

The Council has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities, AASB 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and AASB 16 Leases. The comparative information has been prepared under AASB 111 Construction
Contracts, AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 1004 Contributions, AASB 117 Leases and related Accounting Interpretations.

The above Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Page 5 of 89
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. . . Fi ial Stat ts 2020
Armidale Regional Council e Faiemens

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2020

$'000 Notes 2020 2019

Net operating result for the year (as per Income Statement) (24,190) 15,317

Other comprehensive income:
Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating result

Gain (loss) on revaluation of IPP&E 11{a) 4,403 6,082
Total items which will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating
result 4,403 6,082

Amounts which will be reclassified subsequently to the operating result when specific
conditions are met

Other movements (32) -
Total items which will be reclassified subsequently to the operating result

when specific conditions are met (32) -
Total other comprehensive income for the year 4,371 6,082
Total comprehensive income for the year (19,819) 21,399
Total comprehensive income attributable to Council (19,819) 21,399

The Council has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities, AASB 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and AASBE 16 Leases. The comparative information has been prepared under AASB 111 Construction
Contracts, AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 1004 Contributions, AASB 117 Leases and related Accounting Interpretations.

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Page 6 of 89
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Armidale Regional Council

Statement of Financial Position

as at 30 June 2020

Financial Statements 2020

$'000 Notes 2020 2019
ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 7(a) 20,856 11,040
Investments T(b) 51,295 58,236
Receivables 8 9,175 12,357
Inventories 9a 1,027 846
Contract assets 12a 3,072 -
Current assets classified as 'held for sale' 10 1,359 921
Other 9b 606 171
Total current assets 87,390 83,571
Non-current assets

Receivables 8 32 327
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 11(a) 856,984 859,990
Right of use assets 13a 279 -
Total non-current assets 857,575 860,317
Total assets 944,965 943,888
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Payables 14 8,161 7,431
Income received in advance 14 274 505
Contract liabilities 12b 7.245 -
Lease liabilities 13b 26 -
Borrowings 14 2,831 2,962
Provisions 15 7,329 7,434
Total current liabilities 25,866 18,332
Non-current liabilities

Lease liabilities 13b 253 -
Borrowings 14 20,946 23,801
Provisions 15 23,987 4,563
Total non-current liabilities 45,186 28,364
Total liabilities 71,052 46,696
Net assets 873,913 897,192
EQUITY

Accumulated surplus 16 845,741 873,423
Revaluation reserves 18 28,172 23,769
Council equity interest 873,913 897,192
Total equity 873,913 897,192

The Council has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-FProfit Entities, AASE 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and AASB 16 Leases. The comparative information has been prepared under AASB 111 Construction
Contracts, AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 1004 Contributions, AASB 117 Leases and related Accounting Interpretations.

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Armidale Regional Council

Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 30 June 2020

as at 30/06/20
IPP&E

Financial Statements 2020

as at 30/06/19
IPP&E

Accumulated revaluation J,ﬁ??' Accumulated revaluation e:ﬁ!:yl
$'000 Notes surplus reserve ¥ surplus reserve
Opening balance 873,423 23,769 897,192 858,106 17,687 875,793
Changes due to AASB 1058 and AASB 15 adoption 16 (3,460) - (3,460) - - -
Changes due to AASB 16 adoption 16 - - - - - -
Restated opening balance 869,963 23,769 893,732 858,106 17,687 875,793
Net operating result for the year (24,190) - (24,190) 19,317 - 15,317
Restated net operating result for the period (24,190) = (24,190) 15,317 = 15,317
Other comprehensive income
- Correction of prior period errors (32) - (32) - - -
- Gain {loss) on revaluation of IPP&E 11(a) - 4,403 4,403 - 6,082 6,082
Other comprehensive income (32) 4,403 4,371 - 6,082 6,082
Total comprehensive income (24,222) 4,403 (19,819) 156,317 6,082 21,399
Equity — balance at end of the reporting period 845,741 28,172 873,913 873,423 23,769 897,192

The Council has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities, AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and AASB 16 Leases. The comparative
information has been prepared under AASB 111 Construction Confracts, AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 1004 Contributions, AASB 117 Leases and related Accounting Interpretations.

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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General Purpose Financial Statements 2020 (updated draft)

Armidale Regional Council

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Financial Statements 2020

Original
unaudited
budget Actual Actual
2020 $'000 Notes 2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts:
32,939 Rates and annual charges 33,155 32,487
20,084  User charges and fees 22,458 21,529
2,106 Investment and interest revenue received 1,844 1,763
24,866 Grants and contributions 34,100 34,096
— Bonds, deposits and retention amounts received 40 -
3,637 COther 852 6,972
Payments:
(25,332) Employee benefits and on-costs (23,001) (24,478)
(14,792)  Materials and contracts (24,578) (21,150)
(1,469) Borrowing costs (2,350) (1,678)
— Bonds, deposits and retention amounts refunded - (2,088)
(9,864) Other (22,600) (13,770)
Net cash provided (or used in) operating 17b
32,175 activities 20,022 33,685
Cash flows from investing activities
Receipts:
1,333 Sale of investment securities 79,000 60,000
3,643  Sale of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 2,870 2,792
—  Deferred debtors receipts 15 39
Payments:
—  Purchase of investment securities (72,059) (70,116)
(38,025) Purchase of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (17,048) (29,637)
(33,049) Netcash provided (or used in) investing activities (7,220) (36,922)
Cash flows from financing activities
Payments:

(2,952) Repayment of borrowings and advances (2,986) (2,967)
(2,952) Net cash flow provided (used in) financing activities (2,986) (2,967)
(3,826) Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 9,816 (6,204)

10,390 Plus: cash and cash equivalents — beginning of year 17a 11,040 17,244

— less: Lost Cash resulting from boundary adjustment - -

6,564 Cash and cash equivalents — end of the year 17 20,856 11,040

40,461  plus: Investments on hand — end of year 7(b) 51,295 58,236
47,025 Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 72,151 69,276

The Council has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities, AASB 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and AASB 16 Leases. The comparative information has been prepared under AASB 111 Construction
Contracts, AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 1004 Contributions, AASB 117 Leases and related Accounting Interpretations.

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 1. Basis of preparation

These financial statements were authorised for issue by Council on 23 September 2020. Council has the power to amend
and reissue these financial statements in cases where critical information is received from public submissions or where the
OLG directs Council to amend the financial statements.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and
Australian Accounting Interpretations, the Local Government Act 1933 (NSW) and Regulations, and the Local Government
Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

Council is a not for-profit entity.

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars.

(a) Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
certain financial assets and liabilities and certain classes of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment.

(b) Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Council's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Council and that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Council makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities with the next financial year include:

(i) estimated fair values of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment - refer Note 11;
(ii) estimated tip remediation provisions - refere Note 15; and

(iii) employee benefit provisions - refer Note 15.

Significant judgements in applying the council's accounting policies

(i) Impairment of receivables

Council has made a significant judgement about the impairment of a number of its receivables — refer Note 8.

Monies and other assets received by Council
(a) The Consolidated Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 409(1) of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW), all money and property received
by Council is held in the Council’'s Consolidated Fund unless it is required to be held in the Council's Trust Fund.

Cash and other assets of the following entities have been included as part of the Consolidated Fund:
= General purpose operations

= Water service
= Sewerage service

continued on next page ... Page 11 of 89
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Note 1. Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) The Trust Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 411 of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended), a separate and
distinct Trust Fund is maintained to account for all money and property received by the council in trust which must be applied
only for the purposes of, or in accordance with, the trusts relating to those monies.

Trust monies and property subject to Council’s control have been included in these reports.

A separate statement of monies held in the Trust Fund is available for inspection at the council office by any person free of
charge.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not
recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part
of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable
from, or payable to the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities
that are recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority are presented as operating cash flows.

Volunteer services
Council acknowledges the important contribution that volunteers make in the provision of some of Council's community

services. Volunteer services are not formally costed or recorded in the financial records, as the quantum of volunteer
services is not considered to represent a material part of Council's service delivery nor impact on resuilts.

New accounting standards and interpretations issued not yet effective
New accounting standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations (ie. pronouncements) have been published by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2020 reporting period.

Council has elected not to apply any of these pronouncements in these financial statements before their operative dates.

Council's assessment of these new standards and interpretations (where they have been deemed as having a material impact
on Council's future financial perfarmance, financial positon and cash flows) are set out below:

AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantors
AASB 2018-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Deferral of AASB 1059
AASB 2019-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Implementation of AASB 1059

This standard provides guidance for public sector entities (grantors) who have entered into service concession arrangements
with private sector operators.

AASB 1059 requires grantors to recognise a service concession asset and, in most cases, a corresponding liability on the
balance sheet.

A control approach is used to assess the service concession arrangements in place.

On initial recognition the asset is measured at current replacement cost based on AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement and
existing assets of the grantors are reclassified at the date of transition.

After initial recognition, the grantor accounts for the assets under either AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment or AASB
138 Intangible Assets.

The nature of the consideration given to the operator will affect whether the grantor applies either the ‘financial liability’ or the
‘grant of right’ model for the recognition of the liability.
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Note 1. Basis of preparation (continued)

AASB 2019-2 makes amendments to the recognition and measurement of the asset and liability where the modified
retrospective approach to transition is being used and provides a practical expedient due to the different effective dates of
AASB 16 and AASBE 1059,

Council does not expect any material impact to future financial statements as Council does not generally enter into
service concession arrangements.

This standard has an effective date for the 30 June 2021 reporting period.

AASB2014-10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

AASB2015-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Effective Date of Amendments to AASB 10 and
AASB 128

AASB 2017-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Effective Date of Amendments to AASB 10 and
AASB 128 and Editorial Corrections

The standard amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in AASB10 and those in
AASB128 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.

These amendments will only impact Council where there has been a sale or contribution of assets between Council and any
Joint Venture or Associate. Council is not currently invalved in any Joint Venture operation with any parties.

The main consequence of the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognised when a transaction involves a business
(whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or loss is recognised when a transaction involves assets that do
not constitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary.

Apart from the standards listed above, there are no other released standards and interpretations (with future effective dates)
that are expected to have a material impact on Council.

Council has elected not to apply any of these pronouncements in these financial statements before their operative dates.

New accounting standards adopted during the year

During the year Council adopted the following accounting standards and interpretations (as issued by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board) which were mandatorily effective from 1 July 2019:

= AASB 16 Leases
= AASB 15 Revenue from contracts with customers and associated amending standards.
=  AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-profit entities

Further information on the newly adopted standards which had a material impact on Council's reported financial position,
financial performance and/or associated financial statement disclosures can be found at Note 16.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 2(a). Council functions/activities — financial information

$'000

Functions or activities
Growth, Prosperity, and Economic
Development

People and Community
Leadership for the Region
Environment and Infrastructure

Income, expenses and assets have been directly attributed to the following functions or activities.

Details of those functions or activities are provided in Note 2(b).

Grants included

Financial Statements 2020

Total functions and activities

Income from Expenses from Operating result from in income from

continuing operations continuing operations continuing operations continuing operations Carrying amount of assets
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
56,132 52,759 46,032 46,748 10,100 6,011 13,606 17,957 - -
3,958 5,688 12,439 13,744 (8,480) (8,056) 2,085 3,836 113,522 106,644
21,584 25,607 9,155 4,026 12,428 21,581 2,157 4,332 86,534 81,898
10,983 5,582 8,776 9,811 2,207 (4,219) 5,466 1,028 744,809 755,346
92,658 89,646 76,402 74,329 16,256 15,317 23314 27,254 944,965 943,888
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Note 2(b). Council functions/activities - component descriptions

Details relating to the Council’s functions/activities as reported in Note 2(a) are as follows:

Growth, Prosperity, and Economic Development

Includes tourism, economic development, private works and industrial development promotion.

People and Community

Includes public halls and community facilities, parks, gardens and recreation facilities, swimming pools, community
development and support including aboriginal services, youth services, aged and disabled services. Also includes libraries,
museums and other cultural facilities as well as bush fire and emergency services.

Leadership for the Region

Includes Civic governance and executive, finance and human resources services, risk management and occupational health
and safety, ranger services, fleet and depot services and customer services.

Environment and Infrastructure
Includes urban and rural sealed and unsealed roads, bridges, footpaths, kerb and gutter, parking areas, airports, water and

sewerage operations, cemeteries, footpaths and cycleways, street lighting, waste management and catchment management.
Also includes development control, strategic planning, environmental management and animal control.
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations

$'000 AASB 2020 2019
(a) Rates and annual charges

Ordinary rates

Residential 15 (1) 10,895 10,782
Farmland 15 (1) 4771 4,793
Mining 15 (1) 64 65
Business 15 (1) 2,579 2,540
Less: pensioner rebates (mandatory) 15 (1) (328) (367)
Rates levied to ratepayers 17,981 17,813
Pensioner rate subsidies received 15 (1) 145 175
Total ordinary rates 18,126 17,988
Annual charges

(pursuant to 5.496, 5. 4964, 5.496B, 5.501 & 5.611)

Domestic waste management services 15 (1) 4,289 3,897
Water supply services 15 (1) 2,335 2,327
Sewerage services 15 (1) 5,837 5,435
Drainage 15 (1) 466 463
Waste management services (non-domestic) 15 (1) 2,568 2,396
Less: pensioner rebates (Council policy) 15 (1) {420) (448)
Annual charges levied 15,075 14,070
Pensioner subsidies received:

- Water 15 (1) 78 72
- Sewerage 15 (1) 81 68
- Domestic waste management 15 (1) 49 58
Total annual charges 15,283 14,268
TOTAL RATES AND ANNUAL CHARGES 33,409 32,256

The AASB notation (above) identifies the revenue recognition pattern for material items of Council revenue:

15 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “at a point in time”,

15 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “over time”,

1058 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “at a point in time”, while
1058 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “over time”.

Council has used 2016 year valuations provided by the NSW Valuer General in calculating its rates.

Accounting policy for rates and charges
Rates and annual charges are recognised as revenue when the Council obtains control over the assets comprising these
receipts which is the beginning of the rating period to which they relate.

Pensioner rebates relate to reductions in rates and certain annual charges for eligible pensioners’ place of residence in the
local government area that are not subsidised by the NSW Government.

Pensioner rate subsidies are received from the NSW Government to provide a contribution towards the pensioner rebates
and are in substance a rates payment.

2019 accounting policy

Control over assets acquired from rates and annual charges is obtained at the commencement of the rating year as it is an
enforceable debt linked to the rateable property or, where earlier, upon receipt of the rates.

continued on next page ... Page 16 of 89

Attachment 1 Page 61



Attachment 1 General Purpose Financial Statements 2020 (updated draft)

. . . Fi ial Stat ts 2020
Armidale Regional Council e Faiemens

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)
$'000 AASE 2020 2019
(b) User charges and fees

Specific user charges
(per s.502 - specific 'actual use' charges)

Water supply services 15 (1) 5,268 9,197
Sewerage services 15 (1) 98 77
Drainage services 15 (1) 60 65
Waste management services (non-domestic) 15 (1) 2,983 2,854
Other 15 (1) 41 143
Total specific user charges 8,450 12,336

Other user charges and fees
(i) Fees and charges — statutory and regulatory functions (per s.608)

Inspection services 15 (1) 132 116
Planning and building regulation 15 (1) 241 201
Private works — section 67 15 (1) 587 300
Regulatory/ statutory fees 15 (1) 93 40
Registration fees 15 (1) 86 76
Regulatory fees 15 (1) 177 149
Section 10.7 certificates (EP&A Act) 15 (1) 70 76
Section 603 certificates 15 (1) 73 85
Total fees and charges — statutory/regulatory 1,459 1,043
(ii) Fees and charges — other (incl. general user charges (per s.608))

Agrodrome 15 (1) 1,542 1,789
Aged care 15 (1) 2 3
Cemeteries 15 (1) 227 227
Child care 15 (1) 531 538
Leaseback fees — Council vehicles 15 (1) 103 110
Quarry revenues 15 (1) 381 586
RMS (formerly RTA) charges (state roads not controlled by Council) 15 (1) 5134 4,037
Saleyards 15 (1) - ]
Sundry sales 15 (1) - 19
Swimming centres 15 (1) 198 227
Other 15 (1) 64 241
Total fees and charges — other 8,182 7,955
TOTAL USER CHARGES AND FEES 18,091 21,334

The AASB notation (above) identifies the revenue recognition pattern for material items of Council revenue:

15 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “at a point in time”,

15 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “over time”,

1058 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “at a point in time”, while
1058 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “over time”.

Accounting policy for user charges and fees
Revenue arising from user charges and fees is recognised when or as the performance obligation is completed and the
customer receives the benefit of the goods / services being provided.

The performance obligation relates to the specific services which are provided to the customers and generally the payment

terms are within 30 days of the provision of the service or in some cases such as caravan parks, the customer is required to
pay on arrival. There is no material obligation for Council in relation to refunds or returns.
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)
Where an upfront fee is charged such as membership fees for the leisure centre the fee is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the expected life of the membership.

Licences granted by Council are all either short-term or low value and all revenue from licences is recognised at the time that
the licence is granted rather than the term of the licence.

2019 accounting policy
User charges and fees are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided.
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)
$'000 AASE 2020 2019

(c) Other revenues

Rental income — other council properties (2019 only) 15 (1) 23 841
Fines — parking 15 (1) 344 166
Legal fees recovery — rates and charges (extra charges) 15 (1) 64 91
Commissions and agency fees 15(1) 34 8
Diesel rebate 15 (1) - -
Insurance claims recoveries 15 (1) 154 28
Sales — general 15 (1) 134 34
Rental income — Kolora aged care 15 (1) - 21
ltems for resale 15 (1) 389 236
Sales — cattle 15 (1) 776 655
Rebates 15 (1) 619 555
Other 15 (1) 249 527
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 2,786 3,162

The AASB notation (above) identifies the revenue recognition pattern for material items of Council revenue:

15 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “at a point in time”,

15 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “over time”,

1058 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “at a point in time”, while
1058 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “over time”.

Accounting policy for other revenue
Where the revenue relates to a contract with customer, the revenue is recognised when or as the performance obligation is
completed and the customer receives the benefit of the goods / services being provided.

Where the revenue relates to a contract which is not enforceable or does not contain sufficiently specific performance
obligations then revenue is recognised when an unconditional right to a receivable arises or the cash is received, which is
earlier.

2019 accounting policy:

Council recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the Council and specific criteria have been met for each of the Council’s activities as described below. Council
bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics
of each arrangement.

Parking fees and fines are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided, or when the penalty has been applied,
whichever occurs first.

Other revenue is recorded when the payment is due, the value of the payment is notified, or the payment is received, whichever
occurs first.
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)

Operating  Operating Capital Capital
$'000 AASB 2020 2019 2020 2019
(d) Grants
General purpose (untied)
Current year allocation
Financial assistance — general component 1058 (1) 2,118 2,127 - -
Financial assistance — local roads component 1058 (1) 1,226 1,221 - -
Payment in advance - future year allocation
Financial assistance — general component 1058 (1) 2,243 2,205 - -
Financial assistance — local roads component 1088 (1) 1,302 1,267 - -
Total general purpose 6,889 6,820 - -
Specific purpose
Water supplies 1088 (2) 1,484 - 2,712 9,700
Aged care 1058 (2) 106 223 - -
Bushfire and emergency services 1058 (2) 40 - 24 8
Child care 1058 (2) 137 - - -
Community care 1058 (2) 6 153 31 10
Economic development 1058 (2) - 118 - -
Employment and training programs 1058 (2) 5 - - -
Environmental programs 1058 (2) 11 - - -
Heritage and cultural 1058 (2) 9 - - -
Library 1088 (2) 142 102 - -
LIRS subsidy 1058 (2) 67 79 - -
NSW rural fire services 1058 (2) 1,135 345 6 1,036
Recreation and culture 1058 (2) 557 723 405 602
Street lighting 1058 (2) 85 84 - -
Transport (roads to recovery) 1058 (2) 2,145 3,364 - -
Transport (other roads and bridges funding) 1058 (2) 3 898 1,018 2,613
Airport 1058 (2) — - 5,945 -
Waste Management 1058 (2) - - 75 128
Other 1058 (2) 277 38 - 210
Total specific purpose 6,209 6,127 10,216 14,307
Total grants 13,098 12,947 10,216 14,307
Grant revenue is attributable to:
- Commeonwealth funding 9,153 10,749 1,026 1,487
- State funding 3,945 2,187 9,190 12,820
- Other funding - 11 - -

13,098 12,947 10,216 14,307

The AASB notation (above) identifies the revenue recognition pattern for material items of Council revenue:

15 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “at a point in time”,

15 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “over time”,

1058 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “at a point in time”, while
1058 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “over time”.
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)

Operating  Operating Capital Capital
$'000 Notes AASB 2020 2019 2020 2019
(e) Contributions
Developer contributions:
(s7.4 & s7.11 - EP&A Act, s64 of the LGA):
Cash contributions
S 7.11 — contributions towards
amenities/services 1058 (2) - - 182 219
S 7.12 —fixed development consent levies 1058 (2) - - 315 209
S 64 — water supply contributions 1058 (2) - - 352 364
S 64 - sewerage service contributions 1058 (2) — — 179 340
Total developer contributions — cash — - 1,028 1,132
Total developer contributions 27 - - 1,028 1,132
Other contributions:
Cash contributions
Bushfire services 15 (1) 234 209 6 -
Community services 15 (1) 60 59 - -
Other councils — joint works/services 15 (1) 71 31 - -
Recreation and culture 15 (1) 25 138 - -
Roads and bridges 15 (1) - 18 40 507
RMS contributions (regional roads, block
grant) 15(1) 960 1,262 184 155
Sewerage (excl. section 64 contributions) 15 (1) - - 515 -
Tourism 15 (1) 23 17 - -
Other 15 (1) 86 10 - 129
Total other contributions — cash 1,459 1,744 745 791
Non-cash contributions
Other — - 9,578 -
Total other contributions — non-cash - - 9,578 -
Total other contributions 1,459 1,744 10,323 791
Total contributions 1,459 1,744 11,351 1,923
TOTAL GRANTS AND
CONTRIBUTIONS 14,557 14,691 21,567 16,230

The AASB notation (above) identifies the revenue recognition pattern for material items of Council revenue:
15 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “at a point in time”,

15 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “over time”,

1058 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “at a paint in time”, while

1058 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “over time”.

Accounting policy for grants and contributions

Accounting policy from 1 July 2019

Grant income under AASB 15

Where grant income arises from an agreement which is enforceable and contains sufficiently specific performance obligations
then the revenue are recognised when control of each performance obligations is satisfied.
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)

The performance obligations are varied based on the agreement but include [provide details of performance obligations within
AASB 15 grants e.g. events, vaccinations]. Payment terms vary depending on the terms of the grant, cash is received upfront
for some grants and on the achievement of certain payment milestones for others.

Each performance obligation is considered to ensure that the revenue recognition reflects the transfer of control and within
grant agreements there may be some performance obligations where control transfers at a point in time and others which have
continuous transfer of control over the life of the contract.

Where control is transferred over time, generally the input methods being either costs or time incurred are deemed to be the
most appropriate methods to reflect the transfer of benefit.

Grant income

Assets arising from grants in the scope of AASB 1058 is recognised at the assets fair value when the asset is received.
Councils considers whether there are any related liability or equity items associated with the asset which are recognised in
accordance with the relevant accounting standard.

Once the assets and liabilities have been recognised then income is recognised for any remaining asset value at the time
that the asset is received

Capital grants

Capital grants received to enable Council to acquire or construct an item of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment to
identified specifications which will be under Council's control and which is enforceable are recognised as revenue as and when
the obligation to construct or purchase is completed.

For construction projects, this is generally as the construction progresses in accordance with costs incurred since this is
deemed to be the most appropriate measure of the completeness of the construction project as there is no profit margin.

For acquisitions of assets, the revenue is recognised when the asset is acquired and controlled by the Council.
Contributions

Council has obligations to provide facilities from contribution revenues levied on developers under the provisions of sections
7.4, 7.11 and 7.12 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

While Council generally incorporates these amounts as part of a Development Consents Order, such developer contributions
are only recognised as income upon receipt by Council, due to the possibility that individual development consents may not
be acted upon by the applicant and, accordingly, would not be payable to Council.

Developer contributions may only be expended for the purposes for which the contributions were required, but the Council
may apply contributions according to the priorities established in work schedules

Accounting policy prior to 1 July 2019

Control over grants and contributions is normally obtained upon their receipt (or acquittal) and revenue is recognised at this
time and is valued at the fair value of the granted or contributed asset at the date of transfer.

Where grants or contributions recognised as revenues during the financial year were obtained on condition that they be
expended in a particular manner, or used over a particular period, and those conditions were un-discharged at reporting date,
the unused grant or contribution is disclosed below.

A liability is recognised in respect of revenue that is reciprocal in nature to the extent that the requisite service has not been
provided at reporting date.
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)
$'000 2020 2019
(f) Unspent grants and contributions — external restrictions

Certain grants and contributions are obtained by Council on condition that they be
spent in a specified manner due to externally imposed restrictions.

Operating grants

Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period 5116 9,243
Add: operating grants recognised as income in the current period but not yet spent

(2019 only) 1,708 686
Add: operating grants received for the provision of goods and services in a future

period _ _
Less: operating grants now spent (1,681) (4,813)

Less: operating grants received in a previous reporting period now spent and
recognised as income

Unexpended and held as externally restricted assets (operating grants) 5,143 5116

Unexpended Operating Grants are grant monies received in relation to Council's Specific
Purpose Operating projects and where those grant monies are not fully expended at
year end. Several of Council's Specific Purpose Operating projects include transport
and NSW Rural Fire Service related projects.

Capital grants

Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period 1,881 115
Add: capital grants recognised as income in the current period but not yet spent

(2019 only) 2,131 1,881
Add: capital grants received for the provision of goods and services in a future

period _ _
Less: capital grants now spent (1,185) (115)

Less: capital grants received in a previous reporting period now spent and
recognised as income

Unexpended and held as externally restricted assets (capital grants) 2,827 1,881

Unexpended Capital Grants are grant monies received in relation to Council's Specific
Purpose Capital projects and where those grant monies are not fully expended at year
end. Several of Council's Specific Purpose Capital projects include water supply and
transport related projects.

Contributions

Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period 6,301 4,771
Add: contributions recognised as income in the current period but not yet spent 1,265 6,262
Add: contributions received for the provision of goods and services in a future period - -

Add: contributions recognised as income in the current period obtained in respect of
a future rating identified by Council for the purpose of establishing a rate (2019

only) - -
Less: contributions now spent (661) (4,732)
Unexpended and held as externally restricted assets (contributions) 6,905 6,301

Unexpended Contributions are contribution monies received in relation to certain of
Council's Operating and Capital projects and where those contribution monies are not
fully expended at year end. Several of Council's Operating and Capital projects
involving unexpended contributions include water supply and sewer headworks
projects.
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)

AASB 15 AASB 1058
$'000 2020 2020

(g) Disaggregation of material revenue streams

The following shows the revenue recognition pattern for the material revenue streams of
Council.

Revenue recognition at a point in time

Rates and annual charges 33,400 -
Financial assistance grants - 6,889
User charges and fees 18,015 _
Grant revenue and non-developer contributions - -
Developer contributions 1,395 -
Fines 344 -
Sale of goods 1,299 -
Other [specify if material] 2016 _
56,478 6,889
Revenue recognised over time
Grant revenue - 6,209
Grants to acquire or construct Council controlled assets - 10,961

User charges and fees - -
Other [specify if material] - _

- 17,170
Note 4. Interest and investment income
$'000 2020 2019
Interest on financial assets measured at amortised cost
— Overdue rates and annual charges (incl. special purpose rates) 107 109
- Cash and investments 1,262 1,849
— Deferred debtors 7 15
Finance income on the net investment in the lease - -
Total Interest and investment income 1,376 1,973
Interest revenue is attributable to:
Unrestricted investments/financial assets:
Overdue rates and annual charges (general fund) 82 70
General Council cash and investments 219 609
Restricted investments/funds — external:
Development contributions
— Section 7.11, Section 7.12 122 130
Water fund operations 586 739
Sewerage fund operations 352 399
Other externally restricted assets 15 26
Total interest and investment revenue 1,376 1,973
Accounting policy for interest and investment revenue
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate at the date that interest is eamed.
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Note 5. Expenses from continuing operations

$'000 2020 2019

(a) Employee benefits and on-costs

Salaries and wages 18,333 18,445
Employee termination costs 949 654
Travel expenses 83 159
Employee leave entitlements (ELE) 3,618 3,904
Superannuation 2,241 2,381
Workers' compensation insurance 472 398
Fringe benefit tax (FBT) 23 (1)
Payroll tax 144 147
Training costs (other than salaries and wages) 170 222
Protective clothing 82 86
Other 20 37
Total employee costs 26,135 26,432
Less: capitalised costs (2,385) (2,047)
TOTAL EMPLOYEE COSTS EXPENSED 23,750 24,385
Number of ‘full-time equivalent’ employees (FTE) at year end 272 277

Accounting policy for employee benefits and on-costs
Employee benefit expenses are recorded when the service has been provided by the employee.

Retirement benefit obligations

All employees of the Council are entitled to benefits on retirement, disability or death. Council contributes to various defined
benefit superannuation plans and defined contribution superannuation plans on behalf of its employees.

Superannuation plans

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense as they become payable. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Council participates in a defined benefit superannuation plan under the Local Government Superannuation Scheme. Sufficient
information to account for the plan as a defined benefit plan is not available, therefore Council accounts for its obligations to
defined benefit plans on the same basis as its obligations to defined contribution plans, i.e. as an expense when it becomes
payable — refer to Note 20 for more information.

$'000 Notes 2020 2019
(b) Borrowing costs

(i) Interest bearing liability costs

Interest on leases 1 -
Interest on loans 1,445 1,613
Total interest bearing liability costs 1,446 1,613
Total interest bearing liability costs expensed 1,446 1,613
(ii) Other borrowing costs

Amortisation of discount of tip remediation liabilities 15 554 41
Total other borrowing costs 554 41
TOTAL BORROWING COSTS EXPENSED 2,000 1,654
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Note 5. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)

Accounting policy for borrowing costs
Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.
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Note 5. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)
$'000 2020 2019

(c) Materials and contracts

Raw materials and consumables 14,349 18,388
Contractor and consultancy costs 30,237 27,220
Auditors remuneration ? 113 103
Legal expenses:

- Legal expenses: planning and development 36 21
— Legal expenses: debt recovery 35 158
- Legal expenses: other 653 320
Expenses from leases of low value assets (2020 only) 165 -
Operating leases expense (2019 only):

— Operating lease rentals: minimum lease payments — 160
Total materials and contracts 45,588 46,370
Less: capitalised costs (24,314) (27,620)
TOTAL MATERIALS AND CONTRACTS 21,274 18,750

Accounting policy for materials and contracts

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to Council as lessee are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

1. Operating lease payments are attributable to:
Office equipment & other items - 160
- 160

2. Auditor remuneration

During the year, the following fees were incurred for services provided by the auditor
of Council, related practices and non-related audit firms

Auditors of the Council - NSW Auditor-General:

(i) Audit and other assurance services

Audit and review of financial statements 100 96
Remuneration for audit and other assurance services 100 96
Total Auditor-General remuneration 100 96

Non NSW Auditor-General audit firms

(i) Audit and other assurance services

Other Assurance services including acquittal audits 13 7
Remuneration for audit and other assurance services 13 7
Total remuneration of non NSW Auditor-General audit firms 13 7
Total Auditor remuneration 113 103
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Note 5. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)
$ 'Doo MNotes 2020 2019

(d) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of
non-financial assets

Depreciation and amortisation

Plant and equipment 1,965 1,798
Office equipment 183 299
Infrastructure: 1(a)

— Buildings 2,149 2,476
- Other structures 142 136
- Roads 4,392 4,750
— Bridges 775 778
- Footpaths 262 277
- Stormwater drainage 630 668
— Water supply network 3,163 3,130
— Sewerage network 2,082 2122
- Airport infrastructure 370 354
Right of use assets 13 - -
Other assets:

- Heritage collections 9 10
- Other 853 835
Reinstatement, rehabilitation and restoration assets:

- Landfill and quarry assets 11(a) 619 565
Total gross depreciation and amortisation costs 17,594 18,198
Total depreciation and amortisation costs 17,594 18,198
Impairment / revaluation decrement of IPP&E

Infrastructure: 11(a)

— Buildings (relates to write-down of building assets to recoverable amount

in preparation for sale) 11(a) - 608
—Roads 215 -
- Capital work in progress 730 -
- Bulk earthworks (non-depreciable) 948 -
Non-current assets held for sale 206 -
Total gross IPP&E impairment / revaluation decrement costs /

(reversals) 2,099 608
Total IPP&E impairment / revaluation decrement costs /

(reversals) charged to Income Statement 2,099 608
TOTAL DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION AND

IMPAIRMENT FOR NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 19,693 18,806

Accounting policy for depreciation, amortisation and impairment expenses of non-financial assets

Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation and amortisation are calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values,
over their estimated useful lives. Useful lives are included in Note 11 for IPPE assets and MNote 13 for right of use assets.

Depreciation is capitalised where in-house assets have contributed to new assets.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life, or are not yet available for use, are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets that do not meet the criteria
above are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
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Note 5. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)

recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
Impairment losses for revalued assets are firstly offset against the amount in the revaluation surplus for the class of asset,

with only the excess to be recognised in the Income Statement.

$'000 2020 2019
(e) Other expenses

Advertising 64 103
Training costs (other than salaries and wages) - _
Travel expenses - _

Bad and doubtful debts 72 448
Bank charges 121 122
Computer software charges 568 a27
Contributions/levies to other levels of government 1,436 990
Councillor expenses — mayoral fee 42 43
Councillor expenses — councillors’ fees 212 216
Councillors’ expenses (incl. mayor) — other (excluding fees above) 122 3
Donations, contributions and assistance to other organisations (Section 356) 416 781
Electricity and heating 1,016 981
Insurance 1,018 1,077
Items for resale 398 537
Postage 183 214
Printing and stationery 113 230
Promotion and publicity 213 287
Street lighting 454 47
Subscriptions and publications 186 170
Telephone and communications 460 452
Valuation fees 98 103
Security 90 125
Licences 178 500
Other 771 1,006
Total other expenses 8,231 9,632
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES 8,231 9,632

Accounting policy for other expenses
Other expenses are recorded on an accruals basis as the Council receives the goods or services.
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Note 6. Gain or loss from disposal of assets

$ '000 Notes 2020 2019

Operational Land & Building assets

Proceeds from disposal — property 2,052 1,507
Less: carrying amount of property assets sold/written off {1,147) (750)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal 905 757
Plant and equipment assets M)

Proceeds from disposal — plant and equipment 818 1,285
Less: carrying amount of plant and equipment assets sold/written off (504) (595)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal 314 690
Infrastructure assets i)

Proceeds of disposal of Infrastructure assets - -
Less: carrying amount of infrastructure assets sold/written off (2,673) (2,488)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal (2,673) (2,488)
Real estate assets held for sale ¢

Proceeds from disposal - Real estate assets held for sale - -
Less: balance written off - assessed as non-recoverable - (61)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal — (61)
Investment assets 7(e)

Proceeds from disposal/redemptions/maturities — investments 79,000 60,000
Less: carrying amount of investments sold/redeemed/matured (79,000) (60,000)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal - -
NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS (1,454) (1,102)

Accounting policy for disposal of assets
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the Income
Statement.

The gain or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has irrevocably passed to the buyer and the
asset is de-recognised.
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Note 7(a). Cash and cash equivalents

$'000 2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand and at bank 20,856 11,040
Total cash and cash equivalents 20,856 11,040

Accounting policy for cash and cash equivalents

For Statement of Cash Flow presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents include: cash on hand; deposits held at call
with financial institutions; other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value; and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the Statement of Financial Position.

Note 7(b). Investments

2020 2020 2019 2019
$'000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
Investments
b. ‘Financial assets at amortised cost’ 51,205 - 58,236 -
Total Investments 51,295 - 58,236 -
TOTAL CASH ASSETS, CASH
EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 72,151 - 69,276 -
Financial assets at amortised cost
Short - medium term deposits 51,295 - 58,236 -
Total 51,295 - 58,236 -

Accounting policy for investments

Financial instruments are recognised initially on the date that the Council becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs.

Financial assets
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at amortised cost.

Classification

On initial recognition, Council classifies its financial assets into the following categories — those measured at:
+ amortised cost
+ fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
+ fair value through other comprehensive income — equity instrument (FVOCI-equity}

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition.

Amortised cost
Assets measured at amortised cost are financial assets where:
+ the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows, and
« the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Council's financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other receivables, term deposits and cash and
cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position. Term Deposits (with maturities of less than 365 days) and the NSW
Government T-Corp Investment Management Cash Fund (which is considered to have a short - medium term investment
horizan).
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Note 7(b). Investments (continued)
Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less
provision for impairment.

Interest income, impairment and gains or loss on de-recognition are recognised in profit or loss.
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Note 7(c). Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments

2020 2020 2019 2019
$'000 Current Non-current Current Mon-current
Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 72,151 - 69,276 -
attributable to:

External restrictions 59,991 - 59,772 =
Internal restrictions 10,020 - 7,654 -
Unrestricted 2,140 - 1,850 -
72,151 — 69,276 —
$'000 2020 2019
Details of restrictions
External restrictions — included in liabilities
Specific purpose unexpended grants — general fund (2020 only) 7.245 -
Specific purpose unexpended loans — general 2,700 3,408
NIRW grant from EPA 1,087 947
External restrictions — included in liabilities 11,032 4,355
External restrictions — other
Developer contributions — general 2,748 2,387
Developer contributions — water fund 2,277 1,885
Developer contributions — sewer fund 1,740 1,530
RMS contributions 76 17
Specific purpose unexpended grants (recognised as revenue) — general fund 725 6,997
Water supplies 22,317 26,185
Sewerage services 16,183 13,927
Domestic waste management 1,362 607
Trust Fund 1,467 1,431
Other Contributions 63 451
External restrictions — other 48,959 55,417
Total external restrictions 59,991 59,772
Internal restrictions
Plant and vehicle replacement 885 -
Infrastructure replacement 3,317 -
Employees leave entitlement 4,053 3,194
Carry aver works 1,136 2,368
Other 629 2,092
Total internal restrictions 10,020 7,654
TOTAL RESTRICTIONS 70,011 67,426
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Note 8. Receivables

2020 2020 2019 2019
$'000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
Purpose
Rates and annual charges 2,006 - 1,752 -
Interest and extra charges 186 - 368 -
User charges and fees 1,327 - 2,282 -
Private works 435 - 2,266 -
Accrued revenues
- Interest on investments 366 - 752 -
Deferred debtors - 312 - 327
Government grants and subsidies 3,157 — 4,300 -
Net GST receivable 651 - 975 -
Other debtors 1,439 - 111 -
Total 9,567 312 12,806 327
Less: provision of impairment
Rates and annual charges (156) - (223) -
User charges and fees (236) - (226) -
Total provision for impairment —
receivables (392) - (449) -
TOTAL NET RECEIVABLES 9,175 312 12,357 327
$'000 2020 2019
Movement in provision for impairment of receivables
Balance at the beginning of the year (calculated in accordance with AASB 139) 449 280
Less Debts written off during the year (73) (240)
Add additional provision for impairment in the current year 16 409
Balance at the end of the year 392 449

Accounting policy for receivables

Recognition and measurement
Receivables are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months after the reporting date
which are classified as non-current assets.

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. Receivables are generally due for settlement within 30 days.

Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

Impairment
Impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost is recognised on an expected credit loss (ECL) basis.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition, and when
estimating ECL, the Council considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on Council's historical experience
and informed credit assessment, and including forward-looking information.

When considering the ECL for rates debtors, Council takes into account that unpaid rates represent a charge against the

rateable property that will be recovered when the property is next sold. For non-rates debtors, Council uses the presumption
that an asset which is more than 30 days past due has seen a significant increase in credit risk.
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Note 8. Receivables (continued)

The Council uses the presentation that a financial asset is in default when:
+ the other party is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Council in full, without recourse by the Council to actions
such as realising security (if any is held) or
+ the financial assets (for non-rates debtors) are more than 90 days past due.

Credit losses are measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with
the contract, and the cash flows expected to be received. This is applied using a probability weighted approach.

On initial recognition of the asset, an estimate of the expected credit losses for the next 12 months is recognised. Where the
asset has experienced significant increase in credit risk then the lifetime losses are estimated and recognised.

Council uses the simplified approach for trade receivables where the expected lifetime credit losses are recognised on day 1.
There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the current reporting period.
The Council writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, whichever occurs first.

Receivables written off are not subject to any further enforcement activity.

Where the Council renegotiates the terms of receivables due from certain customers, the new expected cash flows are
discounted at the original effective interest rate and any resulting difference to the carrying value is recognised in profit or loss.

Rates and annual charges outstanding are secured against the property.
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Note 9. Inventories and other assets

2020 2020 2019 2019
$'000 Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
(a) Inventories
(i) Inventories at cost
Stores and materials 539 - 537 -
Trading stock 488 - 309 -
Total inventories at cost 1,027 — 846 -
TOTAL INVENTORIES 1,027 - 846 -
(b) Other assets
Prepayments 606 - 171 -
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 606 — 171 —
(i) Other disclosures

2020 2020 2019 2019
$'000 Motes Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
(Valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value)

Movements:
Real estate assets at beginning of the year - - 61 -
- Write off of non-recoverable opening balance [ — — (61) -

Total real estate for resale - - — —

Accounting policy for inventories and other assets

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted average costs. Costs of purchased inventory
are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Note 10. Non-current assets classified as held for sale

(i) Non-current assets 'held for sale'

2020 2020 2019 2019
$'000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
Land 464 - - -
Buildings - Former Kolora Aged Care facility
site & buildings 895 - 921 -
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
CLASSIFIED AS 'HELD FOR
SALE' 1,359 - 921 —
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Note 10. Non-current assets classified as held for sale (continued)

(i) Details of assets and disposal groups

The property formerly used as the Kolora Aged Care facility in Guyra has been sold with settlement effected in August 2020.

At 30 June 2020, the carrying value of the property has been written down to its recoverable amount, indicated by the
contract price, less disposal costs. Land parcels are being marketed for sale and are held at cost, as representative of lower
of cost or market value.

Accounting policy for non-current assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continued use. They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such as assets arising from employee benefits; financial assets; and investment
properties that are carried at fair value.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value less
costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group),
but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the
date of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is recognised at the date of de-recognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified
as held for sale.
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Note 11(a). Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

as at 30/06/19 Asset movements during the reporting period as at 30/06/20
Impairment
Met o= 1 Net
Gross c::z:::_ﬁ Garrying ar::raaluma;ﬁ: Adjy P, T::aluan?n Gross c;‘"::ﬂﬁ
carrying  Accumulated Additons Additions value of Depraciation (recognised WIP and o aquity o aguity carrying  Accumulated
5000 amount  depreciation renawals ' new assals disposals expense in PIL} transfers transfers IARR) (ARR) amount  depreciation
Capital work in progress 26,106 - 26,106 - 23,832 - - (730} (27.4867) - - - 21,741 - 21,741
Plant and equipment 19,790 (9,598) 10,192 2279 - (504) (1.965) - - 1.427 - - 24,074 {12.645) 11,429
Office equipment 5,236 (4,891) 345 29 - - (183) - - - - - 5,235 (5.044) 191
Land:
- Operational land 21,312 - 21,312 - - (695) - - - (644) - 4,988 24,962 - 24,962
= Gommunity land 19,882 - 19,882 - - (460) - - - 8,152 (59) - 27,516 - 27 516
- Land under roads (post 30/6/08) 721 - 721 - - (64) - - - - - - B57 - B57
Infrastructure:
= Buildings 120,498 (55,334) 65,164 50 136 (1.852) (2.149) - 211 - - - 118,483 {56.723) 61,760
- Other structures 10,410 (3,971) 5,439 132 14 (20) (142) - 185 - - - 10,878 (4,270) 5,608
- Roads 245,337 (68,395) 176,942 1,962 29 (21,383) (4,392) {215) 1,652 - - - 221,298 {66,703) 154,585
- Bridges 64,734 (22,440) 42,294 313 - (386) (775) - 732 - - - 654,962 {22,784) 42178
- Footpaths 14,703 (6,785) 7,918 18 48 (375) (262) - - - - - 14,219 (6.872) 7,347
- Bulk earthworks (non-depreciable) 152,653 - 152,653 - - (9,605) - (948) - - - - 142,100 - 142,100
- Stormwaler drainage 62,456 (13,441) 49,015 202 - (3,042) (630) - 1,361 - - - 60,393 {13.487) 46,906
- Water supply network 230,050 (76,337) 163,713 - - (1.782) (3,163) - 13,056 - {216} - 239,718 {78.110) 161,608
- Sewerage network 141,667 (37,855) 103,812 - - (4.731) (2,082) - - - {311) - 134,885 {38.197) 96,688
— Airport infrastructure 9,334 (1,987) 7,347 - - - (370) - - - - - 9,545 (2,568) 6,877
Other assets:
- Heritage collections 130 (70) 60 - - - (9} - - - - - 13 (78) 53
— Artworks 112 - 112 - - - - - - - - - 112 - 112
- Other 19,685 (4,775) 14,910 - - (72) (853) - 10,270 - - - 30,174 (5,919) 24,255
Reinstatement, rehabilitation and
restoration assets (refer Note 17):
- Landfill & quarry assets 3,984 (2,931) 1,053 - - = (619) - = 18,867 - = 23,343 (4.042) 18,301
Total Infrastructure, property, plant
and equipment 1,168,800 (308,810) 859,990 4,985 24,059  (44,771)  (17.594) (1.893) - 27.802 (586) 4,989 1,174,426 (317.442) 856,984
(1} Renewals are defined as the replacement of existing assels (as opposed (o the acquisition of new assels).
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Note 11(a). Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

as at 30/06/18 Asset movements during the reporting period as at 30/06/19
Impairment
! I
carry?lnegtl ) reva IU:ﬁz" ) carry?r::
amount Carrying decrements Revaluation amount
Gross carrying  Accumulated Additions Additiens valua of Depreciation  (recognised Adjustments increments to Grass carrying  Accumulated
5 ‘000 amount dapraciation ranawals ' naw assels disposals axpense inPIL} WIP ransfers _and transfars _ aquily (ARR) amaount depreciation
Capital work in progress 9,084 - 9,084 - 18,653 (75) - - (1,556) - - 26,106 - 26,106
Plant and equipment 19,535 (8,962) 10,573 2,012 - (595) (1,798) - - - - 19,790 (9,598) 10,182
Office equipment 5,258 (4.614) G544 - - - (299) - - - - 5,238 (4,891) 345
Land:
- Operational land 21,815 - 21,815 - - (503) - - - - - 21,312 - 21,312
= Gommunity land 19,913 - 19,913 - - (31) - - - - - 19,882 - 18,882
— Land under roads (post 30/6/08) - - - - - - _ _ _ _ 721 729 _ 791
Infrastructure:
- Buildings 123,983 (55,588) 68,395 - 948 (316) (2,476) (608) 142 (921) - 120,498 (55,334) 65,164
- Other structures 10,345 (3,835) 6,510 - 234 (173) (1386) - 4 - - 10,410 (3,871) 6,439
- Roads 242,609 (63,645) 178,964 3.328 343 (961) (4,750) - 18 - - 245,337 (68,395) 176,942
- Bridges 63,925 (22,420) 41,505 1,583 - (423) (778) - 407 - - 54,734 (22,440) 42,294
- Foolpaths 14,538 (6.,508) 8,030 - 24 - (277) - 141 - - 14,703 (6,785) 7,918
- Bulk earthworks (non-depraciable) 152,653 - 152,653 - - - - - - - - 152,653 - 152,653
— Stormwater drainage 62,414 (12,773) 49,641 53 - (11) (668) - - - - 62,456 (13,441) 49,015
- Water supply network 224,247 (71,702) 152,545 1.217 - (383) (3,130) - 261 - 3,203 230,050 (76,337) 153,713
- Sewerage network 137,747 (34,998) 102,749 1,089 - (99) (2,122) - ar - 2,158 141,667 (37,855) 103,812
- Airport infrastructure 8,999 (1,633) 7,366 - - (211) (354) - 546 - - 9,334 (1,987) 7,347
Other assets:
- Heritage collections 130 (60) 70 - - - (10) - - - - 130 (70) 60
- Other 19,584 (3.,940) 15,644 - 153 (52) (835) - - - - 19,685 (4,775) 14,910
— Artworks 112 - 112 = - - - = - - - 112 - 112
Reinstatement, rehabilitation and
restoration assets (refer Note 17):
- Tip assels 2,703 (2,525) 178 - - — (565) - - 1,439 - 3,984 (2,931) 1,053
Total Infrastructure, property, plant
and equipment 1,139,594 (293,203) 846,381 9,282 20,355 (3,833) (18,198) (608) - 518 6,082 1,168,800 (308,810) 859,990
(1} Renewals are defined as the replacement of existing assets (as opposed to the acquisition of new assets),
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Note 11(a). Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

Accounting policy for infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment are held at fair value. Independent comprehensive valuations are performed at
least every five years, however the carrying amount of assets is assessed by Council at each reporting date to confirm that
it is not materially different from current fair value.

Water and sewerage network assets are indexed at each reporting period in accordance with the Rates Reference Manual
issued by Department of Industry (Dol) — Water.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation are credited to the revaluation reserve. To the extent that the increase
reverses a decrease previously recognising profit or loss relating to that asset class, the increase is first recognised as profit
or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of assets in the same class are first charged against revaluation reserves
directly in equity to the extent of the remaining reserve attributable to the class; all other decreases are charged to the Income
Statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to Council and the cost of the itern can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Income Statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

When infrastructure, property, plant and equipment are acquired by Council at significantly below fair value, the assets are
initially recognised at their fair value at acquisition date.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of
their residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Plant and equipment Years Other equipment Years
Office equipment 5t0 10 Playground equipment 5to 15
Office furniture 10t0 20 Benches, seats etc. 1010 20
Computer equipment 4

\ehicles 5to 8 Buildings

Heavy plant/road making equipment 5to 8 Buildings: masonry 50 to 100
Other plant and equipment 5to 15 Buildings: other 20 to 40
Water and sewer assets Stormwater assets

Dams and reservoirs 80to 100 Drains 80 to 100
Bores 20to 40 Culverts 50to 80
Reticulation pipes: PVC 70to 80 Flood control structures 80 to 100
Reticulation pipes: other 25t0 75

Pumps and telemetry 1510 20

Transportation assets Other infrastructure assets

Sealed roads: surface 20 Bulk earthworks Infinite
Sealed roads: structure 50 Swimming pools 50
Unsealed roads 20 Unsealed roads 20
Bridge: concrete 100 Other open space/recreational assets 20
Bridge: other 50 Other infrastructure 20
Road pavements 60

Kerb, gutter and footpaths 40

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Land under roads
Land under roads is land under roadways and road reserves including land under footpaths, nature strips and median sfrips.

Council has elected not to recognise land under roads acquired before 1 July 2008 in accordance with AASB 1051 Land
Under Roads.

Land under roads acquired after 1 July 2008 is recognised in accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment.
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Note 11(a). Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

Crown reserves

Crown reserves under Council's care and control are recognised as assets of the Council. While ownership of the reserves
remains with the Crown, Council retains operational control of the reserves and is responsible for their maintenance and use
in accordance with the specific purposes to which the reserves are dedicated.

Where the Crown reserves are under a lease arrangement they are accounted for under AASB 16 Leases, refer to Note 13.

Improvements on Crown reserves are also recorded as assets, while maintenance costs incurred by Council and revenues
relating to the reserves are recognised within Council's Income Statement.

Rural Fire Service assets

Under Section 119 of the Rural Fire Services Act 1997 (NSW), “all firefighting equipment purchased or constructed wholly
or from money to the credit of the Fund is to be vested in the council of the area for or on behalf of which the firefighting

equipment has been purchased or constructed”.

Rural Fire Service assets are recognised as assets of the Council in these financial statements.

Note 11(b). Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment — current year impairments

Council has recognised impairment losses on certain Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment during the reporting

period, as disclosed in Note 5 (d).

Note 12. Contract assets and liabilities

2020 2020
$'000 Current Non-current
(a) Contract assets
Other 3,072 -
Total Contract assets 3,072 -
Total unrestricted assets 3,072 -
Total contract assets 3,072 -

2020 2020
$'000 Notes Current Non-current
(b) Contract liabilities
Grants and contributions received in advance:

Unexpended capital grants (to construct Council controlled assets) (i) 2,828 -
Unexpended operating grants (received prior to performance obligation

being satisfied) (i) 4,354 -
Unexpended operating contributions (received prior to performance

obligation being satisfied) (i) 63 -
Total grants received in advance 7,245 -
Total contract liabilities 7.245 _
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Note 12. Contract assets and liabilities (continued)

Notes

(i) Council has received funding to construct assets including sporting facilities, bridges, library and other infrastructure. The
funds received are under an enforceable contract which require Council to construct an identified asset which will be under
Council's control on completion. The revenue is recognised as Council constructs the asset and the contract liability reflects the
funding received which cannot yet be recognised as revenue. The revenue is expected to be recognised in the next 12 months.

(i) The contract liability relates to grants received prior to the revenue recognition criteria in AASB 15 and AASB 1058 being
satisfied since the performance obligations are ongoing.

2020 2020
$'000 Current Non-current

(i) Contract liabilities relating to restricted assets

Externally restricted assets

Unspent grants held as contract liabilities (excl. Water & Sewer) 7.182 —
Unspent contributions held as contract liabilities (excl. Water & Sewer) 63 -
Contract liabilities relating to externally restricted assets 7.245 -

Total contract liabilities relating to restricted assets 7.245 _

Total contract liabilities 7,245 -

$'000 2020

(ii) Revenue recognised (during the financial year) from opening contract liability
balances

Grants and contributions received in advance:

Capital grants (to construct Council controlled assets) 454
Operating grants (received prior to performance obligation being satisfied) 1,189
Capital contributions (to construct Council controlled assets) -
Operating contributions (received prior to performance obligation being satisfied) 90

Total Revenue recognised during the financial year that was included in the contract
liability balance at the beginning of the period 1,733

Significant changes in contract assets and liabilities

The contract liabilities have arisen on adoption of AASB 15 and AASB 1058. Previously income received in advance was
recognised for reciprocal contracts. The increase in a contract liability is primarily due to grants in the scope of AASB 15 and
capital grants received by Council to acquire or construct assets which will be under Council’s control. Previously, revenue
was recognised on receipt of the funds.

2020 2020
$'000 Current Non-current

Note 13. Leases

The Council has applied AASB 16 using the modified retrospective (cumulative catch-up) method and therefore the
comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under AASB 117 and related Interpretations.
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Note 13. Leases (continued)

(i) Council as a lessee

Council has leases over a range of assets including land and buildings, and some office equipment. Information relating to the
leases in place and associated balances and transactions is provided below.

Terms and conditions of leases

Buildings
Council leases land and buildings as part of access arrangements and for the provision of services. The leases are generally
between 2 to 99 years and some include a renewal option to allow Council to renew the lease.

The leases contain an annual pricing mechanism based on either fixed increases or CPl movements at each anniversary of
the lease inception.

Office and IT equipment

Leases for office and IT equipment are generally for low value assets, except for significant items such as photocopiers.
The current photocopier lease which expired at 30 June 2020, has been extended for 12 months and is pending renewal.
Payments are fixed with a variable component based upon usage.

Various
Plant & Property, Plant
$'000 Equipment Ready to use & Equipment Total
(a) Right of use assets
Opening balance at 30 June 2019 - - - -
Adoption of AASB 16 at 1 July 2019 — first time
lease recognition - - 313 313
Other movement - - (34) (34)
RIGHT OF USE ASSETS - - 279 279
2020 2020
$'000 Current Non-current
(b) Lease liabilities
Lease liabilities 26 253
TOTAL LEASE LIABILITIES 26 253
(i) The maturity analysis
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash flows is shown in the table below:
Total per
Statement of
Financial
$'000 <1 year 1-5years > 5 years Total Position
Cash flows 27 87 746 860 279
2020 2020
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Note 13. Leases (continued)
$'000 Current Non-current

(ii) Lease liabilities relating to restricted assets

Total lease liabilities relating to unrestricted assets 26 253
Total lease liabilities 26 253
$'000 2020

(c) Income Statement

The amounts recognised in the Income Statement relating to leases where Council is a lessee are shown below:

Interest on lease liabilities 1
Expenses relating to low-value leases 165
166

(d) Statement of Cash Flows

Total cash outflow for leases 27

27

Leases at significantly below market value — concessionary / peppercorn leases
Council has a number of leases at significantly below market for land and buildings which are used for:

+ community services
+ historical purposes

The leases are generally between 3 and 5 years and require payments of a maximum amount of $1,000 per year. The use
of the right-to-use asset is restricted by the lessors to specified community services and other purposes which Council either
facilitates or provides, these services are detailed in the leases.

Council does not believe that any of the leases in place are individually material from a statement of financial position or
performance perspective.

Accounting policy

Accounting policies under AASB 16 — applicable from 1 July 2019
At inception of a contract, Council assesses whether a lease exists — i.e. does the contract convey the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration?

Council has elected not to separate non-lease components from lease components for any class of asset and has accounted
for payments as a single component.

At the lease commencement, Council recognises a right-of-use asset and associated lease liability for the lease term. The
lease term includes extension periods where Council believes it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised.

The right-of-use asset is measured using the cost model where cost on initial recognition comprises: the lease liability, initial
direct costs, prepaid lease payments, estimated cost of removal and restoration, less any lease incentives. The right-of-use
is depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line basis and assessed for impairment in accordance with the impairment
of asset accounting palicy.
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Note 13. Leases (continued)

The lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the commencement of the
lease. The discount rate is the rate implicit in the lease, however where this cannot be readily determined then the Council's
incremental borrowing rate for a similar term with similar security is used.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The
lease liability is re-measured when there is a lease modification, or change in estimate of the lease term or index upon which
the lease payments are based (e.g. CPI).

Where the lease liability is re-measured, the right-of-use asset is adjusted to reflect the re-measurement.

Exceptions to lease accounting

Council has applied the exceptions to lease accounting for both short-term leases (i.e. leases with a term of less than or equal
to 12 months) and leases of low-value assets. Council recognises the payments associated with these leases as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases at significantly below market value / concessionary leases

Council has elected to measure the right of use asset arising from the concessionary leases at cost which is based on the
associated lease liability at initial recognition.

Accounting policy under AASB 117 and associated Accounting Interpretations (2019 only)
Refer to Note 5c and Note 16.

(e) Operating leases

$'000 2020

(i) Operating lease income

Other lease income

Other ar2
Total income relating to operating leases a72

(iv) Maturity analysis of contractual lease income

Maturity analysis of future lease income receivable showing the undiscounted lease
payments to be received after reporting date for operating leases:

<1 year 695
1-2 years 631
2-3 years 567
34 years 155
4-5 years 125
> 5 years 748
Total undiscounted contractual lease income receivable 2,921

Accounting policy

When Council is a lessor, the lease is classified as either an operating or finance lease at inception date, based on whether
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset have been transferred to the lessee. If the risks
and rewards have been transferred then the lease is classified as a finance lease, otherwise it is an operating lease.

When Council has a sub-lease over an asset and is the intermediate lessor then the head lease and sub-lease are accounted

for separately. The classification of the sub-lease is based on the right-of-use asset which arises from the head lease rather
than the useful life of the underlying asset.
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Note 13. Leases (continued)
If the lease contains lease and non-lease components then the non-lease components are accounted for in accordance with
AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The lease income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Note 14. Payables and borrowings

2020 2020 2019 2019
$'000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
Payables
Goods and services — operating expenditure 1,985 - 2,920 -
Accrued expenses:

- Borrowings 120 - 130 -
— Salaries and wages 851 - - -
- Other expenditure accruals 1,863 - 1,307 -
Security bonds, deposits and retentions 40 - - -
NIRW grant from EPA 1,087 - 947 -
Trust 1,453 - 1,432 -
Prepaid rates 762 - 695 -
Total payables 8,161 - 7,431 -
Income received in advance (2019 only)

Payments received in advance 274 — 505 —
Total income received in advance 274 - 505 -
Borrowings

Loans — secured ' 2,831 20,946 2,962 23,801
Total borrowings 2,831 20,946 2,962 23,801
TOTAL PAYABLES AND

BORROWINGS 11,266 20,946 10,898 23,801

1} Loans are secured over the general rating income of Council.
Disclosures on liability interest rate risk exposures, fair value disclosures and security can be found in Note 19.

2020 2020 2019 2019
$'000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
(a) Payables and borrowings relating to

restricted assets
Externally restricted assets
Water 442 4227 384 4,493
Sewer - - 20 3
Domestic waste management 1,385 8,234 1,305 9,556
Other 2,540 - 2,321 -
Payables and borrowings relating to externally
restricted assets 4,367 12,461 4,030 14,052
Total payables and borrowings relating
to restricted assets 4,367 12,461 4,030 14,052
Total payables and borrowings relating
to unrestricted assets 6,899 8,485 6,868 9,749
TOTAL PAYABLES AND
BORROWINGS 11,266 20,946 10,898 23,801
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Note 14. Payables and borrowings (continued)
$'000 2020 2019

(b) Current payables and borrowings not anticipated to be settled within
the next twelve months

The following liabilities, even though classified as current, are not expected to be settled in
the next 12 months.

Other liabilities: Unspent loan - 1,451
Total payables and borrowings _ 1,451

(c) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

as at 30/06/19 Non-cash changes as at 30/06/20
Arnquisition dug
to change in
Opaning Fair value accounting  Other non-cash
5 '000 Balance Cash flows Acouisition changes policy movement Closing balance
Loans — secured 26,763 (2.986) - - - = 23,777
Lease liabilities = . 279 - . - 279
TOTAL 26,763 (2,986) 279 - - - 24,056
as at 30/06/18 Non-cash changes as at 30/06/19
Opening Fair value  Other non-cash Closing
$ '000 Balance Cash flows Acquisition changes movement balance
Loans — secured 29,730 (2,967) - - - 26,763
TOTAL 29,730 (2,967) - - - 26,763
$'000 2020 2019

(d) Financing arrangements

(i) Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the following
lines of credit:

Bank overdraft facilities 1 1,000 1,000
Credit cards/purchase cards 210 210
Total financing arrangements 1,210 1,210

Drawn facilities as at balance date:
= Credit cards/purchase cards 34 -
Total drawn financing arrangements 34 -

Undrawn facilities as at balance date:

- Bank overdraft facilities 1,000 1,000
— Credit cards/purchase cards 176 210
Total undrawn financing arrangements 1,176 1,210

Additional financing arrangements information

Breaches and defaults
During the current and prior year, there were no defaults or breaches of any of the loans.

Security over loans
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Note 14. Payables and borrowings (continued)

Land, buildings and other property held by Council, along with the general rating income
of Council is provided as security for loans.

Unused limits and facilities
Council has access to an unused overdraft with a limit of $1,000,000.

11} The bank overdraft facility may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice.

Accounting policy for payables and borrowings
Council measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequently, financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

The financial liabilities of the Council comprise trade payables and bank and other loans.

Payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the council prior to the end of financial year that are
unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
the Income Statement over the period of the barrowings using the effective-interest method. Fees paid on the establishment
of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the drawdown occurs. To the extent that there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the Statement of Financial Position when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in other income or finance cost.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless Council has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Finance leases (2019 only)
Council is not party to any finance leasing arrangements.

Note 15. Provisions

2020 2020 2019 2019
$'000 Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
Provisions
Employee benefits
Annual leave 2,247 - 2.159 -
Long service leave 4,910 383 5120 380
Other leave — Accrued leave 172 - 155 -
Sub-total — aggregate employee benefits 7,329 383 7,434 380
Asset remediation/restoration:

Asset remediation/restoration (future works) - 23,604 - 4,183
Sub-total — asset remediation/restoration - 23,604 - 4,183
TOTAL PROVISIONS 7,329 23,987 7,434 4,563
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Note 15. Provisions (continued)

2020 2020 2019 2019
$'000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
(a) Provisions relating to restricted/unrestricted

assets
Externally restricted assets
Domestic waste management - 22 366 - _
Provisions relating to externally restricted assets - 22,366 - -
Total provisions relating to unrestricted assets 7,329 1,621 7,434 4,563
TOTAL PROVISIONS 7,329 23,987 7,434 4,563
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Note 15. Provisions (continued)
$'000 2020 2019

(b) Current provisions not anticipated to be settled within the next twelve
months

The following provisions, even though classified as current, are not expected to be settled
in the next 12 months.

Provisions — employees benefits 4,774 4,521
4,774 4,521

(c) Description of and movements in provisions

ELE provisions

Other

Long service employee Total
$ '000 Annual leave leave benefits
2020
At beginning of year 2,159 5,500 155 7.814
Leave Taken {1,609) (350) (1.659) (3.618)
Leave Accrued 1,697 143 1,676 3,516
Total ELE provisions at end of year 2,247 5,293 172 7712
2019
At beginning of year 2,223 5,510 174 7.907
Leave Taken (1,524) (795) (1.678) (3,997)
Leave Accrued 1.460 786 1,658 3,904
Total ELE provisions at end of year 2,159 5,501 154 7,814

Other provisions

$ '000 remed‘i‘:is:r: Total
2020
At beginning of year 4,183 4,183
Changes to provision:
- Revised discount rate 214 214
Additional provisions 19,761 19,761
Unwinding of discount {554) (554)
Total other provisions at end of year 23,604 23,604
2019
At beginning of year 2,703 2,703
Unwinding of discount 41 4
Additional Provision 1.439 1,439
Total other provisions at end of year 4183 4,183

Nature and purpose of non-employee benefit provisions

Landfill and Quarry remediation

Council has a legal and public obligation to make, restore, rehabilitate and reinstate council landfill sites and quarries in-line
with relevant licencing agreements.

During the 2019/20 Financial year, Council made a significant adjustment to the provision to restore, rehabilitate and restate
Coungil's main landfill site.
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Note 15. Provisions (continued)

Council engaged an external consultant to visit Council's three (3) landfill sites (Long Swamp Road, Guyra and Waterfall Way
Regional Landfill). The consultant provided updated rehabilitation costs for all three landfill sites and a rehabilitation model for
Council to use to value the Rehabilitation provision in accordance with required Accounting Standards. The comprehensive
model resulted in an increase in the Landfill Rehabilitation Provision from $3.8 million at 30 June 2019 to $22.4 million at 30
June 2020. At 30 Jure 2019, an internal review was completed by Council staff based upon using the phytocap rehabilitation
method for the Long Swamp Road Landfill only. During 2020, degradation of the capping at the Guyra Landfill site was
identified so further rehabilitation is required. The Waterfall Way Regional Landfill site was licensed by the EPA to accept
landfill from 1 July 2020, so this is a new addition to the Landfill Rehabilitation Provision.

Council notes that the phytocap method of rehabilitation is only in testing phase with a limited number of councils in NSW.
The EPA have not yet provided approval for Council to use phytocap technology so a full capping methodology has been
applied in valuing the Landfill Rehabilitation Provision at 30 June 2020.

Council performed an annual internal review of the Quarry Rehabilitation Provision and determined an additional $1.0 million
is required to rehabilitate the quarry sites, to provide a total Quarry Rehabilitation Provision of $1.2m at 30 June 2020.

Any changes to these provisions will be reflected in future Financial Statements.

Accounting policy for provisions
Provisions are recognised when Council has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as borrowing cost.

Employee benefits

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries (including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave expected to be
wholly settled within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service) are recognised
in respect of employees’' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liability for annual leave and accumulating sick leave is recognised in the provision for
employee benefits. All other short-term employee benefit obligations are presented as payables.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liability for long-service leave and annual leave that is not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related service is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured
as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of
the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels,
experience of employee departures, and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at
the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as
possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

On-costs

The employee benefit provisions include the aggregate on-cost liabilities that will arise when payment of current employee
benefits is made in future periods. These amounts include superannuation, payroll tax and workers compensation expenses
which will be payable upon the future payment of certain leave liabilities which employees are entitled to at the reporting period.
The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position if the Council does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting date, regardless of when the actual settlement
is expected to occur,

Provisions for close-down and restoration, and environmental clean-up costs — landfills and quarries

Restoration
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Note 15. Provisions (continued)

Close-down and restoration costs include the dismantling and demolition of infrastructure, and the removal of residual materials
and remediation of disturbed areas. Estimated close-down and restoration costs are provided for in the accounting period
when the obligation arising from the related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs during the development or during the
operation phase, based on the net present value of estimated future costs.

Provisions for close-down and restoration costs do not include any additional obligations which are expected to arise from
future disturbance. The costs are estimated on the basis of a closure plan. The cost estimates are calculated annually during
the life of the operation to reflect known developments, e.g. updated cost estimates and revisions to the estimated lives of
operations, and are subject to formal review at regular intervals.

Rehabilitation

Where rehabilitation is conducted systematically aver the life of the operation, rather than at the time of closure, provision
is made for the estimated outstanding continuous rehabilitation work at each reporting date, and the cost is charged to the
Income Statement.

Provision is made for the estimated present value of the costs of environmental clean-up obligations outstanding at the reporting
date. These costs are charged to the Income Statement. Movements in the environmental clean-up provisions are presented
as an operating cost, except for the unwinding of the discount which is shown as a borrowing cost.

Remediation procedures generally commence soon after the time the damage, remediation process, and estimated
remediation costs become known, but may continue for many years depending on the nature of the disturbance and the
remediation techniques.

As noted above, the ultimate cost of environmental remediation is uncertain and cost estimates can vary in response to many
factors, including changes to the relevant legal requirements, the emergence of new restoration techniques, or experience at
other locations. The expected timing of expenditure can also change, for example in response to changes in quarry reserves
or production rates. As a result, there could be significant adjustments to the provision for close down and restoration and
environmental clean-up, which would affect future financial results.

Other movements in the provisions for close-down and restoration costs, including those resulting from new disturbance,
updated cost estimates, changes to the estimated lives of operations, and revisions to discount rates, are capitalised within
property, plant and equipment. These costs are then depreciated over the lives of the assets to which they relate.

Close-down and restoration costs are a normal consequence of tip and quarry operations, and the majority of close-down and
restoration expenditure is incurred at the end of the life of the operations. Although the ultimate cost to be incurred is uncertain,
Council estimates the respective costs based on feasibility and engineering studies using current restoration standards and
techniques.

Self-insurance
Council does not self-insure.
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Note 16. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors

(a) Nature and purpose of reserves

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve
The infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve is used to record increments / decrements of non-current
asset values due to their revaluation.

Refer to the Statement of Changes in Equity for the rollforward of the Accumulated Surplus and Revaluation Reserve from
2019 to 2020 and comparatives for the prior year.

(b) Changes in accounting policies due to adoption of new accounting standards
(not-retrospective)

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Council has adopted AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, AASB
1058 Income of Not-for-profit Entities and AASB 16 Leases using the modified retrospective (cumulative catch-up) method
and therefore the comparative information for the year ended 30 June 2019 has not been restated and continues to comply
with AASB 111 Construction Contracts, AASB 117 Leases, AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 1004 Contributions and associated
Accounting Interpretations.

All adjustments on adoption of AASB 15 and AASB 1058 have been taken to retained earnings at 1 July 2019.

The impacts of adopting these standards and associated transition disclosures are provided below:

(i) AASB 15 and AASB 1058

Changes in accounting policies due to adoption of AASB 15 and AASB 1058
The following approach has been applied on transition to AASB 15 and AASB 1058:

Transfer of control to a customer — over time or at a point in time

AASB 15 has specific criteria regarding whether control is transferred over time or at a point in time. The entity has reviewed
its contracts and concluded that the criteria for recognition over time is not met in some circumstances. In such cases,
revenue and related production costs will be recognised at the delivery of each separate performance obligation instead of
over the contract using a single margin.

Licences
Council has reviewed the licences it grants and considers that all licences are either short-term or low value and elects to
recognise all revenue from licences up-front rather than spreading them over the life of the licence.

Prepaid rates

Under AASB 1004, rates were recorded as revenue at the earliest of receipt of the funds from the ratepayer and the
beginning of the rating period. Under AASB 1058, prepaid rates are recognised as a financial liability until the beginning of
the rating period.

Grants — operating

Under AASB 1004, most grant income was recognised as revenue on receipt. Under AASB 15, where an agreement is
enforceable and contains sufficiently specific performance obligations, the revenue is either recognised over time as the
work is performed, or recognised at the point in time that the control of the services passes to the customer.

Grants - capital

Under AASB 1004, most grant monies were recorded as revenue on receipt. Under AASB 1058, where Council has
received assets (including cash) to acquire or construct a non-financial asset, the asset is to be controlled by Council and
the contract is enforceable, then the asset is recognised as a contract liability on receipt and recorded as revenue as the
performance obligation to acquire or construct the asset is completed.

Balance at
$°'000 1 July 2019
Opening contract balances at 1 July 2019
Contract assets
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Note 16. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors (continued)

$'000

— Under AASB 15
—Under AASB 1058
Total Contract assets

Contract liabilities
—Under AASB 15

—Under AASB 1058

Total Contract liabilities

Balance at
1 July 2019

1,270
896
2,166

138
7,202
7,340

Comparison of financial statement line items under AASB 15 compared to previous standards for the

current year

The following tables show the impact of adopting AASB 15 and AASB 1058 on the Council's financial statements for the

year ended 30 June 2020.

Statement of Financial Position

Carrying
amount per
Statement of Carrying
Financial amount under
Position under previous
AASB 15 and Reclassific- Remeasur-e revenue
$'000 AASB 1058 ation ment standards Notes
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 20,856 - - 20,856
Investments 51,295 - - 51,295
Receivables 9175 - 3,072 12,247
Inventories 1,027 - - 1,027
Contract assets 3,072 - (3.072) -
Other 606 - - 606
Current assets classified as 'held for sale' 1,359 = - 1,359
Total current assets 87,390 - - 87,390
Current liabilities
Payables 8,161 - - 8,161
Income received in advance 274 - - 274
Contract liabilities 7,245 - (7,245) -
Lease liabilities 26 - - 26
Borrowings 2,831 - - 2,831
Provisions 7,329 - - 7,329
Total current liabilities 25,866 - (7,245) 18,621
Non-current assets
Receivables 312 - - 312
Infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment 856,984 - - 856,984
Right of use assets 279 - - 279
Total non-current assets 857,575 - - 857,575
Non-current liabilities
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Note 16. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors (continued)

Carrying
amount per
Statement of Carrying
Financial amount under
Position under previous
AASB 15 and Reclassific- Remeasur-e revenue
$'000 AASB 1058 ation ment standards Notes
Lease liabilities 253 - - 253
Borrowings 20,946 - - 20,946
Provisions 23,987 - - 23,987
Total Non-current liabilities 45,186 - - 45,186
Net assets 873,913 - 7,245 881,158
Equity
Accumulated surplus 845,741 - 7,245 852,986
Revaluation reserves 28172 - - 28172
Council equity interest 873,913 - 7,245 881,158
Total equity 873,913 - 7,245 881,158

In compliance with AASB 1058, a Contract Liability of $7,245,000 is recorded to recognise unexpended grant funds and
contributions as at 30 June 2020. A Contract Asset of $3,072,000 is recorded at 30 June 2020. Of the balance of $7,245,000
Contract Liability at 30 June 2020, $3,460,000 relates to grant funds and contributions received in prior financial years (before
1 July 2019) and unexpended at 30 June 2020. The remaining balance of $3,785,000 relates to grant funds and contributions
received during the year ended 30 June 2020 and unexpended at year end.

Applying the previous accounting standard AASB 1004, the Contract Liability of $7,245,000 would be nil, Accumulated Surplus
would increase by $3,460,000 and the current year result would increase by $3,785,000.

Income Statement

$'000

Income from continuing operations
Rates and annual charges

User charges and fees

Other revenues

Grants and contributions provided for
operating purposes

Grants and contributions provided for
capital purposes

Interest and investment income
Rental income

Total Income from continuing
operations

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs

continued on next page ...

Income Income
Statement and Statement and
comprehen- comprehen-
sive income sive income
under AASB 15 under previous
and AASB Reclassific- Remeasur- revenue
1058 ation ement standards

33,409 - - 33,409

18,091 - - 18,001

2,786 - - 2,786

14,557 - - 14,557

21,567 - 7,245 28,812

1,376 - - 1,376

872 — - 872

02,658 — 7,245 99,903

23,750 - - 23,750

Notes

Page 56 of 89

Attachment 1

Page 101



Attachment 1 General Purpose Financial Statements 2020 (updated draft)

. . . Fi ial Stat ts 2020
Armidale Regional Council e Faiemens

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 16. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors (continued)

Income Income
Statement and Statement and
comprehen- comprehen-
sive income sive income
under AASB 15 under previous
and AASB Reclassific- Remeasur- revenue
$'000 1058 ation ement standards Notes
Borrowing costs 2.000 - - 2,000
Materials and contracts 21,274 - - 21,274
Depreciation and amortisation 17,504 - - 17,594
Other expenses 8,231 - - 8,231
Net losses from the disposal of assets 1,454 - - 1,454
Revaluation decrement / impairment of
IPP&E 2,099 - - 2,099
Total Expenses from continuing
operations 76,402 - - 76,402
Total Operating result from
continuing operations 16,256 - 7.245 23,501
Operating result from discontinued
operations (40,446) - - (40,446)
Net operating result for the year (24,190) — 7,245 (16,945)
Total comprehensive income (19,819) — - (19,819)

In compliance with AASB 1058, a Contract Liability of $7,245,000 is recorded to recognise unexpended grant funds and
contributions as at 30 June 2020. A Contract Asset of $3,072,000 is recorded at 30 June 2020. Of the balance of 7,245,000
Contract Liability at 30 June 2020, $3,460,000 relates to grant funds and contributions received in prior financial years (before
1 July 2019) and unexpended at 30 June 2020. The remaining balance of $3,785,000 relates to grant funds and contributions
received during the year ended 30 June 2020 and unexpended at year end.

Applying the previous accounting standard AASB 1004, the Contract Liability of 7,245,000 would be nil, Accumulated Surplus
would increase by $3,460,000 and the current year result would increase by $3,785,000.

Adjustments to the current year figures for the year ended 30 June 2020

Statement of Financial Position

Original Impact Restated

Balance Increase/ Balance
$'000 1 July, 2019 (decrease) 1 July, 2019
Contract assets - - -
Receivable - - -
Total assets 943,888 - 943,888
Contract liabilities - - -
Total liabilities 46,696 - 46,696
Accumulated surplus 873,423 (3,460) 869,963
Revaluation reserves 23,769 - 23,769
Total equity 897,192 (3,460) 897,192
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Note 16. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors (continued)

(i) AASB 16 Leases

Council as a lessee

Under AASB 117, Council assessed whether leases were operating or finance leases, based on its assessment of whether the
significant risks and rewards of ownership had been transferred to Council or remained with the lessor, Under AASB 16, there
is no differentiation between finance and operating leases for the lessee and therefore all leases which meet the definition of
a lease are recognised on the statement of financial position (except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets).

Council has used the exception to lease accounting for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, and the lease
expense relating to these leases is recognised in the Income Statement on a straight- line basis.

Practical expedients used on transition
AASB 16 includes a number of practical expedients which can be used on transition. Council has used the following expedients:

+ Contracts which had previously been assessed as not containing leases under AASB 117 were not re-assessed on
transition to AASB 16.

+ Lease liabilities have been discounted using the Council's incremental borrowing rate at 1 July 2019.

* Right-of-use assets at 1 July 2019 have been measured at an amount equal to the lease liability adjustment by the any
prepaid or accrued lease payments.

+ A single discount rate was applied to all leases with similar characteristics.

+ The right-of-use asset was adjusted by the existing onerous lease provision (where relevant) at 30 June 2019 rather
than perform impairment testing of the right-of-use asset.

+  Excluded leases with an expiry date prior to 30 June 2020 from the Statement of Financial Position, and lease expenses
for these leases have been recorded on a straight-line basis over the remaining term.

+ Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

Financial statement impact of adoption of AASB 16
Council has recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of $313,000 at 1 July 2019 for leases previously classified as
operating leases, or leases that are significantly below market value which were previously off balance sheet.

The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities at 1 July 2019 was 5.71%.

Balance at
$'000 1 July 2019

Operating lease commitments at 30 June 2019 per Council financial statements 1,030

Reconciliation of lease liabilities recognised on adoption of AASB 16 Leases

Operating lease commitments discounted using the

incremental borrowing rate at 1 July 2019 445
Add:

Contracts not accounted for as operating lease commitments last year -
Finance lease liabilities -
Extension options reasonably certain to be exercised not included in the commitments note -
Variable lease payments linked to an index -
Other -
Less:

Short-term leases included in commitments note (132)
Leases for low-value assets included in commitments note -
Other -
Lease liabilities recognised at 1 July 2019 313
Council as a lessor

For the arrangements where Council is a lessor, there are no significant accounting policy changes on adoption of AASB 16
except for sub-leases, which have now been classified in relation to the right-of-use asset under the head lease rather than
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Note 16. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors (continued)

the underlying asset.

Adjustments to the current year figures for the year ended 30 June 2020

Statement of Financial Position

Original Impact Restated
Balance Increase/ Balance
$'000 1 July, 2019 (decrease) 1 July, 2019
Rights-of-use assets 313 - 313

Total assets - - -

Payables — accrued interest on leases (30/6/2019) - — —
Leases 313 - 313
Total liabilities - - -

Accumulated surplus - - -
Total equity - - -
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Note 17. Statement of cash flow information

$ '000 Notes 2020 2019
(a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

Total cash and cash equivalents per Statement of Financial Position 7(a) 20,856 11,040
Balance as per the Statement of Cash Flows 20,856 11,040

(b) Reconciliation of net operating result to cash provided from
operating activities

Net operating result from Income Statement (24,190) 15,317
Adjust for non-cash items:

Depreciation and amortisation 17,594 18,198
Net losses/(gains) on disposal of assets 1,454 1,102
Adoption of AASB 15/1058 (3,460) -
Other (32) -
Losses/(gains) recognised on fair value re-measurements through the P&L:

— Revaluation decrements / impairments of IPP&E direct to P&L 2,099 608
Unwinding of discount rates on reinstatement provisions (340) 41

+/- Movement in operating assets and liabilities and other cash items:

Decrease/(increase) in receivables 3,239 227
Increase/(decrease) in provision for impairment of receivables (57) 169
Decrease/(increase} in inventories (181) 209
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets (435) 81
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets (3,072) -
Increase/(decrease) in payables (935) (686)
Increase/(decrease) in accrued interest payable (10) (22)
Increase/(decrease) in other accrued expenses payable 1,407 546
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities a7 (2,011)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities 7,245 -
Increase/(decrease) in provision for employee benefits (102) (93)
Increase/(decrease) in other provisions 19,761 (1)
Net cash provided from/(used in) operating activities
from the Statement of Cash Flows 20,022 33,685
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Note 18. Interests in other entities

Unconsolidated structured entities

Council did not consolidate the following structured entities:

$'000 2020 2019

1. New England Weeds Authority
New England Weeds Authority (NEWA), is the registered trading name of The New England Tablelands Noxious Plants County
Council. NEWA is a single purpose Council which is a Local Control Authority for priority and invasive weeds under the NSW
Biosecurity Act, 2015. The present area of operation of NEWA is the local government areas of Armidale Regional, Walcha,
Uralla Shire, and Glen Innes Severn {under a Memorandum of Understanding). These Councils are located in the Northern
Tablelands region of New South Wales.

The County Council’s governance is in accordance with the Local Government Act 1993 (LGA 1993) with the County Council
first proclaimed in 1947.

NEWA is funded by contributions from its four Constituent Councils, grants and private works. Each Constituent Council has
delegated its Noxious weeds control function to NEWA and contributes in accordance with NEWA's proclamation. NEWA's
governing body consists of five Councillors elected by each of the Constituent Councils.

NEWA leases property from Council for office accommodation, parking and storage of chemicals under a 5 year lease
agreement from 1 July 2015 - 30 June 2020. Council also provides servicing of vehicles owned by NEWA at cost. Management
assessed the impact of the NEWA's operations to be insignificant to the financial statements of Council.

Nature of risks relating to the Unconsolidated Structured Entity
NEWA is a separately constituted and proclaimed County Council. The proclamation determined the contribution of each
participating Council. These contributions are the total financial support required of each Constituent Council.

Council has no further obligations should NEWA become insolvent. As a proclaimed entity of the State of NSW, any additional
funding obligations remain with the State.

Non-contractual financial support provided
Council did not provide any non contractual support to NEWA.

Current intention to provide financial support
Council will continue to provide a contribution to NEWA in accordance with NEWA's proclamation. Council's expected
contribution for the 2020/2021 year is approximately $205,000 including GST (2019: $220,000 including GST).

2. New England Regional Art Museum (NERAM)

New England Regional Art Museum (NERAM} is a not for profit company limited by guarantee, and a Charitable Trust which
has received endorsed deductible gift recipient status. NERAM is an organisation built with a combination of state and local
government funding and community contributions. Council does not hold any ownership interest in NERAM.

NERAM's income is derived from several sources, including a 20 year funding agreement with Council (38%), NSW
govemment (5%), with the balance made up from membership fees, art classes, commercial sponsorship and fundraising.

The 20 year funding agreement commenced on 15 April 2009 at $265,000 per annum plus GST, indexed at Councils rate peg
increase at each anniversary date. The funding agreement is due to expire on 14 April 2028. Under the funding agreement,
Council also provides 'in kind' support for building maintenance, up to a capped amount of $10,000 per annum indexed with
CPI each year, on the building that NERAM occupies and leases from Council under a separate lease agreement.

Council has assessed the impact of the organisation’s operations to be insignificant to the financial statements of Council.
Nature of risks relating to the Unconsolidated Structured Entity
Council provides 38% of funding for NERAM. As a public company limited by guarantee, the organisation is responsible for

its own funding, while it may not exist without Council's angaing support. Council makes 4 quarterly payments to NERAM in
accordance with the funding agreement.
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Note 18. Interests in other entities (continued)

$'000 2020 2019

The main assets of NERAM are artworks. The nature of the Hinton and Coventry Trust prevent sale and usage of funds to
fund operations. The assets and liabilities of NERAM are not considered significant to the financial statements of Council.

Income received by Council relating to the Structured Entity

- Rental Income (11) (11)
Assets in Council's Statement of Financial Position relating to the Structured Entity 7.061 7.311
Net assets in Council’s Statement of Financial Position 7,061 7,311
Difference — net asset/(net exposure) relating to the Structured Entity: 7.061 7,311

Non-contractual financial support provided
Council did not provide any non contractual support to NERAM.

Current intention to provide financial support
Council's current position is to maintain support and contributions in accordance with the 20 year funding agreement which
commenced on 15 April 2009 and concludes on 14 April 2028.

Under the funding agreement, the commencement funding amount is $265,000 per annum plus GST, increased on each
anniversary date by what is commonly referred to as the rate pegging percentage for Council. Council's contribution for the
2020/21 year is estimated at $355,000 plus GST.

Council also provides 'in kind' support to NERAM in terms of a lease of the building and maintenance of the land upon which
NERAM is located, capped at a dollar value of $10,000 per annum indexed to CPI.

3. New England Joint Organisation (NEJO)

The New England Joint Organisation ("NEJO") was established on 11 May 2018 and is a separately constituted entity pursuant
to Part 7 (Sections 4000 to 400ZH) of the Local Government Act (NSW) 1993, as amended, and the Local Government
(General) Regulation 2008.

The principal purpose of the NEJO is to establish strategic regional priorities and to provide regional leadership to the
geographical area for which it serves, and to identify and take up opportunities for intergovernmental cooperation on matters
relating to the joint organisation area.

The NEJO comprises seven voting member councils: Armidale Regional Council, Glen Innes Severn Council, Inverell Shire
Council, Maree Plains Shire Council, Narrabri Shire Council, Tenterfield Shire Council and Uralla Shire Council.

The Board of the NEJO consists of the Mayors of each Member Council, who are entitled to one (1) vote at Meetings, and a
non-voting representative of the NSW Government, who is the Regional Director of the Department of Premier and Cabinet.

The Chairperson is to be elected by the voting representatives of the Board from one (1) of the Mayoral representatives. The
Chairperson does not have a casting vote.

A decision of the Board is supported by a majority at which a quorum is present.

Armidale Regional Council, as a member of the NEJO, has a one-seventh voting right in respect to the decisions of the Board.
Decision making is based on majority votes, so Council does not have control, joint control or significant influence over

relevant activities of the organisation.

In accordance with the NEJO's Charter, each member is required to contribute annual fees towards the operation of the

organisation. In the 2018/2019 and 2019/2020 financial years, the contribution made by each council was $5,000. The

contribution by Council for the 2020/2021 financial year has been set at $28,320 in the NEJO Operational Plan for 2020/2021.

For the year ended 30 June 2019, the NEJO's net operating result was $272 563. The net operating result for the year ended
30 June 2020 is not yet available. Council is not entitled to any share or distribution of the NEJO net operating result.
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Note 19. Commitments

$'000 2020 2019
(a) Capital commitments (exclusive of GST)

Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not
recognised in the financial statements as liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment 568 1,523
Other 4,381 2,726
Total commitments 4,949 4,249
These expenditures are payable as follows:

Within the next year 4,949 4,249
Total payable 4,949 4,249
Sources for funding of capital commitments:

Externally restricted reserves 4,381 2,726
Internally restricted reserves 568 1,523
Total sources of funding 4,949 4,249

Details of capital commitments
For each of the commitments, tenders have been called and orders placed prior to year end, with an expectation of delivery
early during the 2019/20 year.

(b) Finance lease commitments (2019 only)
Council is not party to any finance lease arrangements.
(c) Non-cancellable operating lease commitments (2019 only)

a. Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases at the reporting
date, but not recognised as liabilities are payable:

Within the next year - 165
Later than one year and not later than 5 years - 99
Later than 5 years - 766
Total non-cancellable operating lease commitments - 1,030

b. Non-cancellable operating leases include the following assets:
Operating leases exist for:
(1) the provision of all photocopiers throughout all Council offices and facilities; and

Conditions relating to finance and operating leases:
All operating lease agreements are secured only against the leased asset.

No lease agreements impose any financial restrictions on Council regarding future debt.

Refer to Note 13 for information relating to leases for 2020.
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Note 20. Contingencies

The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for recognition in the Statement of Financial Position, but their knowledge
and disclosure is considered relevant to the users of Council’s financial report.

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED

1. Guarantees

(i) Defined benefit superannuation contribution plans

Council contributes to a Defined Benefit Superannuation Plan under the Local Government Superannuation Scheme, named
The Local Government Superannuation Scheme — Pool B ("the Scheme"). The Scheme is a defined benefit superannuation
plan that has been deemed fo be a ‘multi-employer fund’ for purposes of AASB119 Employee Benefits for the following reasons:

— Assets are not segregated within the sub-group according to the employees of each sponsoring employer.

- The contribution rates have been the same for all sponsoring employers. That is, contribution rates have not varied for each
sponsoring employer according to the experience relating to the employees of that sponsoring employer.

— Benefits for employees of all sponsoring employers are determined according to the same formulae and without regard to
the sponsoring employer.

- The same actuarial assumptions are currently used in respect of the employees of each sponsoring employer.

Given the factors above, each sponsoring employer is exposed to the actuarial risks associated with current and former
employees of other sponsoring employers, and hence shares in the associated gains and losses (to the extent that they are
not barne by members).

Description of the funding arrangements.

Pooled employers are required to pay standard employer contributions and additional lump sum contributions to the Scheme.
The standard employer contributions were determined using the new entrant rate method under which a contribution rate

sufficient to fund the total benefits over the working life-time of a typical new entrant is calculated. The current standard
employer contribution rates are:

Division B 1.9 times member contributions for non-180 Point Mernbgr: Nil for 181

Point Members*
Division C 2.5% salaries
Division D 1.64 times member contributions|

* For 180 Point Members, Employers are required to contribute 7% of salaries to these members' accumulation accounts,
which are paid in addition to members' defined benefits.

The additional lump sum contribution for each Pooled Employer is a share of the total additional contributions of $40 million per
annum from 1 July 2019 for 2 years to 30 June 2021, apportioned according to each employer's share of the accrued liabilities
as at 30 June 2019. These additional lump sum contributions are used to fund the deficit of assets to accrued liabilities as
at 30 June 2019.

The adequacy of contributions is assessed at each triennial actuarial investigation and monitored annually between friennials.

Description of the extent fo which Council can be liable to the Scheme for other Council’s obligations under the terms and
conditions of the mulfi-employer Scheme

As stated above, each sponsoring employer (Council) is exposed to the actuarial risks associated with current and former
employees of other sponsoring employers and hence shares in the associated gains and losses.

There is no relief under the Scheme's trust deed for employers to relinquish their defined benefit obligations. Under limited
circumstances, an employer may withdraw from the Scheme when there are no active members, on full payment of outstanding
additional contributions. There is no provision for allocation of any surplus which may be present at the date of withdrawal
of the Council.

There are no specific provisions under the Scheme's trust deed dealing with deficits or surplus on wind-up.
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Note 20. Contingencies (continued)

The amount of Council employer contributions to the defined benefit section of the Local Government Superannuation Scheme
and recognised as an expense for the year ended 30 June 2020 was $422,023. The last valuation of the Scheme was performed
by Mr Richard Boyfield, FIAA on 30 June 2019, and relates to the period ended 30 June 2019.

Council's expected contribution to the Scheme for the next annual reporting period is $416,605.

The estimated employer reserves in the Scheme for the Pooled Employers at 30 June 2020 is:

Employer reserves only * $millions Asset Coverage
IAssets 1,695.2

Past Service Liabilities 1,773.2 95.6%
WVested Benefits 1,757.5 96.5%

* excluding member accounts and reserves in both assets and liabilities.

The share of this deficit that is broadly attributed to Council is estimated to be in the order of 0.58% or $452,400 as at 30
June 2019.

Council's share of that deficit cannot be accurately calculated as the Scheme is a mutual arrangement where assets and
liabilities are pooled together for all member councils. For this reason, no liability for any deficiency or gain for any surplus
is recognised in Council's accounts. Council has a possible obligation that may arise should the Scheme require immediate
payment to correct any future deficiency.

The key economic long term assumptions used to calculate the present value of accrued benefits are:

[nvestment return 5.75% per annum
|8a|ary inflation * 3.5% per annum
[ncrease in CPI 2.5% per annum

* Plus promotional increases

The contribution requirements may vary from the current rates if the overall sub-group experience is notin line with the actuarial
assumptions in determining the funding program; however, any adjustment to the funding program would be the same for all
sponsoring employers in the Pooled Employers group. Please note the estimated employer reserves financial position above

is a preliminary calculation, and once all the relevant information has been received by the Scheme's Actuary, the final end
of year review will be completed around November/December 2020.

(ii) Statewide Mutual

Council is a member of Statewide Mutual, a mutual pool scheme providing liability insurance to local government.
Membership includes the potential to share in either the net assets or liabilities of the Mutual depending onits past performance.
Council's share of the net assets or liabilities reflects Council's contributions to the Mutual pool and the result of insurance

claims within each of the Mutual years.

The future realisation and finalisation of claims incurred but not reported to 30 June 2020 may result in future liabilities or
benefits as a result of past events that Council will be required to fund or share in respectively.

(iii) StateCover Mutual Limited
Council is a member of StateCover Mutual Limited and holds a partly paid share in the entity.

StateCover Mutual Limited is a public company providing workers compensation insurance cover to the NSW local government
industry and specifically Council.

Council has a contingent liability to contribute further equity in the event of the erosion of the company's capital base as a

result of the company's past performance and/or claims experience or as a result of any increased prudential requirements
from APRA.
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Note 20. Contingencies (continued)

These future equity contributions would be required to maintain the company’s minimum level of net assets in accordance
with its licence requirements.

(iv) Other guarantees

During the 2018/19 year, Council provided a bank guarantee for $10,000 relating to an easement over an independent party's
land. The bank guarantee remains in place as at 30 June 2020.

Since year end, Council has provided a second bank guarantee of $10,000 relating to another easement over an independent
party's land.

Council has provided no other guarantees other than those listed above.
2. Other liabilities
(i) Third party claims

The Council is involved from time to time in various claims incidental to the ordinary course of business including claims for
damages relating to its services.

Council believes that it is appropriately covered for all claims through its insurance coverage and does not expect any material
liabilities to eventuate.

(ii) Potential land acquisitions due to planning restrictions imposed by Council
Council has classified a number of privately owned land parcels as local open space or bushland.
As a result, where notified in writing by the various owners, Council will be required to purchase these land parcels.

At reporting date, reliable estimates as to the value of any potential liability (and subsequent land asset) from such potential
acquisitions has not been possible.

3. Contingent liabilities
(i) Contingent Remediation Wark

During 2019, Council identified two sites where future potential remediation work may be required to comply with environmental
reguirements.

The two sites are:

(1) the former Armidale Gas Works site, which may require certain land and waterway rehabilitation work; and

(2) the Guyra recycling centre and waste transfer station, previously used as the Guyra Landfill, which may require certain
rehabilitation work to ensure the long term capping of the site.

In relation to the former Armidale Gas Works site, Council continues to test and monitor the site for contamination and leaching.

At this stage, there is no present obligation for Council to incur costs of remediation. Council continues to work with the
relevant authorities to monitor the site. Shound the ongoing testing and monitoring indicate leaked contamination and leaching,
remediation may be required to further rehabilitate the site.

In relation to the Guyra Recycling Centre and Waste Transfer Station (formerly the Guyra Landfill site), during 2020, in

consultation with the environmental regulator, Council has determined the site requires remediation work and the costs
associated with this work have been recognised as a provision for rehabilitation, as included in Note XX above.
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Note 20. Contingencies (continued)

ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED

(i) Infringement notices/fines

Fines and penalty income, the result of Council issuing infringement notices is followed up and collected by the Infringement
Processing Bureau.

Council's revenue recognition policy for such income is to account for it as revenue on receipt.

Accordingly, at year end, there is a potential asset due to Council representing issued but unpaid infringement notices.

Due to the limited information available on the status, value and duration of outstanding notices, Council is unable to determine
the value of outstanding income.
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Note 21. Financial risk management

Risk management

Council's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including (1) price risk, (2) credit risk, (3) liquidity risk and (4) interest
rate risk.

The Council's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council.

Council does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore not subject to foreign currency risk.
Financial risk management is carried out by Council's finance section under policies approved by the Council.

The fair value of Council's financial assets and financial liabilities approximates their carrying amount.

Carrying value Carrying value Fair value Fair value
$'000 2020 2019 2020 2019
Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 20,856 11,040 20,856 11,040
Receivables 9,487 12,684 12,560 12,684
Investments
- ‘Financial assets at amortised cost’ 51,295 58,236 51,295 58,236
Total financial assets 81,638 81,960 84,711 81,960
Financial liabilities
Payables 8,161 7.431 7.124 6,736
Loans/advances 23,777 26,763 23,777 26,763
Lease liabilities 279 - - -
Total financial liabilities 32,217 34,194 30,901 33,499

Fair value is determined as follows:

+ Cash and cash equivalents, receivables, payables — are estimated to be the carrying value that approximates market
value.

* Borrowings and held-to-maturity investments — are based upon estimated future cash flows discounted by the current
market interest rates applicable to assets and liabilities with similar risk profiles, unless quoted market prices are
available.

+ Financial assets classified (i) ‘at fair value through profit and loss’ or (ii) ‘available-for-sale’ — are based upon quoted
market prices (in active markets for identical investments) at the reporting date or independent valuation.

Council's objective is to maximise its return on cash and investments whilst maintaining an adequate level of liquidity and
preserving capital.

Council's finance area manages the cash and Investments portfolio with the assistance of independent advisors.
Council has an investment policy which complies with the Local Government Act 1993 and Ministerial Investment order 625.
This policy is regularly reviewed by Council and its staff and an investment report is tabled before Council on a monthly basis
sefting out the portfolio breakup and its performance as required by Local Government regulations.
The risks associated with the instruments held are:

* Price risk — the risk that the capital value of Investments may fluctuate due to changes in market prices, whether

the changes are caused by factors specific to individual financial instruments or their issuers or are caused by factors
affecting similar instruments traded in a market.
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Note 21. Financial risk management (continued)

+ Interest rate risk — the risk that movements in interest rates could affect returns and income.
+ Liquidity risk — the risk that Council will not be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

« Credit risk — the risk that the investment counterparty will not complete their obligations particular to a financial
instrument, resulting in a financial loss to Council — be it of a capital or income nature.

Council manages these risks (amongst other measures) by diversifying its portfolio and only purchasing investments with high
credit ratings or capital guarantees.

Council also seeks advice from independent advisers before placing any funds in cash equivalents and investments.

(a) Market risk — price risk and interest rate risk

The impact on result for the year and equity of a reasonably possible movement in the price of investments held and interest
rates is shown below. The reasonably possible movements were determined based on historical movements and economic
conditions in place at the reporting date.

Increase of values/rates Decrease of values/rates
$'000 Profit Equity Profit Equity
2020
Possible impact of a 1% movement in interest rates 513 513 (513) (513)
2019
Possible impact of a 1% movement in interest rates 582 582 (582) (582)
continued on next page ... Page 69 of 89

Attachment 1 Page 114



Attachment 1 General Purpose Financial Statements 2020 (updated draft)

. . . Fi ial Stat ts 2020
Armidale Regional Council e Faiemens

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020
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(b) Credit risk
Council's major receivables comprise (i) rates and annual charges and (ii) user charges and fees.

Council manages the credit risk associated with these receivables by monitoring outstanding debt and employing stringent
debt recovery procedures. Council also encourages ratepayers to pay their rates by the due date through incentives.

The credit risk for liquid funds and other short-term financial assets is considered negligible, since the counterparties are
reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure to individual customers, specific industry
sectors and/or regions.

The level of outstanding receivables is reported to Council monthly and benchmarks are set and monitored for acceptable
collection performance.

Council makes suitable provision for doubtful receivables as required and carries out credit checks on most non-rate debtors.

There are no material receivables that have been subjected to a re-negotiation of repayment terms.

Credit risk profile

Receivables - rates and annual charges

Credit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of Council to secure a charge over the land relating to the
debts — that is, the land can be sold to recover the debt. Council is also able to charge interest on overdue rates and annual
charges at higher than market rates which further encourages the payment of debt.

Not yet <1 year 1-2 years 2-5years > 5 years
$'000 overdue overdue overdue overdue overdue Total
2020
Gross carrying amount - 1,411 230 253 112 2,006
2019
Gross carrying amount - 1,115 391 246 - 1,752

Receivables - non-rates and annual charges

Council applies the simplified approach for non-rates and annual charges debtors to provide for expected credit losses
prescribed by AASB 9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision. To measure the expected credit losses,
non-rates and annual charges debtors have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

The loss allowance provision as at 30 June 2020 is determined as follows. The expected credit losses incorporate forward-
looking information.

Not yet 0-30 days 31 - 60 days 61 - 90 days > 91 days

$ 000 overdue overdue overdue overdue overdue Total
2020

Gross carrying amount 5,601 1,274 246 131 621 7,873
Expected loss rate (%) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 38.00% 3.00%
ECL provision - - - - 236 236
2019

Gross carrying amount 6,165 2,213 474 1,163 1,366 11,381
Expected loss rate (%) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 16.55% 1.99%
ECL provision - - - - 226 226
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Note 21. Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

Payables, lease liabilities and borrowings are both subject to liquidity risk — the risk that insufficient funds may be on hand to
meet payment obligations as and when they fall due.

Council manages this risk by monitoring its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels and maintaining an adequate cash buffer.
Payment terms can (in extenuating circumstances) also be extended and overdraft facilities utilised as required.

Borrowings are also subject to interest rate risk — the risk that movements in interest rates could adversely affect funding
costs and debt servicing requirements. Council manages this risk through diversification of borrowing types, maturities and
interest rate structures. The finance team regularly reviews interest rate movements to determine if it would be advantageous
to refinance or renegotiate part or all of the loan portfolio.

The timing of cash flows presented in the table below to settle financial liabilities reflects the earliest contractual settlement
dates. The timing of expected outflows is not expected to be materially different from contracted cashflows.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the undiscounted contracted cash flows for non-lease liabilities and therefore the
balances in the table may not equal the balances in the Statement of Financial Position due to the effect of discounting.

Weighted

average  Subject payable in: Actual

interest to no 1-5 Total cash carrying
$'000 rate  maturity 1 Year Years > 5 Years outflows values
2020
Trade/other payables 0.00% 40 5,631 - - 5,671 7,399
Loans and advances 5.71% - 4,237 19,276 6,900 30,413 23777
Total financial liabilities 40 9,868 19,276 6,900 36,084 31,176
2019
Trade/other payables 0.00% - 6,736 - - 6,736 6,736
Loans and advances 5.42% - 4.441 19,051 11,248 34,740 26,763
Total financial liabilities - 11,177 19,051 11,248 41,476 33,499
Loan agreement breaches
No breaches of any loan agreements occurred during the year.
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Note 22. Material budget variations

Council's original financial budget for 2019/20 was adopted by the Council on 29 July 2020 and is unaudited.

While the Income Statement included in this General Purpose Financial Statements must disclose the original budget adopted
by Council, the Local Government Act 1993 requires Council to review its financial budget on a quarterly basis, so that it is
able to manage the various variations between actuals versus budget that invariably occur throughout the year.

This note sets out the details of material variations between Council's original budget and its actual results for the year as
per the Income Statement — even though such variations may have been adjusted for during each quarterly budget review.

Material variations represent those variances between the original budget figure and the actual result that amount to 10%
or more.

Variation Key: F = Favourable budget variation, U = Unfavourable budget variation.

2020 2020 2020
$'000 Budget Actual - -- Variance --------
REVENUES
Rates and annual charges 32,939 33,409 470 1% F
User charges and fees 20,084 18,091 (1,993) (10)% U

Ongoing severe drought conditions had a significant impact on water usage charges and this is the major reason for the
unfavourable variance.

Other revenues 3,005 2,786 (219) (M% U

Operating grants and contributions 11,216 14,557 3,341 30% F
Favourable result relates to grant funding received for drought relief ($1.4m) and bushfire and drought stimulus ($1.5m) that
was not in the original budget.

Capital grants and contributions 13,650 21,567 7,917 58% F
Unfavourable variance relates to the review of the capital program during the financial year to defer some projects where it
was not expected they could be completed by 30 June 2020. This resulted in the deferral of both capital expenditure and
grant income.

Interest and investment revenue 2,106 1,376 (730) (35)% U
Unfavourable variance relates to the negative impact from a drop in interest rates from when the budget was originally
forecast.

Rental income 632 872 240 38% F

The reason for the favourable variance is that the facilities lease income was higher than forecast.

EXPENSES
Employee benefits and on-costs 25,332 23,750 1,582 6% F
Borrowing costs 1,469 2,000 (531) (36)% U
Unfavourable variance relates to the recognition of discount amortisation associated with landfill remediation. This was not
budgeted for.
Materials and contracts 14,792 21,274 (6,482) (44)% U

Unfavourable variance relates to the additional costs associatied with the drought response ($3.6m), RMCC ordered works
exceeded budget by $2m but were claimed back from RMS, additional expenditure relating to bushfire response and
cleanup ($1.2m) was also incurred, most of which has been claimed under section 44 natural disaster funding
arrangements. There were around 30.9m in operational costs incurred that related to grant expenditure where Council was
the auspicing body. This was not included in the original budget.
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Note 22. Material budget variations (continued)

2020 2020 2020
$'000 Budget Actual - -- Variance =--=----
Depreciation and amortisation 16,484 17,594 (1,110) (M% U

Unfavourable variance largely relates to increased depreciation on water and sewerage network assets.

Other expenses 9,865 8,231 1,634 17% F

Around $1m of the original budget related to fuel and registration expenses for Council fleet. The actual costs have been
reported against materials and contracts, which is the predominant reason for the favourable budget variation.

Net losses from disposal of assets - 1,454 (1,454) w U
The net result from disposal of assets was not budgeted for.

Revaluation decrement / impairment of IPP&E - 2,099 (2,099) © U
The impact of infrastructure revaluation was not budgeted for.

Operating result from discontinued operations - (40,446) 40,446 w F

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities 32,175 20,022 (12,153) (38)% U
The unfavourable variance relates to a higher level of cashoutflows relating to materials and contracts and other expenses.

Cash flows from investing activities (33,049) (7,220) 25,829 (78)% F
The favourable variance relates to lower cash outllows relating to purchase of PPE. The original budget included a much
higher level of capital expenditure than the end of year budget position.

Cash flows from financing activities (2,952) (2,986) (34) 1% U
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Note 23. Boundary adjustments

$ '000

The Local Government (Armidale and Inverell - Alteration of Boundaries) Proclamation 2019 was effective from 1 July 2019,
The object of the Proclamation is to alter the boundaries between the local government areas of Armidale Regional Council
and Inverell Shire Council, so that the localities known as Tingha, Bassendean, Howell, Stanborough, Bundarra, Georges Creet
New Valley and The Basin (collectively referred to as Tingha) which comprise approximately 800 square kilometres, and which
previously lay within the Armidale Regional local government area adjacent to that boundary, became part of the Inverell

Shire Council local government area.

The transfer of assets from Armidale Regional Council included roads, land and buildings, water and sewer infrastructure
assets and some other minor miscellaneous assets. These assets were transferred to Inverell Shire Gouncil on 1 July 2019

for nil consideration.

Actual

Loss on boundary adjustment 2020
Assets and liabilities transferred to Inverell Shire Council (40,4486)
(40,446)

The written down value of the assets transferred is as follows:

Asset Category $'000
Operational Land 351
Community Land 23
LUR 62
Buildings 1,030
Other Structures 19
Roads 19,096
Bridges 295
Footpaths 355
Bulk Earthworks 9,605
Stormwater drainage 3,028
Water Supply 1,782
Sewerage 4,731
Other 69
Total Assets 40,446

Council believes the carrying amounts are not materially different from their fair values as at the date of transfer.

The fair value of the net assets transferred has been shown as a loss from boundary adjustments in the Income Statement.
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Note 24. Fair Value Measurement

The Council measures the following asset and liability classes at fair value on a recurring basis:
— Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

The fair value of assets and liabilities must be estimated in accordance with various accounting standards for either recognition
and measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a ‘level’ in the
fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

(1) Assets and liabilities that have been measured and recognised at fair values

2020 Fair value measurement hierarchy
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Date of Quoted  Significant  Significant
latest prices in  observable unobserv-
$'000 valuation active mkts inputs  able inputs Total

Recurring fair value measurements
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Operational Land 30/6/19 - - 25,608 25,608
Gommunity Land 30/6/19 - - 27,516 27,516
Land Under Roads 300619 - - B57 657
Buildings (specialised and non-specialised) 30/6/18 - - 61,760 61,760
Infrastructure Assets 300617 - - 689,265 689,265
Other Assets (excludes Landfill & quarry assets also carried
at cost) - - 11,783 11,783
Total infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment - - 816,589 816,589
2019 Fair value measurement hierarchy
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Date of Quoted  Significant  Significant
latest prices in  observable unobsery-
§'000 valuation  active mkts inputs  able inputs Total

Recurring fair value measurements
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Operational Land 30/6118 - - 21,312 21,312
Community Land 30/6/18 - - 19,882 19,882
Land Under Roads 30/6119 - - 721 721
Buildings (specialised and non-specialised) 30/6/18 - - 65,164 65,164
Infrastructure Assets 3006117 - - 715,043 715,043
Other Assets (excludes Landfill & quarry assets also carried

at cost) - - 10,709 10,709
Total infrastructure, property, plant and

equipment - - 832,831 832,831

Note that capital WIP is not included above since it is carried at cost.
(2) Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 and level 3 fair values
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Note 24. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

Pre-amble
Where Council is unable to derive fair valuations using quoted market prices of identical assets (ie. level 1 inputs) Council
instead utilises a spread of both observable inputs (level 2 inputs) and uncbservable inputs (level 3 inputs).

The fair valuation techniques Council has employed while utilising level 2 and level 3 inputs are as follows:
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPP&E)

Operational Land

This asset class comprises all of Council's land classified as Operational Land under the NSW Local Government Act 1993.
The key uncbservable input fo the valuation is the price per square metre. Generally, fair value is the most advantageous price
reasonably obtainable by the seller and the most advantageous price reasonably obtained by the buyer. This is not necessarily
the market selling price of the asset, rather, it is regarded as the maximum value that Council would rationally pay to acquire
the asset if it did not hold it, taking into account quoted market price in an active and liquid market, the current market price
of the same or similar asset, the cost of replacing the asset, if management intend to replace the asset, the remaining useful
life and condition of the asset; and cash flows from the future use and disposal.

Community Land

Valuations of all Council’s Community Land and Council managed land were based on either the Unimproved Capital Value
(UCV) provided by the Valuer-General or an average unit rate based on the UCV for similar properties where the Valuer-
General did not provide a UCV having regard to the highest and best use for this land. As these rates were not considered to
be observable market evidence they have been classified as Level 3.

Community Land was brought in at fair value following the engagement of an external, independent and qualified valuer to
determine the fair value of Community Land at 30 June 2018.

Buildings

The approach taken with buildings, estimated the replacement cost of each building by componentising the buildings into
significant parts with different useful lives and taking into account a range of factors. While all buildings were physically
inspected and the unit rates based on square metres could be supported from market evidence (Level 2), other inputs (such
as obsolescence) require extensive professional judgement, and impact significantly on the final determination of fair value.
In forming valuations of each building, the market to which the asset could be sold in was taken into account and compared
back against the cost. Many of the buildings council owns are specific purpose and valued using current replacement cost
approach, and as such, these assets were classified as having been valued using Level 3 valuation inputs.

Buildings were brought in at fair value following the engagement of an external, independent and qualified valuer to determine
the fair value of Buildings at 30 June 2018.

Infrastructure Assets (Roads, Bridges, Footpaths, Bulk Earthworks, Stormwater Drainage, Water Supply Network,
Sewerage Network, Other Structures and Other Assets)

Infrastructure assets are specialised assets which do not have an active market. Therefore, in determining the fair value Council
uses current replacement cost approach. This valuation approach requires consideration of the following factors (valuation
techniques): (1) Appropriate componentisation of complex assets; (2) Unit rates for each component based on the on-cost
to a market participant buyer; and (3) Condition assessment (obsolescence).

Transport Assets (Roads, Bridges, Footpaths, Bulk Earthworks and Stormwater Drainage) were last revalued by merged
councils using internal and credible external valuers at 30 June 2015. In bringing in these assets into the Council, the assets
underwent additional desk revaluation with the help of the independent, external valuer at 12 May 2016.

Water and Sewerage Infrastructure Assets were revalued at 30 June 2017 by an independent, external valuer.

Other Structures and Other Assets were brought in at fair value from merged councils which engaged external, independent
valuers to determine the fair value at 12 May 2016.

Other Assets (Plant & Equipment, Office Equipment, Heritage Collections and Artworks)
Other Assets are not revalued every five years. The depreciated cost of the asset category is considered a close proxy for
fair value.

All of Council's non-financial assets are considered as being utilised for their highest and best use.
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Note 24. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

(3) Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)

a. The following tables present the changes in level 3 fair value asset classes.

Operational Community Infrastructure

$'000 land land Buildings assets Other assets Total
2019

Opening balance 21,815 18,913 68,395 715,607 11,399 837,129
Transfers from/(to) another asset class - - (779) 1,414 - 635
Purchases (GBV) - - 948 8,024 2,012 10,984
Disposals (WDV) (503) (31) (316) {2,313) (595) (3,758)
Depreciation and impairment - - {3,084) (13,050} (2,107} (18,241)
FV gains — other comprehensive income - - - 6,082 - 6,082
Closing balance 21,312 19,882 65,164 715,764 10,709 832,831
2020

Opening balance 21,312 19,882 65,164 715,764 10,709 832,831
Transfers from/{to) another asset class - - 21 27,256 - 27,467
Purchases (GBV) - - 270 3,879 2,271 6,420
Disposals (WDV) (697) (460) {1,637) (42,618} (504) (45,918)
Depreciation and impairment - - (2,248) (13,832) {2,157) (18,237)
FV gains — other comprehensive income 4,989 8,094 - (527} 1,464 14,020
Closing balance 25,604 27,516 61,760 689,922 11,783 816,585
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Note 25. Related party disclosures

(a) Key management personnel

Key management personnel (KMP) of the council are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the council, directly or
indirectly.

The aggregate amount of KMP compensation included in the Income Statement is:

$ '000 2020 2019

Compensation:

Short-term benefits 1,311 1,104
Post-employment benefits 84 69
Other long-term benefits 36 31
Total 1,431 1,204

(b) Other transactions with KMP and their related parties

Other transactions that occur between KMP and their related parties and Council, as part of Council delivering a public service objective (e.g. access by KMP to use library facilities or
Council swimming pools), occur on an arm's length basis, with no additional benefits being provided to KMP over and above those benefits provided to the public.

There are no other disclosures to be made by KMP.
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Note 26. Events occurring after the reporting date

Council is not aware of any material or significant 'non-adjusting events' that should be disclosed.

Page 79 of 89

Attachment 1 Page 124



Attachment 1 General Purpose Financial Statements 2020 (updated draft)

. . . Fil ial Stat ts 2020
Armidale Regional Council panci Sietemen

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 27. Statement of developer contributions

Under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, Council has significant obligations to provide Section 7.11 (contributions towards provision or improvement of amenities or
services) infrastructure in new release areas.

It is possible that the funds contributed may be less than the cost of this infrastructure, requiring Council to borrow or use general revenue to fund the difference.

Summary of contributions and levies

as at 30/06/19 as at 30/06/20
Contributions (Expenditure) & Cumulative
received during the year Interast  Othar Adjustments Internal Held as internal
Opening Cash N h eamed during borrowing restricted borrowings
$ ‘000 Balance as on-cas in year year (to)/from asset duef{payable)
Drainage 45 - - 1 - - 46 -
Roads 786 179 - 17 - - 982 -
Traffic facilities 18 - - - - - 18 -
Parking 32 - - 1 - - 33 —
Open space 329 - - 5 - - 335 -
Community facilities 52 - - 1 - - 53 -
Other 8 - - - - - 8 -
Bushfire 1 - - - - - 1 _
Street Trees 81 3 - 2 - - 86 -
57.11 contributions — under a plan 1,352 182 - 28 - - 1,562 -
§7.12 levies — under a plan 977 302 - 20 (174) - 1,125 -
Total $7.11 and S$7.12 revenue under
plans 2,329 484 - 48 (174) - 2,687 -
§7.4 planning agreements 54 - - 1 - - 55 -
S64 contributions 3.419 544 - 73 (12) - 4,024 -
Total contributions 5,802 1,028 - 122 (186) — 6,766 —
S7.11 Contributions — under a
plan
CONTRIBUTION PLAN
continued on next page ... Page 80 of 89
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Note 27. Statement of developer contributions (continued)

as at 30/06/19 as at 30/06/20
Confributions (Expenditure) & Cumulative
received during the year Interest  Other Adjustments Internal Held as internal
e e
Drainage 45 - - 9 - - 46 -
Roads 786 179 - 17 - - 982 -
Traffic facilities 18 - - - - - 18 -
Bridges 32 - - 1 - - 33 -
Open space 329 - - 3 - - 335 -
Community facilities 52 - - 1 - - 53 -
Bushfire 1 - - - - - 1 -
Street Trees 81 3 - 2 - - 86 -
Other 8 - - - - - 8 -
Total 1,352 182 - 28 - - 1,562 -
S§7.12 Levies — under a plan
CONTRIBUTION PLAN
Other 977 302 - 20 (174) - 1,125 -
Total 977 302 - 20 (174) - 1,125 -
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Financial Statements 2020

$'000
Income Statement by fund

Income from continuing operations

Rates and annual charges

User charges and fees

Interest and investment revenue

Other revenues

Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes
Rental income

Total income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations

Employee benefits and on-costs

Borrowing costs

Materials and contracts

Depreciation and amortisation

Other expenses

Net losses from the disposal of assets

Revaluation decrement /impairment of IPPE

Total expenses from continuing operations

Operating result from continuing operations

Discontinued operations
Net profit/(loss) from discontinued operations
Net operating result for the year

Net operating result attributable to each council fund

Net operating result for the year before grants and
contributions provided for capital purposes

NB. All amounts disclosed above are gross — that is, they include internal charges and recoveries made between the funds.

11} General fund refers to all of Council's activities except for its water and sewer activities which are listed separately.

continued on next page ...

General ' Water Sewer
2020 2020 2020
25,390 2,252 5,767
12,526 5378 187
438 586 352
1,826 71 889
13,073 1,484 -
17,846 3,027 694
ar2 - -
71,971 12,798 7,889
20,169 2,293 1,288
1,672 328 _
11,767 7,403 2,104
12,201 3,233 2,160
7,008 598 625
1,454 - -
2,099 - -
56,370 13,855 6,177
15,601 (1,057) 1,712
(33,933) (1,782) (4,731)
(18,332) (2,839) (3,019)
(18,332) {2,839) (3.019)
(36,178) (5,866) (3.713)
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Note 28. Result by fund (continued)

$'000

Statement of Financial Position by fund

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Receivables

Inventories

Contract assets

Other

Non-current assets classified as ‘held for sale’

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Receivables

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Right of use assets

Total non-current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Payables

Income received in advance
Contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Borrowings

Provisions

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities

Borrowings

Provisions

Total non-current liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
Net assets

EQUITY

Accumulated surplus
Revaluation reserves
Council equity interest

Total equity

Financial Statements 2020

General ' Water Sewer
2020 2020 2020
20,856 - -
8,778 24,594 17,923
7.505 1,382 288
539 - 488
3,072 - -
606 - -
1,359 — -
42,715 25,976 18,699
312 - -
580,930 173,064 102,990
279 — -
581,521 173,064 102,990
624,236 199,040 121,689
8,152 9 -
104 170 -
7,245 - -

26 = =

2,568 263 -
7,329 - -
25,424 442 -
253 - -
16,719 4,227 -
23,987 — -
40,959 4,227 -
66,383 4,669 -
557,853 194,371 121,689
540,587 187,638 117,516
17,266 6,733 4173
557,853 194,371 121,689
557,853 194,371 121,689

NB. All amounts disclosed above are gross — that is, they include internal charges and recoveries made between the funds. Assets and
liahilities shown in the water and sewer columns are restricted for use for these activities.

(1) General fund refers to all of Council's activities except for its water and sewer activities which are listed separately.
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Note 29(a). Statement of performance measures — consolidated results

Amounts Indicator Prior periods Benchmark
$'000 2020 2020 2019 2018
1. Operating performance ratio
Total continuing operating revenue excluding
capital grants and contributions less operating
expenses 2 (1,758)  (2.47)% 1.09% (8.73)% >0.00%
Total continuing operating revenue excluding 71,091
capital grants and contributions
2. Own source operating revenue ratio
Total continuing operating revenue excluding all
grants and contributions 56,534  §1.01%  6551% 71.27% >60.00%
Total continuing operating revenue ' 92,658
3. Unrestricted current ratio
Current assets less all external restrictions 25,058
Current liabilities less specific purpose liabilities 9,480 2.64x 2.40x 1.55x >1.50x
4. Debt service cover ratio
Operating result before capital excluding interest
and depreciation/impairment/amortisation ' 17,836
Principal repayments (Statement of Cash Flows) 4,986 3.58x 4.47x 2-81x =2.00x
plus borrowing costs (Income Statement)
5. Rates, annual charges, interest and
extra charges outstanding percentage
Rates, annual and exira charges outstanding 2,036 o o o o
Rates, annual and extra charges collectible 35477 5.74% 5.46% 6:86% <10.00%
6. Cash expense cover ratio
Current year's cash and cash equivalents plus all
term deposits 72,151 11.47 12.57 13.37 >3.00
Monthly payments from cash flow of operating 6,293 mths mths mths mths

and financing activities

i1} Excludes fair value increments on investment properties, reversal of revaluation decrements, reversal of impairment losses on
receivables, net gain on sale of assets and net share of interests in joint ventures and associates using the equity method and includes
pensioner rate subsidies

12} Excludes impairment/revaluation decrements of IPPE, fair value decrements on investment properties, net loss on disposal of assets
and net loss on share of interests in joint ventures and associates using the equity method
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Note 29(b). Statement of performance measures — by fund

General Indicators ° Water Indicators Sewer Indicators Benchmark
$°000 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

1. Operating performance ratio

Total continuing operating revenue excluding capital grants and contributions less

operating expenses "2 2.42%  (1.02)% (41.80)% 11.41% 14.15% (0.86)% >0.00%
Total continuing operating revenue excluding capital grants and contributions '

2. Own source operating revenue ratio
Total continuing operating revenue excluding capital grants and contributions '

Total confinuing operaling revenue 57.04% 66.10% 64.75% 55.10% 91.20% 93.39% >60.00%

3. Unrestricted current ratio
Current assets less all external restrictions
Current liabilities less specific purpose liabilities

2.64x 2.40x L 74.50x eo 760.30x >1.50x

4. Debt service cover ratio

Operating result before capital excluding interest and
depreciation/impairment/amortisation ’

Principal repayments (Statement of Cash Flows) plus borrowing costs (Income
Statement)

3.50x 3.53x (1.11)x 7.59% 158.90x  102.75x >2.00x

5. Rates, annual charges, interest and extra charges outstanding percentage
Rates, annual and extra charges outstanding

- 6.36% 2.87% 3.32% 6.97% 4.24%  15.34% <10.00%
Rates, annual and extra charges collectible

6. Cash expense cover ratio
Current year’s cash and cash equivalents plus all term deposits 5.10 5.34 142.45 61.31 57.61 56.86 >3.00
Payments from cash flow of operating and financing activities mths mths mths mths mths mths mths

(1) - (2) Refer to Notes at Note 31a above.
(3) General fund refers to all of Council's activilies except for its water and sewer aclivities which are listed separately.
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Financial Statements 2020

Note 29(c). Statement of performance measures — consolidated results (graphs)

1. Operating performance ratio

Purpose of operating
performance ratio

Commentary on 2019/20 result

2019/20 ratic  (2.47)%

This ratio measures Council's
achievermnent of containing
operaling expenditure within
operaling revenue.

The 2020 operating result has deteriorated from the
previous year pradominantly due to the impact of
drought on water usage charges and the creation of
additional costs. The drought is estimated to have
cost Council $6.3 million in the 2019/20 financial year
and this has had a significant negative impact on the
level of Council's water reserve. Negative impacts on
the operaling result were also created by COVID-19
and this is estimated to have cost Council around
50.7 million in 2019/20.

15
10
2 5
2 1.09
e -
-2.47
5
-10 -8.73
2018 2019 2020
Benchmark: — = (.00%

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #28

2. Own source operating revenue ratio

Ratio achieves benchmark

Il Ratio is outside benchmark

100
Commentary on 2019/20 result
Purpose of own source
80 i i .
7127 Dperallng revenue ratio 2019/20 ratio 61.01%
65.51
61.01
= 60 — —
e
=
= 40 This ratio is impacted by the level of grants and
This ratio measures fiscal contributions received and is slightly lower in 2020
flexibility. It is the degree of than the previous year due to a higher level of capital
reliance on external funding contributions recognised as revenue. This ratio is
20 sources such as operating grants also impacted by new accounting standards, which
and contributions. have changed how Council must recognise grant
revenues.
2018 2019 2020
Benchmark: — = 50.00% Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #28

3. Unrestricted current ratio

I Ratio is outside benchmark

35
Commentary on 2019/20 result
3 Purpose of unrestricted
2.64 i .
- 240 current ratio 2019/20 ratio  2.64x
- 2
P
= . 1.53
€ 1.5 — — . .
This ratio has improved slightly from the previous
w;okiﬁss:assitgz\ige:?su:g;itmm year, Gradual improvement is as a result of
1 satisfgoblip ations in the shf}rl strategies infroduced in 20189 to improve the
term forth e Enmsmct ad activities operating result and cash position, which occurred to
0.5 £ Council avoid Council falling below the minimum level
oree ’ recommended by the Office of Local Government.
2018 2019 2020
Benchmark: — = 1.50x Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #28

continued on next page ...

Il Ratio is outside benchmark
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Note 29(c). Statement of performance measures — consolidated results (graphs)

4. Debt service cover ratio

8
) Commentary on 2019/20 result
7 Purpose of debt service
6 cover ratio 2019/20 ratio  3.58x
-9 4.47
%
54 3.58
o
©a 2.81
This ratio measures the
3 availability of operating cash to This ratio has deteriorated from the previous year
service debl including interest, due to the operaling result position worsening.
1 principal and lease payments
2018 2019 2020
Benchmark: — =2.00x Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #28

Il Ratio is outside benchmark

5. Rates, annual charges, interest and extra charges outstanding percentage

12.5
Purpose of rates, Commentary on 2019/20 result
annual charges,
10 interest and extra -
charges outstanding 2019/20 ratio  5.74%
e 73 6.86
2 5.46 5.74
2 § This ratio has worsened slightly from the previous
5 To assess the impact of year although this is not unexpected with the impact
uncallectad rates ﬁnpd annual of COVID-19 impacting on ratepayers' ability to pay.
charges on Council's liquidity and In response to COVID-19 Council has also ceased
2.5 the gde oy of reoovgr egforls external debt recovery action and has permitted
auacy v ' payment deferrals and arrangements to be putin
place.
2018 2019 2020
Benchmark: — < 10.00% Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #28

6. Cash expense cover ratio

I Ratio is outside benchmark

17.5
Commentary on 2019/20 result
15 Purpose of cash
13.37 P .
e 1257 - expense cover ratio 2019/20 ratio  11.47 mths
w
5 10
E
2 7.5
a R I The ratio has worsenad slightly from the previous
« nt::u?gﬂnwoﬁ:: :g;j::silt::n year and reflects the consolidated result including the
5 continue payina for its immediate Genaral, Water and Sewerage funds. Council retains
ex ensespw‘f;hgul additional cash funds in the Water and Sewerage reserves for the
2.5 P inflow purposes of infrastructure replacement, which is
: important as they are essential community services.
2018 2019 2020
Benchmark: — = 3.00mths Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #28 I Ratio is outside benchmark
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Independent Auditor's Report

Please uplift Council's Audit Report PDF (opinion) for inclusion in the GPFS report (via the Home screen).
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Independent Auditor's Report

Please uplift Council's Audit Report PDF (commentary) for inclusion in the GPFS report (via the Home screen).

Page 89 of 89

Attachment 1 Page 134



Attachment 2 Special Purpose Financial Statements 2020 (updated draft)

Armidale Regional Council

SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2020

ARMIDALE

Unleash the Opportunities egional Council

Attachment 2 Page 135



Attachment 2 Special Purpose Financial Statements 2020 (updated draft)

. . . S ial P Fi jal Stat ts 2020
Armidale Regional Council pecialuipose Fnaneial siatements

Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Contents Page

Statement by Councillors & Management 3

Special Purpose Financial Statements

Income Statement — Water Supply Business Activity 4
Income Statement — Sewerage Business Activity 5
Statement of Financial Position — Water Supply Business Activity 6
Statement of Financial Position — Sewerage Business Activity 7
Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies 8
Auditor's Report on Special Purpose Financial Statements 1

Background

i. These Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared for the use by both Council and the Office of Local
Government in fulfilling their requirements under National Competition Policy.

ii. The principle of competitive neutrality is based on the concept of a 'level playing field’ between persons/entities competing
in a market place, particularly between private and public sector competitors.

Essentially, the principle is that government businesses, whether Commonwealth, state or local, should operate without
net competitive advantages over other businesses as a result of their public ownership.

iii. For Council, the principle of competitive neutrality and public reporting applies only to declared business activities.

These include (a) those activities classified by the Australian Bureau of Statistics as business activities being water
supply, sewerage services, abattoirs, gas production and reticulation, and (b) those activities with a turnover of more
than $2 million that Council has formally declared as a business activity (defined as Category 1 activities.

iv. In preparing these financial statements for Council's self-classified Category 1 businesses and ABS-defined activities,
councils must (a) adopt a corporatisation model and (b) apply full cost attribution including tax-equivalent regime
payments and debt guarantee fees (where the business benefits from Council's borrowing position by comparison with
commercial rates).
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Statement by Councillors and Management made pursuant to the Local Government Code of
Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

The attached Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:
« the NSW Government Policy Statement ‘Application of National Competition Policy to Local Government',
+ the Division of Local Government Guidelines ‘Pricing and Costing for Councif Businesses — A Guide to Competitive
Neutrality’,
« the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting,
« the NSW Office of Water Best-Practice Management of Water and Sewerage Guidelines.
To the best of our knowledge and belief, these statements:
+ present fairly the operating result and financial position for each of Council's declared business activities for the year, and
+ accord with Council's accounting and other records.
« present overhead reallocation charges to the water and sewerage businesses as fair and reasonable.
We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 23 September 2020.

Viv May John Rayner
Interim Administrator Acting General Manager
23 September 2020 23 September 2020

Kelly Stidworthy
Responsible Accounting Officer
23 September 2020
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Income Statement — Water Supply Business Activity
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$'000 2020 2019

Income from continuing operations

Access charges 2,252 2,227
User charges 5,296 9,307
Fees 82 13
Interest 586 739
Grants and contributions provided for non-capital purposes 1,484 _
Other income 71 64
Total income from continuing operations 9,771 12,350

Expenses from continuing operations

Employee benefits and on-costs 2,293 1,968
Borrowing costs 328 334
Materials and contracts 7.403 4,856
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 3,233 3,201
Loss on sale of assets - 383
Debt guarantee fee (if applicable) 135 143
Other expenses 588 582
Total expenses from continuing operations 13,990 11,467
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts (4,219) 883
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 3,027 10,064
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts (1,192) 10,947
Surplus (deficit) from discontinued operations (1,782) _
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax (2,974) 10,947
Less: corporate taxation equivalent (27.5%) [based on result before capital] - (243)
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX (2,974) 10,704
Plus accumulated surplus 190,507 179,417
Plus/less: accumulated surplus transferred as a result of boundary adjustment - -
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
- Debt guarantee fees 135 143
- Corporate taxation equivalent - 243
Closing accumulated surplus 187,668 190,507
Return on capital % (2.2)% 0.7%
Subsidy from Council 5,414 1,039
Calculation of dividend payable:
Surplus (deficit) after tax (2,974) 10,704
Less: capital grants and confributions (excluding developer contributions) (3,027) (9,700)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes - 1,004
Potential dividend calculated from surplus = 502
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i i i Special Purpose Financial Statements 2020
Armidale Regional Council pecial Purpo

Income Statement — Sewerage Business Activity
for the year ended 30 June 2020

$'000 2020 2019

Income from continuing operations

Access charges 5767 5,340
User charges 98 77
Liquid trade waste charges 60 65
Fees 29 25
Interest 352 399
Other income 889 736
Total income from continuing operations 7,195 6,642

Expenses from continuing operations

Employee benefits and on-costs 1,288 1,400
Borrowing costs - 3
Materials and contracts 2,104 2,390
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 2,160 2,208
Loss on sale of assets - 85
Other expenses 625 698
Total expenses from continuing operations 6,177 6,784
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts 1,018 (142)
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 694 469
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts 1,712 327
Surplus (deficit) from discontinued operations (4,731) -
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax (3,019) 327
Less: corporate taxation equivalent (27.5%) [based on result before capital] (280) -
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX (3,299) 327
Plus accumulated surplus 120,565 120,238

Plus/less: accumulated surplus transferred as a result of boundary adjustment - -
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:

— Corporate taxation equivalent 280 -
Closing accumulated surplus 117,546 120,565
Return on capital % 1.0% (0.1)%
Subsidy from Council - 1,565

Calculation of dividend payable:

Surplus (deficit) after tax (3,299) 327
Less: capital grants and contributions (excluding developer contributions) (694) (129)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes - 198
Potential dividend calculated from surplus - 99
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Armidale Regional Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements 2020

Statement of Financial Position — Water Supply Business Activity

as at 30 June 2020

$'000 2020 2019

ASSETS

Current assets

Investments 24,594 28,305

Receivables 1,382 2,423

Total current assets 25,976 30,728

Non-current assets

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 173,064 170,885

Total non-current assets 173,064 170,885

TOTAL ASSETS 199,040 201,613

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Payables 9 118

Income received in advance 170 -

Borrowings 263 266

Total current liabilities 442 384

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings 4,227 4,493

Total non-current liabilities 4,227 4,493

TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,669 4,877

NET ASSETS 194,371 196,736

EQUITY

Accumulated surplus 187,638 190,477

Revaluation reserves 6,733 6,259

TOTAL EQUITY 194,371 196,736
Page 6 of 11
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Armidale Regional Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements 2020

Statement of Financial Position — Sewerage Business Activity

as at 30 June 2020

$'000 2020 2019

ASSETS

Current assets

Investments 17,923 15,457

Receivables 288 ar4

Inventories 488 305

Total current assets 18,699 16,736

Non-current assets

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 102,990 108,057

Total non-current assets 102,990 108,057

TOTAL ASSETS 121,689 124,793

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Borrowings - 20

Total current liabilities — 20

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings - 3

Total non-current liabilities - 3

TOTAL LIABILITIES — 23

NET ASSETS 121,689 124,770

EQUITY

Accumulated surplus 117,516 120,535

Revaluation reserves 4,173 4,235

TOTAL EQUITY 121,689 124,770
Page 7 of 11
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. . . S ial P Fi jal Stat ts 2020
Armidale Regional Council pecialuipose Fnaneial siatements

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies

A statement summarising the supplemental accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Special Purpose Financial
Statements (SPFS) for National Competition Policy (NCP) reporting purposes follows.

These financial statements are SPFS prepared for use by Council and the Office of Local Government. For the purposes of
these statements, the Council is a non-reporting not-for-profit entity.

The figures presented in these Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition
and measurement criteria of relevant Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and Australian Accounting Interpretations.

The disclosures in these Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Local Government
Act 2093 (NSW), the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005, and the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice
and Financial Reporting.

The statements are prepared on an accruals basis. They are based on historic costs and do not take into account changing
money values or, except where specifically stated, current values of non-current assets. Certain taxes and other costs,
appropriately described, have been imputed for the purposes of the National Competition Palicy.

The Statement of Financial Position includes notional assets/liabilities receivable from/payable to Council's general fund. These
balances reflect a notional intra-entity funding arrangement with the declared business activities.

National Competition Policy

Council has adopted the principle of ‘competitive neutrality’ in its business activities as part of the National Competition Policy
which is being applied throughout Australia at all levels of government.

The framework for its application is set out in the June 1996 NSW government policy statement titled 'Application of National
Competition Policy to Local Government'.

The Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses, A Guide to Competitive Neutrality issued by the Office of Local Government
in July 1997 has also been adopted.

The pricing and costing guidelines outline the process for identifying and allocating costs to activities and provide a standard
for disclosure requirements.

These disclosures are reflected in Council's pricing and/or financial reporting systems and include taxation equivalents, Council
subsidies, return on investments (rate of return), and dividends paid.

Declared business activities

In accordance with Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses — A Guide to Competitive Neutrality, Council has declared that
the following are to be considered as business activities:

Category 1
(where gross operating turnover is over 82 million)

1.Water Supplies

Comprising the whole of the operations and assets of water supply systems. As the total annual operating revenues are greater
than $2,000,000 is is defined as a category 1 “Business Unit".

2.Sewerage Service

Comprising the whole of the operations and assets of the sewer reticulation and treatment system. As the total annual operating
revenues are greater than $2,000,000 is defined as a category 1 "Business Unit".

Monetary amounts

Amounts shown in the financial statements are in Australian dollars and rounded to the nearest one thousand dollars.

continued on next page ... Page 8 of 11
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. . . S ial P Fi jal Stat ts 2020
Armidale Regional Council pecialuipose Fnaneial siatements

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(i) Taxation equivalent charges
Council is liable to pay various taxes and financial duties. Where this is the case, they are disclosed as a cost of operations
just like all other costs.

However, where Council does not pay some taxes which are generally paid by private sector businesses, such as income
tax, these equivalent tax payments have been applied to all Council-nominated business activities and are reflected in Special
Purpose Finanncial Statements.

For the purposes of disclosing comparative information relevant to the private sector equivalent, the following taxation
equivalents have been applied to all Council-nominated business activities (this does not include Council's non-business
activities):

Notional rate applied (%)

Corpaorate income tax rate — 27.5%

Land tax — the first $692,000 of combined land values attracts 0%. For the combined land values in excess of $692,001 up
to $4,231,000 the rate is 1.6% + $100. For the remaining combined land value that exceeds $4,231,000 a premium marginal
rate of 2.0% applies.

Payroll tax — 5.45% on the value of taxable salaries and wages in excess of $850,000.

Income tax

An income tax equivalent has been applied on the profits of the business activities.

Whilst income tax is not a specific cost for the purpose of pricing a good or service, it needs to be taken into account in terms
of assessing the rate of return required on capital invested.

Accordingly, the return on capital invested is set at a pre-tax level - gain/(loss) from ordinary activities before capital amounts,
as would be applied by a private sector competitor. That is, it should include a provision equivalent to the corporate income
tax rate, currently 27.5%.

Income tax is only applied where a gain/ (loss) from ordinary activities before capital amounts has been achieved.

Since the taxation equivalent is notional — that is, it is payable to Council as the ‘'owner’ of business operations - it represents
an internal payment and has no effect on the operations of the Council. Accordingly, there is no need for disclosure of internal
charges in the SPFS.

The rate applied of 27.5% is the equivalent company tax rate prevalent at reporting date. No adjustments have been made
for variations that have occurred during the year.

Local government rates and charges

A calculation of the equivalent rates and charges payable on all category 1 businesses has been applied to all land assets
owned or exclusively used by the business activity.

Loan and debt guarantee fees

The debt guarantee fee is designed to ensure that council business activities face ‘true’ commercial borrowing costs in line
with private sector competitors.

In order to calculate a debt guarantee fee, Council has determined what the differential borrowing rate would have been
between the commercial rate and Council's borrowing rate for its business activities.

(i) Subsidies

Government policy requires that subsidies provided to customers, and the funding of those subsidies, must be explicitly
disclosed.

continued on next page ... Page 9 of 11
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. . . S ial P Fi jal Stat ts 2020
Armidale Regional Council pecialuipose Fnaneial siatements

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Subsidies occur when Council provides services on a less-than-cost-recovery basis. This option is exercised on a range of
services in order for Council to meet its community service obligations.

Accordingly, ‘subsidies disclosed’ (in relation to National Competition Policy) represents the difference between revenue
generated from ‘rate of return’ pricing and revenue generated from prices set by Council in any given financial year.

The overall effect of subsidies is contained within the Income Statement of each reported business activity.
(iii) Return on investments (rate of return)

The NCP policy statement requires that councils with Category 1 businesses ‘would be expected to generate a return on capital
funds employed that is comparable to rates of return for private businesses operating in a similar field'.

Such funds are subsequently available for meeting commitments or financing future investment strategies.
The actual rate of return achieved by each business activity is disclosed at the foot of each respective Income Statement.
The rate of return is calculated as follows:

Operating result before capital income + interest expense

Written down value of |,PP&E as at 30 June

As a minimum, business activities should generate a return equal to the Commonwealth 10 year bond rate which is 0.88%
at 30/6/20.

(iv) Dividends
Council is not reguired to pay dividends to either itself (as owner of a range of businesses) or to any external entities.

Local government water supply and sewerage businesses are permitted to pay an annual dividend from its water supply or
sewerage business surplus.

Each dividend must be calculated and approved in accordance with the Department of Industry — Water guidelines and must
not exceed:

+  50% of this surplus in any one year, or
= the number of water supply or sewerage assessments at 30 June 2019 multiplied by $30 (less the payment for tax
equivalent charges, not exceeding $3 per assessment).

In accordance with the Department of Industry — Water guidelines a Dividend Payment form, Statement of Compliance,

Unqualified Independent Financial Audit Report and Compliance Audit Report are required to be submitted to the Department
of Industry — Water.

Page 10 of 11
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Special Purpose Financial Statements 2020

Armidale Regional Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Please upift Council's Audit Report PDF (opinion) for inclusion in the SPFS report (via the Home screen).
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Oven Mountain Pumped Hydro Energy Storage Project Critical State Significant Infrastructure
Declaration

A ’ .
A%k | Planning, s s
NSw | Industry & o CoRreee
GOVERNMENT E nVI ro n m e nt Email:  iwan.davies@planning.nsw.gov.au

Mr John Rayner

Acting General Manager
Armidale Regional Council
PO Box 75A

ARMIDALE NSW 2350

By email: council@armidale.nsw.gov.au

26 October 2020

Dear Mr Rayner

Oven Mountain Pumped Hydro Energy Storage Project
Critical State Significant Infrastructure Declaration

On 4 September 2020 the Minister for Planning and Public Spaces, Hon Rob Stokes MP, declared the Oven
Mountain Pumped Hydro Energy Storage Project to be “Critical State Significant Infrastructure” (CSSI) under
Section 5.13 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

The CSSI declaration includes the proposed development of a 600 MW pumped hydro energy storage and
generation project, and grid connection, including:

+ development of new pumped hydroelectric and generation works on land adjacent to the Macleay
River near Georges Junction;

« construction of a new underground pumped hydroelectric power station;

* development of upper and lower reservoirs constructed on an ephemeral tributary of the Macleay
River, including tunnels between the reservoirs; and

» associated upgrades and additions to the electricity transmission network, between the generation
works and the Armidale substation.

As the declaration applies to the development of infrastructure on land within the Armidale Regional Local
Government Area, | have attached a copy of the declaration for your records.

| have also attached a flow chart which outlines the key steps in the CSSI assessment process, which includes
comprehensive environmental assessment and community consultation in a similar manner to other State
significant projects.

At this stage, the Department expects to receive a request for environmental assessment requirements for the
preparation of the Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) in late 2020, and the EIS expected in late 2021.

The Department will publicly exhibit the EIS once received and | would encourage Council to make a formal
submission at that time. The Department will also be undertaking additional community consultation in the
region during the exhibition period.

| wish to assure you that the Department will be closely consulting with Armidale Regional Council throughout
the assessment process to ensure the interests and concerns of Council and the local community are fully
considered in the merit assessment of the project.

In the meantime, the Department would be happy to provide you with a briefing or further information about
the project and the CSSI assessment process.

4 Parramatta Square, 12 Darcy Street Parramatta NSW 2150 | Locked Bag 5022, Parramatta NSW 2124 | planning.nsw.gov.au
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Declaration

lwan Davies, Team Leader Energy Assessments, is the key point of contact for the Department on this project.
If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to contact Ilwan on 02 9274 6296 or

iwan.davies@planning.nsw.gov.au.

Yours sincerely,

==
Lo

Nicole Brewer
Director
Energy Assessments

Attachment 1 — Environmental Planning and Assessment Amendment (Oven Mountain Pumped Hydro Energy
Storage Project) Order 2020

Attachment 2 — Critical State Significant Infrastructure Flow Chart

4 Parramatta Square, 12 D;‘_‘HC.'J: Street Parramatta NSW 2150 | Locked B;_‘l-;:i 5022, Parramatta NSW 2124 | plamlillg nsw.gov.au
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Oven Mountain Pumped Hydro Energy Storage Project Critical State Significant Infrastructure
Declaration

New South Wales

Environmental Planning and Assessment
Amendment (Oven Mountain Pumped Hydro
Energy Storage Project) Order 2020

under the

Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979

[, the Minister for Planning and Public Spaces, in pursuance of sections 5.12(4) and 5.13 of the
Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, make the following Order.

ROBERT STOKES, MP
Minister for Planning and Public Spaces

Explanatory note

The object of this Order is to declare certain development for the purposes of the Oven Mountain Pumped
Hydro Energy Storage Project to be State significant infrastructure and ecritical State significant
infrastructure. The project includes development of pumped hydroelectric and generation works, electrical
transmission lines and other ancillary development.

This Order is made under sections 5.12(4) and 5.13 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act
1979,

Published LW 4 September 2020 (2020 No 524)
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Environmental Planning and Assessment Amendment (Oven Mountain Pumped Hydro Energy Storage
Project) Order 2020 [NSW]

Environmental Planning and Assessment Amendment (Oven
Mountain Pumped Hydro Energy Storage Project) Order 2020

under the

Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979

1 Name of Order
This Order is the Environmental Planning and Assessment Amendment (Oven
Mountain Pumped Hydro Energy Storage Project) Order 2020.

2 Commencement

This Order commences on the day on which it is published on the NSW legislation
website,

Page 2 Published LW 4 September 2020 (2020 No 524)
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Declaration

Environmental Planning and Assessment Amendment (Oven Mountain Pumped Hydro Energy Storage
Project) Order 2020 [NSW]
Schedule 1 Amendment of State Environmental Planning Policy (State and Regional Development) 2011

Schedule 1 Amendment of State Environmental Planning
Policy (State and Regional Development) 2011

Schedule 5 Critical State significant infrastructure
[nsert at the end of the Schedule, with appropriate clause numbering—

Oven Mountain Pumped Hydro Energy Storage Project

(1) Development for the purposes of the Oven Mountain Pumped Hydro Energy
Storage Project.

(2) The Oven Mountain Pumped Hydro Energy Storage Project includes the
following—
(a) pumped hydroelectric and generation works, including—

(i) subsurface works to facilitate exploratory geotechnical
investigations, and

(i1)  new upper and lower water storage dams and reservoirs, and

(iii)  a new underground pumped hydroelectric power station, and
(iv)  water and access tunnels, surge tank, intake and outlet structures,
and

(v) water offtake works to connect the water storage dams and
reservoirs to the Macleay River, and

(vi) decommissioning works and rehabilitation of the site,
(b) transmission works, including—

(i) new electricity transmission lines to connect the pumped
hydroelectric and generation works to the existing clectricity
transmission network, and

(ii) new electricity transmission infrastructure and upgrades on the
existing transmission network back to, or in the vicinity of, the
existing substation at Armidale, and

(i11)  augmentation of the existing substation, or the construction and
operation of a new substation near Armidale,

(¢) ancillary development, including (but not limited to) access roads,

on-site quarry and related infrastructure, utilities and communications

infrastructure, construction accommodation, construction compounds
and construction power supply.

(3) The development is to be carried out on land in the local government areas of
Armidale Regional Council and Kempsey Shire Council.

(4) The development does not include the carrying out of surveys, sampling,
environmental investigations, geotechnical borehole drilling, test drilling, test
excavations or other tests or investigations for the purposes of the preliminary
design and assessment of the Project.

Page 3 Published LW 4 September 2020 (2020 No 524)
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Declaration

SSl and CSSI - Assessment Pathway

A proposed development may be declared to be State
significant infrastructure (SSl) by a State environmental
planning policy (SEPP) or by an order of the Minister that
amends a SEPP for that purpose

The Minister may also declare development that is SSI to be
critical State significant infrastructure (CSSI) if it is
considered essential to the State for economic, environmental
or social reasons

If development is declared to be SSl or CSSI, the proponent
may lodge an application with the Department. The application
is usually accompanied by a preliminary environmental
assessment of the project

The Secretary then prepares and notifies the proponent of
environmental assessment requirements and places them on
the Department's website

The proponent prepares an Environmental Impact Statement
(EIS) which addresses the Secretary's environmental
assessment requirements

The proponent lodges the EIS with the Department

The Department publicy exhibits the EIS and seeks
submissions from council, agencies and the community

The Department forwards submissions to the proponent and
requests a response from the proponent and a Preferred
Infrastructure Report (if changes to the project are required)

The proponent lodges its response to submissions (and a
Preferred Infrastructure Report if required)

The Department finalises its assessment and any conditions

of approval in accordance with applicable NSW Government

policies and guidelines, and in consulatation with council and
agencies

The Minister makes a determination to approve or disapprove
the carrying out of the SSI| or CSSI

Any approval would be subject to a range of conditions to
avoid, minimise and manage the potential impacts of the
project

The Department then issues a notice of determination
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Northern Tablelands Koala Conservation Project
Advisory Committee (PAC)

Terms of Reference version 1 26 November 2020

The Southern New England Landcare Steering Committees Policy should be read in conjunction with
these Terms of Reference.

1 NAME

The name of the committee is the Northern Tablelands Koala Conservation Project Advisory
Committee (the Committee).

2 PURPOSE

The Committee is responsible for providing advice to the Project Manager (Southern New England
Landcare) on the direction and implementation of the Northern Tablelands Koala Conservation
Project (the Project).

The core responsibilities of the committee are to:
* provide input to the Project Plan
* consider the potential social, economic, environmental and financial impacts of the committee
recommendations
* consider and advise the Project Manager on any matter referred to the committee
* provide input into the strategic direction of the Project.

3 SCOPE AND AUTHORITY

The committee makes recommendations about Project direction and implementation to the Project
Manager. The Committee has no formal decision-making authority.

4 MEMBERSHIP

Committee members will include one or more representatives from each partner organisation
involved in the Project. Each organisation will nominate their preferred member to the committee,
however one or more representative from each partner organisation may attend advisory
committee meetings. If necessary, there will be only one vote per organisation. Membership of the
advisory committee will be reviewed in one year.

e Armidale Regional Council (1 member)

e Department of Planning, Industry and Environment (Project Sponsor) (1 member)
e Northern Tablelands Local Land Services (1 member)

e Stringybark Ecological (1 member)

e Southern New England Landcare (Chair and Executive Officer)
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From time to time the committee may agree to add new members from other organisations
involved in the project. New members will be appointed by a majority vote of the committee.

The size of the committee is limited to a maximum of ten members.

5 CHAIRPERSON

The Advisory Committee will determine the chairperson of the committee.

6 EXECUTIVE TEAM/SECRETARIAT

The role of Executive Officer will be filled by the Project Office with administrative support provided
by the Project Support Officer.

The responsibilities of the Executive Team are to:
* provide executive support to the committee
* prepare the meeting agenda and minutes
* prepare a report to the Project Manager containing the minutes and any comments on the
recommendations made by the committee
* provide to the committee the outcome and resolutions of the Project Manager regarding each
recommendation.

7 MEETING ARRANGEMENTS

The committee will meet at least quarterly, with capacity for additional meetings as needed.

Meeting schedules and locations will be determined by the Chairperson, in consultation with
committee members.

Arrangements for meetings will be as follows:

* the agenda and supporting material will be circulated at least three (3) business days prior to a
meeting

* any supporting material or papers that are confidential will be clearly marked as such and
remain confidential to members

* any general business items tabled during meetings will be short, requiring no more than five (5)
minutes’ presentation or discussion

* meetings will be run in a fair and independent manner and support open and constructive
dialogue

* minutes will be circulated within seven (7) days of each meeting

* minutes of the meeting will be submitted to the Project Manager as soon as possible after the
meeting

* aquorum of members is required at all meetings and shall be 50% plus one of all voting
members.
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8 TERM OF THE COMMITTEE

The committee will function for the duration of the Northern Tablelands Koala Conservation Project.

9 DELEGATIONS

The committee has no delegations from the Project Sponsor or Project Manager.

10 FINANCIAL ARRANGEMENTS

Unless expressly resolved by the Project Manager, the committee has no powers to commit or
expend any project funds.

11 MEETING PRINCIPLES

Committee meetings should be:
e Transparent: decisions are made in a way that is open and accountable
e Informed: decisions are made based on relevant, quality information
e Inclusive: decisions respect the diverse needs and interests of interested stakeholders
e Respectful: meeting attendees treat each other with respect
e Effective: meetings are well organised, effectively run and skilfully chaired

e Orderly: meeting attendees behave in a way that contributes to the orderly conduct of the
meeting.

12 REMUNERATION OF MEMBERS

Members of the committee will not be remunerated for meeting attendance and no reimbursement
of travel expenses will be payable, unless in special circumstances.

13 MEDIA LIAISON

All media about the project is subject to approval by the Project Sponsor.

14 STANDARD AGENDA ITEMS

Agendas will be determined by the Chairperson. As a minimum, agendas will include the following
standard items:

* meeting open and apologies
* confirmation of previous minutes and matters arising
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* declarations of interest

* reports on priority actions

* reports and advice on project progress and emerging issues

* specific items varying from meeting to meeting

* review of relevant meeting actions or follow up requirements (action log)
» formal close.

15 REVIEW

Review of these Terms of Reference will be conducted towards the end of the project, 30 June 2021
or as requested by committee.
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DRAFT Project Charter
Northern Tablelands Koala Conservation Project

A Saving our Species Partnership

Document History

Version Issue Date Changes Edited by

1.0 8 July 2020 First draft Mike Roache

1.1 17 July 2020 Comments and edits Project partners

Document Endorsement

Organisation Signature

Project Sponsor | Department of Planning, Industry and | Mike Roache
Environment

Project Manager | Southern New England Landcare Karen Zirkler

Project Partner | Armidale Regional Council Jocelyn Ullman

Project Partner | Uralla Shire Council Des Anderson

Project Partner | Northern Tablelands Local Land Elsie Baker
Services

Project Partner | Stringybark Ecological David Carr
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Introduction

Saving our Species (SoS) is the NSW Government’s framework for threatened species
conservation. The program identifies actions needed to conserve each species in the wild for
the next 100 years, including the cost of these actions and who should carry them out.

The Northern Tablelands region has been identified as an important area for the future of
koalas. It has several koala populations that are not subject to the same population and
development pressures as those on the coast. The region may also be more resilient to the
impacts of a changing climate.

Dedicated staff capacity has been identified as a limiting factor in delivering successful
conservation programs. In the 2020-21 financial year, the Northern Tablelands Koala
Conservation Project will be part-funded by the Saving our Species Iconic Koala Project. The
funding will support the employment of a dedicated project officer who can build and support
a network of stakeholders committed to securing koalas in the wild in the region. Significant
in-kind contributions from partner organisations will ensure the ambitious objectives of the
project can be met.

This project charter outlines the purpose of the project, the way the project will be structured
and how it will be successfully implemented. It describes the project:

e vision, objectives, scope and deliverables (what the project sets out to achieve)
o stakeholders, roles and responsibilities (who will take part in it)
e resources, financial and quality plans (how it will be undertaken).

Vision

The Northern Tablelands Koala Conservation Project aims to secure the survival of koalas in
the wild throughout the Northern Tablelands region for at least the next 100 years.

Objectives

In the first year, the project will:

¢ employ a dedicated koala project officer to coordinate conservation effort across
project partners and other stakeholders

e consolidate and strengthen a regional network of koala conservation stakeholders
«—identify and map priority areas for koala habitat restoration

¢ build community and landholder awareness of koalas and their habitat requirements
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Where

host landholder field days and planning workshops promoting koala conservation
actions

apply for and secure grant funds for koala conservation actions
collate and distribute known data sources for koalas and their habitat in the region

participate in the development of a collaborative fire management plan for koala
habitat

participate in the development of a koala disease plan of action

identify landholders willing to enter private land conservation agreements and
facilitate engagement with the Biodiversity Conservation Trust

improve the project’s understanding of koala populations and habitat in the region.
possible, the project will:

facilitate on-ground conservation works for koala conservation, such as habitat
restoration planning, weed control, and stock exclusion

support councils to develop koala plans of management or koala management
strategies

strengthen connections with wildlife carers to explore opportunities for improved
koala rehabilitation, including locating suitable release sites

contribute to koala surveys and tracking.

Project Scope

The geographic scope of the project will be limited during the first year (July 2020 to June

2021).

Targeted landholder engagement will be limited to the area bounded by Guyra in the north,
Uralla to the south, Wollomombi in the east and Thunderbolts Way in the west.

Project communications will extend across the Northern Tablelands.

Expansion of geographic scope will be discussed by project partners towards the end of the
first year of the project.
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Figure 1: Indicative geographic scope for the project in year one (Formal project scope map

to be added by Project Advisory Committee)

Deliverables

Table 1: Proposed project outputs and delivery dates

Output Date

Employ a dedicated koala conservation project officer

September 2020

Establish a Project Advisory Committee with terms of reference
agreed by project partners

August 2020

Develop a Project Implementation Plan for the whole project in
consultation with Project Advisory Committee (including
Communications Plan and Risk Management Plan)

September 2020

Host a forum of regional koala conservation stakeholders to:
identify priorities
facilitate a regional fire management plan for koala habitat
in the region
facilitate a koala disease plan of action for the region

November 2020

Collate known data sources for koalas and their habitat in the region

November 2020

Identify and map priority areas for koala habitat restoration

December 2020
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Host community field day that promotes the project, tracking & March 2020
survey processes, practical koala protection and launches an
expression of interest process for involvement

Facilitate community contributions to koala surveys and tracking July 2020 - June
2021

Approach landholders in key koala habitat areas to discuss options June 2021
to manage and protect koala habitat including revegetation works,
Landholder Management Agreements or Biodiversity Conservation
Trust Conservation Covenants

Secure grant funding for on-ground conservation works June 2021
Draft regional fire management plan for koala habitat June 2021
Draft koala disease plan of action for the region June 2021

Stakeholders

The Northern Tablelands Koala Conservation Project will benefit from the participation of all
interested stakeholders.

Partners in the project to date include:
o Department of Planning, Industry and Environment
e Southern New England Landcare Ltd
¢ Armidale Regional Council
e Uralla Shire Council
e Northern Tablelands Local Land Services
e Stringybark Ecological

Project partners and the project officer have engaged or will seek to engage additional
project partners, including:

e Other councils
e Armidale Tree Group

e Biodiversity Conservation Trust
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e Local Abariginal Land Councils

e University of New England

e University of Sunshine Coast

e Wildlife carers.

e Sustainable Living Armidale - Wildlife Habitat Group

Other key stakeholders include private and public landholders with koala populations and/or

koala habitat on their properties.

Roles and Responsibilities

Table 2: Proposed roles and responsibilities of partner organisations

Organisation

Responsibilities

Project Sponsor

Department of
Planning, Industry
and Environment

Establishing the project.

Setting the project requirements,
timetable, resources and budget.
Drafting the funding agreement.
Providing seed funding.

Approving the detailed project plan.
Approving any major changes in
scope.

Receiving project reports and taking
appropriate action.

Resolving issues escalated by the
Project Manager/Project Advisory
Committee.

Approving project announcements.

Project Manager,
Project Advisory
Committee
member

Southern New
England Landcare
Ltd

Host
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]

the project, which includes:

Recruit Project Officer
Develop Project Officer work plan
Supervise project implementation by
Project Officer
Project administration, including
financial
Report quarterly to the Project
Advisory Committee, on project:

o Finances

o Implementation plan

o Communications plan

o Risk management plan
Advise and consider advice from the
Project Advisory Committee.
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Project Officer

Southern New
England Landcare
Ltd

Develop Project Implementation Plan
(inc Communications Plan and Risk
Management Plan) in consultation
with the Project Advisory Committee.
Manage project budget

Coordinate delivery of project outputs.
Prepare quarterly reports to Project
Advisory Committee against project
finances, implementation plan,
communications plan and risk
management plan.

Prepare reports to Project Sponsor as
required.

Partner, Project
Advisory
Committee
member

Armidale Regional
Councll

Partner, Project
Advisory
Committee
member

Uralla Shire Council

Partner, Project

Northern Tablelands

Participate in Project Advisory
Committee meetings and activities.
Assist the Project Sponsor with the
definition of the project vision and
objectives.

Provide advice and in-kind
contributions to the Project Manager
to help deliver project outputs.
Review project actions prior to the
completion of each project milestone.
Ensure all business risks are

Advisory Local Land Services identified and managed accordingly.
Committee e Ensure good project governance.
member e Contribute to koala conservation
. . within their sphere of influence.
zg\r/tigg:’ Project Eg(')?gyi?glk e Provide available data sources
Commit¥ee 9 including koala sightings data,
member mapping and previous studies.
e Provide network contact details and
facilitate introductions.
Affiliate Biodiversity e Provide support and advice to Project
Conservation Trust Officer/Project Advisory Committee
when required.
Affiliate Local Aboriginal e Provide support and advice to Project
Land Councils Officer/Project Advisory Committee
when required.
Affiliate Wildlife carers e Provide support and advice to Project

Officer/Project Advisory Committee
when required.

Project Governance

Attachment 2

Page 163




Attachment 2 Draft Project Charter - NT Koala Conservation Project

The Project Sponsor will draft the Project funding agreement, in consultation with the Project
Manager and Project Advisory Committee.

The Project Manager will be responsible for making day-to-day decisions about the project.
The level of delegation of decision-making to the Project Officer will be at the discretion of
the Project Manager.

The Project Advisory Committee will be subject to agreed terms of reference. The Advisory
Committee will provide detailed recommendations about project direction and implementation
to the Project Manager.

The following high-level commitments have been agreed by the project partners. Further
work will be required to develop these details.

e The Project Advisory Committee is to meet quarterly.

¢ Recruitment for the Project Officer should be a transparent process, with input from
the Project Advisory Committee.

o The Project Officer should present a progress report at each Advisory Committee
meeting.

o The Project Advisory Committee will provide comments on progress reports before
the Project Manager sends them to the Project Sponsor.

o The Project Manager will provide project financial reports to the Project Advisory
Committee before each quarterly meeting.

e All project partners must disclose any actual or potential conflicts as soon as possible
after the relevant facts come to the partner’s knowledge. The Project Advisory
Committee must deal with any conflicts in a transparent way, according to their terms
of reference.

Resources

The Project Manager will develop a detailed financial plan as part of the Project Plan. The
Project Advisory Committee has discussed and agreed an indicative budget breakdown.

Subject to approval by DPIE, Saving our Species proposes to contribute $170,000 + GST to
the project for the 2020-21 financial year.

Table 3: Proposed indicative budget allocation

Indicative proportion of budget (%)

Project officer salary and on-costs
55
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Project administration fee including monitoring of
project delivery 15

Operating Costs

Vehicle costs 5

Habitat management and other on-ground works 15

Koala population monitoring: surveys, mapping
and data collation 6

Community engagement & education costs:
products, advertising & promotion 4

Part of the project officer’s duties
Landholder engagement

Consolidating and strengthening networks

Facilitating delivery of project outputs

Applying for grants

TOTAL 100 %

Partner Contributions

The project will be most successful when all project partners can make substantial
contributions of time, capacity, resources and expertise.

Table 4: Proposed partner contributions

Organisation Contributions (In-kind)

Department of Planning, e Provision of draft resources and templates

Industry and Environment e Member of Project Advisory Committee

Southern New England e Provision of project officer mentoring, promotional
Landcare material development, access to landholder database,

eNews and Landchat newsletters, field day equipment.
e Chair and Executive Officer of Project Advisory
Committee

Armidale Regional Council e Member of Project Advisory Committee

e Ongoing recording of Koala sightings provided by
members of the public to Council, and forwarding to

Attachment 2 Page 165



Attachment 2 Draft Project Charter - NT Koala Conservation Project

BioNET.

e Planting of koala food trees in parks and gardens to
provide food and shelter trees.

e Weed expertise and control.

e Control of wandering dogs within town areas, education
as to roaming dogs being a threat to koalas, normal
Council Ranger workload. Education to the community
about dog control issues.

¢ Armidale Regional Council has received funding for a
Koala Management Strategy through DPIE and any
information that we obtain through the development of
this document can be shared.

e Mapping and associated resources, development of
education programs and associated resources.

o Potentially fire-related information, mapping from control
centre.

e Council is also enacting EcCoARC, Councils “Greenprint”
document and will continue to advocate the protection of
koalas through our strategic planning work.

Uralla Shire Council e Member of Project Advisory Committee.

Northern Tablelands Local e Provision of 1 week of monitoring surveys in the target

Land Services region, with opportunity for the project officer to be
involved

e Promotion of materials through our media channels
e Data of previous monitoring surveys.
e Member of Project Advisory Committee

Stringybark Ecological e Provision of data and mapping from previous projects;
promotion of project through website and social media;
loan of specialised equipment.

e Member of Project Advisory Committee.

Success Criteria

The Northern Tablelands Koala Conservation Project will be considered successful in June
2021 according to the following criteria:

e The Project Manager and Project Officer, with the assistance of the Project Partners,
have delivered all agreed outputs in the project funding agreement.

e Additional funding is secured to extend the project beyond June 2021.
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Assumptions

e Southern New England Landcare Ltd will successfully recruit a Project Officer and
provide all administrative and management support for that officer.

o The Project Sponsor and Project Partners will contribute expertise, capacity and in-
kind contributions to the project where possible.

e The Project Advisory Committee will provide sensible and timely advice to the Project
Manager. The Project Manager will carefully consider all advice from the Project
Advisory Committee before making decisions.

Constraints

e Seed funding provided by Saving our Species will likely be insufficient to deliver all
project outputs.

e Significant in-kind contributions from Project Partners will be required, as well as
grant funds if available.

Risks

The most apparent risks associated with the project are documented here. Risks are defined
as any event which may adversely affect the ability of the project to deliver the outputs.
Risks may be strategic, environmental, financial, operational or technical in nature.

The Project Manager will include a more detailed risk management plan in the Project
Implementation Plan.

Table 5: Project risks and mitigating actions

Risk Description | Likelihood Impact Mitigating Actions

Inability to recruit Low Very High Offer a competitive salary and attractive
project officer benefits

Available resources | Medium High Ensure Project Partner contributions are
are insufficient to clearly described from the outset of the
deliver project project.

outputs Apply for grants to top up project funding

and leverage other opportunities.

COVID 19 High High Ensure a Plan B for events and activities
restrictions impede that will be affected by restrictions e.g.
project progress online meeting and workshops.
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Drought and/or Medium Very High Be prepared to allow for extensions to
bushfire impedes on landholder projects.

ground works

throughout the

project timeframe

Landholders Medium High Be prepared to spend more project officer

reluctant to
participate

time to engage landholders. Build
community-wide support for project
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Project Implementation Plan, Communications

Southern
New England

Landcare

Plan & Risk Management Plan

Project title:

IKP-NTAP SOS Northern Tablelands Koala Partnership Project

Contract number:

IKP-NTAP

Name of organisation:

Southern New England Landcare Ltd

Contact person:

Des Andersen

Contact number:

02 6772 9123

Contact email: des.andersen@snelandcare.org.au
Grant funding: 5170 000

Additional Funding STBD

In-kind co-contributions: STBD

Project planning phase:

1 July 2020 to 15 October

Project start date:

9 September, 2020

Project end date:

30 June 2021

Evaluation Report:

31 July 2021
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Project Description

Southern New England Landcare Ltd will host a Koala Conservation Project Officer, to be supported by funding
from the NSW Department of Planning Industry and Environment Saving Our Species program.

The dedicated Project Officer, with assistance from Southern New England Landcare, will work with a Project
Advisory Committee, prepare a Project Implementation Plan, host a forum of regional stakeholders, collate data
sources and maps of priority areas, coordinate community field events, coordinate community contributions to
koala tracking programs, engage landholders, source grants, facilitate a draft regional fire management plan and a
regional koala disease plan of action. The project will conclude onJune 30, 2021.

What does the project plan to achieve?

The project aims to ensure the survival of the Koala in the wild in this region for the next 100 years and beyond.
The project provides direct actions to engage the community to help support koala conservation using recent data
related to koala populations in the southern New England area.

The project scope, referred to as the Area of Interest (Aol), encompasses an area extending north to south from
Black Mountain to Uralla and east to west from Wollomombi to Invergowrie. Survey data has shown that this area
supports transient and sedentary Koala populations.

The project will raise community awareness throughout the Aol in order to engage the community in direct koala
conservations actions. These actions include:

e Habitat restoration and establishment on farms and in or adjacent to key koala corridors

e Reducing koala Key Threatening Processes (KTPs) through community involvement in education and
awareness raising programs

e Enhancing conservation of koala populations by increasing community invelvement in “citizen science”
contributions via recording and reporting processes.

How will the project achieve these outcomes?

The project will be underpinned by activities to raise community awareness of the local koala population and the
subsequent actions that enhance the survival probability of koalas in the wild.

From October to December the project will establish partnerships with key stakeholders and use various media
platforms, including online and print media, radio and targeted face to face events to initiate community interest
and generate awareness of project activities and events. This stage will include the formation of stakeholder
interest groups and the investigation of external links to the project that potentially provide additional support for
on-ground activities.

From January to June the project will focus on delivering field events to instigate activities that directly involve
community groups in specific koala conservation projects. These will include landholder focussed field events
aiming to protect and enhance koala habitat corridors, general community targeted activities to enhance
understanding of available actions to report koala sightings, response mechanisms when encountering sick, injured
or threatened koalas and actions to help mitigate KTP's such as providing watering stations, reducing dog attacks
and alleviating vehicle strikes.

This stage will include the development of a Koala Disease Action Plan and Koala Bushfire Action Plan.
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Project Team

The Project Team includes project staff, contractors, consultants, volunteers and any other individuals and/or

organisations involved in the project.

Organisation or group

Role / Interest

Southern New England Landcare Ltd Project
Manager

Oversee and manage the delivery of project milestones

Southern New England Landcare Ltd Project
Officer

Primary person responsible for the delivery of project milestones

Southern New England Landcare Ltd Support
Officer

Provide support to the Project Manager and Project Officer

Project Advisory Committee

To review and provide guidance and advice to the project team at
scheduled intervals

Key Stakeholders (Regional Forum)

Provide key information and, where appropriate, resources to assist
the project.

Consultants

A paid service to be engaged by the project team. Consultants will
provide professional services to assist the project where relevant
and appropriate.

Local Native Tree nurseries

Co-promote project/events.

Participate in events as appropriate as guest
speakers/presenters/participants.

Participating Landholders

Provide direct actions through in-kind contributions to help establish
and restore Koala habitat and reduce the impact of Key Threatening
Processes.

Participating Community Members

Provide direct actions to help reduce the impact of Key Threatening
Processes.
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Project Implementation Plan
Activity Who is Activity
Activity Description Delivery Target Delivery Method esponsible? completion
H I 1 H
Milestone s date(s)
M1 Complete contract | Sign contract and invoice DPIE $170,000 + 1 contract signed, 1 email Project Completed
& invoice GsT invoice sent Manager 13.8.2020
Recruit Koala Project
Conservation : : : : ] ) Manager, Completed
M2 Recruit Koala Conservation Project Officer Officer recruited NA
Project Officer Selection 22.9.2020
Panel
Establish &
maintain Project 1 meeting per quarter commencing Face to face meetings / online Project Officer 26.11.20
M3 ) ) November 2020. PAC to receive agenda and | 3 meetings € Support 25.02.21
Advisory related documents 2 weeks before meetin, teleconference Officer
Committee & 27.05.21
PIP reviewed and Deliver electronically to
Develop Project . . . . A i . Project Officer
. Develop PIP to provide reference point and | endorsed by Project Project Advisory Committee 2
M4 Implementation o ) ) ) ) ) / Support 30.11.2020
Plan guiding framework for project milestones Advisory Committee weeks prior to first scheduled Officer
Meeting 1 meeting
Regional Koala To identify shared goals, commonality with
g i . y . g L ¥ Face to face preferred but Project Officer
Conservation project priorities and existing resources and | 1 workshop/forum .
M5 . . . . may need to revert to online / Support 16.12.20
Stakeholder Forum | negotiate resource sharing and appropriate, | delivered A )
A ] option Officer
project related actions.
Collate Data Collate information including Koala
Sources sightings, available GIS, anecdotal records
and digital sources (i.e. BioNet) to generate . .
s atialginformation (re ardin I(loalég Map (physical & electronic Project Officer
Me p i & & . 1 x visual display versions), visual display and / Support 30.11.20
sightings, movements and population A )
, L . report brief. Officer
dynamics. This will support field events, on
ground actions, and disease and recovery
planning.
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Activity Who is Activity
Activity Description Delivery Target Delivery Method i completion
Milestone responsible?
date(s)
Map Priority Areas 1 x Koala map to provide spatial display of
Koala sightings, movements and population
. 1 x Koala map
dynamics.
Project Officer 30.11.20
M7 Electronic visual display / Support
1 x On Ground Works map to provide éx Tar:i;edfn Officer
spatial display of protected and restored round YVorks map 30.06.21
habitat, carer locations, drinkers and
community KTP mitigation support
networks.
Community field Regional Koala Forum plus two main events. | 2 main events = 50
events Also expose project through other ici .
pose pro) : 4 ' participants Project Officer
M8 SNELandcare project synergies such as PHN Events to be located / Support 30.06.21
Grant events and NT LLS Grant events. throughout project area o Hi:epr o
Approach industry experts as key 4 ancillary events = 50
demonstrators and speakers at events. participants
Coordinate Promote better engagement and
community information flow with landholders and the Public awareness raising via
contributions to broader community for koala conservation media, online videos social Project Officer
M9 koala tracking actions. Include communication strategies, | 5000 people reached media, print media, field days, / Support 30.06.21
programs citizen science, volunteers, on-ground ) Officer
conservation actions, awareness programs, infobrochure
and landholder engagement.
Landholder QOrganise and deliver media blitz to provide 1 Capacity building field day
engagement information to potential Iandht_Jlder‘s and At least 6 landholders | 25 Pe" M8 Project Officer
M10 gather EQI's. EOl's from SNEL file mlght also with LMAs {'Support 30.06.21
contribute. The PHN Grant events will Officer
provide a good channel to raise landholder 1 site visit per LMA
interest. The development of EOl's into
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Activity Who is Activity
Activity Description Delivery Target Delivery Method i completion
Milestone responsible?
date(s)
LMA’s should be implemented through
community events i.e. Bushfire Recovery
Partnerships. LMAs must be within or
adjacent to identified and mapped priority
areas. Dave Carr to be consulted.
Source grants for Potential grants for external funding will be | Add $25,000 to Available external or Project Officer
M11 | on ground works generated to support on ground habitat existing budget reallocation grants / Support 30.06.21
restoration and conservation works. Officer
Draft Regional Fire | Discuss using existing plan with 1x Regional Fire Written plan Project Officer
M12 | Management Plan NTLLS/ecologists to develop a plan for Management Plan / Support 30.06.21
direct response plan of action. Officer
Draft regional Koala | Discuss using existing plan with 1 x Disease Project Officer
M13 | Disease Plan of NTLLS/ecologists to develop a plan for Management Plan Written plan / Support 30.06.21
Action. direct response plan of action. Officer
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Risk Management Plan

project objectives

Risk
Activity / Outcome Potential risk Likelihood | Impact Level Treatment/action/mitigation options
M3 - Establish & maintain | Lack of time for scheduled meetings Possible Moderate | Medium Ensure meetings are scheduled in accordance with the
. . ]
Project Advisory project deliverables.
Committee
Lack of participants at scheduled Possible Moderate | Medium | Provide adequate notice and agenda prior to scheduled
meetings meetings. Provide a short list of optional meeting times.
Distribute invitations for participants.
M4 - Develop Project Insufficient resources to deliver Possible Moderate | Medium | Set realistic completion date. Project Officer and Project
Implementation Plan project outputs Manager to report progress to Project Advisory Committee.
M6 - Collate Data Sources | Insufficient resources to deliver Possible Moderate | Medium | Ensure Project Partner contributions are clearly described
project outputs from the outset of the project and obtained appropriately.
M7 - Map Priority Areas Insufficient resources to deliver Possible Moderate | Medium | Ensure Project Partner contributions are clearly described
project outputs from the outset of the project and obtained appropriately.
M5 - Regional Koala Insufficient interest and engagement | Possible Moderate | Medium | Generate interest amongst stakeholders of project outcomes
Conservation Stakeholder | from stakeholders and common benefits. Ensure specific requests for
Forum contributions is communicated clearly and obtained
appropriately.
M9 - Coordinate Insufficient interest and engagement Develop and deliver a communication strategy to sufficiently
community contributions from communit raise community awareness of the project objectives and the
yco Y Possible | Major High ¥ he project obj
to koala tracking programs role and relevance of community involvement. Develop
simple, easily accessible reporting platforms.
M8 - Community field Insufficient interest and engagement Develop and deliver a communication strategy to sufficiently
events from community Possible Major High raise community awareness of the project objectives and the
role and relevance of community involvement.
Target audience not aligned with Deliver a targeted promotional campaign to align with
8 8 Unlikely Moderate | Medium 8 P palg g

relevant landholder and community groups
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M13 - Draft regional Koala | Insufficient resources to deliver . . Communicate and engage with relevant stakeholders to
. . . Possible Moderate | Medium . )

Disease Plan of Action project outputs gather appropriate materials for the plan.

M12 - Draft Regional Fire Insufficient resources to deliver . . Communicate and engage with relevant stakeholders to

) Possible Moderate | Medium ) ]

Management Plan project outputs gather appropriate materials for the plan.

M11 - Source grants for on | Lack of grant availability Investigate and source grants from multiple sources including

ground works Possible Moderate | Medium | government, philanthropic and associated organisational

grant funding.
M10 - Landholder Insufficient interest and engagement Deliver a targeted promotional campaign to align with
628 Possible Moderate | Medium & P ) palg 6
engagement from landholders relevant landholder and community groups.
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Communication Strategy

Provides opportunities
for funded on ground
conservation works.

Deliver 2 targeted field
events February 2021 and
April 2021

presenters/demonstrators
at field events

Directly engage with
Landcare groups face to
face and phone/media

Stakeholder Impact of the project Target message Frequency / Proposed date | Communication method Evaluation method to
on this stakeholder determine effectiveness
Community Provides skills and How you can help to conserve our iconic Commence awareness Print media Number of people
knowledge in how to Koala as a species? raising in November 2020. . . attending events
duce threateni Online media
reduce threatening Engage on ground via SNEL . Number of individuals
processes Radio/TV .
events. contacting SNEL
] . Guest
Provides ability to Deliver 2 targeted field Field day evaluation
participate in Koala presentersidemons‘crators . .
events February 2021 and ) questionnaire results
conservation ) at field events
April 2021
Landholders Provides skills and How you can help to conserve our iconic Commence awareness Print media Number of landholders
knowledge in how to Koala as a species? raising in November 2020. . . engaged with a
) h : Online media dhold
reduce threatening Engage on ground via SNEL _ Landholder
processes Radio/TV Management
events.
Guest Agreement

Area of land under
Landholder
Management
Agreement

Number of landholders
engaged in KTP
mitigation and/or
reporting actions

Wildlife Carers

Direct involvement in
Disease Plan and
Bushfire recovery plan
Connecting with
community to assist
with Koala caring needs

How your role is critical in enacting Koala
Disease and Bushfire Recovery Plans

How your role as a wildlife carer can
better support the community to provide
an efficient caring process.

Regional Forum December
2020

LLS/Landcare Bushfire
recovery event

Aurora event

Face to face, online or
phone

Wildlife carers to be
directly involved in
actions that support
bushfire and disease
recovery plans
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Research and
Industry
organisations

Project charter outlines
scope for collaborative
work with research
organisations through
the Regional
Stakeholder Forum

How we can all work better together
(more effectively and efficiently) to
achieve Koala conservation?

e.g. To identify commonality with project
priorities and existing resources and
negotiate resource sharing and
appropriate, project related actions.

Regional Forum December
2020

Face to face or online

Engage key research
organisations in project
through the Regional
Stakeholder Forum.

Key researchers may
participate in project
events.

North Coast, Mid
North Coast and
Southern
Tablelands Koala
Conservation
Officers

Shared outcomes and
results of the projects
given their common
obhjectives?

How we can all work better together
{more effectively and efficiently) to
achieve Koala conservation?

To encourage, where appropriate, the
sharing of ideas, strategies and resources
that support the project.

Commencing 11 Nov 2020
then bi-monthly

Online

Meetings attended

Ecologists and
industry
professionals

This project provides
latest information for
our region on Koala
Conservation to assist
them with their work?

How we can all work better together
{more effectively and efficiently) to
achieve Koala conservation?

e.g. Approach Ecologists to provide
support to the project through knowledge
and data sharing. Ecologists to be offered

Individual meetings to be set
in October = November 2020

Face to face consultation

Engage industry
professionals in project
through discussions.

Key researchers may
participate in Regional
Stakeholder Forum and

a paid position in supporting project project events.
milestones including event presentations
and media broadcasts.
Native Tree Native nurseries will be | Communicating the need for propagating | November 2020 Face to face consultation | Sufficient and
Nurseries required to provide specific species that support Koala appropriate tube stock is
native vegetation tube | conservation in our region. Provide a available for 2021 spring
stock for proposed rough estimate of tree species and planting.
habitat establishment | approximate numbers that project will
objectives. require. Investigate opportunities for
shared on ground actions that fit within
project scope.
10
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Attachment 1 Maps showing Archery club location at 95 Rockvale Rd with recent koala sightings and
endangered woodland and location of Wollomombi laneway

Map showing Archery club location at 95 Rockvale Rd with recent koala sightings and endangered
woodland bird sightings
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Attachment 1 Maps showing Archery club location at 95 Rockvale Rd with recent koala sightings and
endangered woodland and location of Wollomombi laneway

Aerial photo showing the Archery reserve as a key element within current remnant woodland

landscape connectivity in north Armidale peri-urban area

Wollomombi “Night Soil Lane” unformed Crown road reserve
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Attachment 1 Attachment 1 - Response to Aboriginal Land Claim No 47032 and 49515

9 November 2020

Your ref: CT-Case No. 3594
Our ref: <TRIM file number(s)>

Jonathan Pope

Aboriginal Land Claim Investigation Unit

Department of Planning, Industry and Environment - Crown Lands
PO Box 2185

DANGAR NSW 2309

Dear Mr Pope
Aboriginal Land Claim No. 47032 & 49515

| refer to your letter of 29 September 2020 in relation to Aboriginal Land Claim No.s 47032 & 49515 over Lot 1079
DP 755808 and Lot 1122 DP 39591 — known as 1LI Myrtle Drive, Armidale and 44 Myrtle Drive, Armidale. The
following information is provided in response to the criteria outlined in Section 36(1) of the Aboriginal Land Rights
Act 1983.

The aerial photographs of Lot 1166 DP 721188 and Lot 1122 DP 39591 from Council’s GIS Aerial Imagery dated
October 2009 (extracted on 10 November 2020) are enclosed.

The information provided relates to the land at the date of the Land Claim (highlighted below), that is:

. Land .
Claim No . Land Claimed Lodged Reserve Status
Council

47032 Armidale Lot 1079 DP 755808 24 January 2019

Lot 1079 DP 755808 Lot 1122 DP 39591: Reserve

49515 Armidale Lot 1122 DP 39591 19 August 2019 755898 - Future Public
Requirements

1. Is the land lawfully occupied or lawfully used?
The subject land is lawfully used.

Council’s records identify Lot 1079 DP 755808 as being 1Ll Myrtle Drive, Armidale, and Lot 1122 DP 39591 as
being 44 Myrtle Drive, Armidale. Both lots are currently zoned IN1 General Industrial under Armidale Dumaresq
Local Environmental Plan (ADLEP) 2012 (See Figure 1 below).
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Figure 1: Current zoning of the subject land

Council’s property file for the subject site contains the following applications:

For 1LI Myrtle Drive, Armidale — Lot 1079 DP 755808

65

e Development application no. 10/93 — consent granted for the use of the site for tyre recycling

and storage, 18 August 1993(for both Lot 1078 & 1079 DP 755808).
For 44 Myrtle Drive, Armidale — Lot 1122 DP 39591

e Development Application no. 78/89 — consent granted for the use of the site for the outdoor
storage of construction materials, bushfire fighting equipment and plant items, involving the
erection of an open sided store and the removal of two mature trees, 23 May 1989.

e Development Application no. 163/97 — consent granted for a new building for storage of
departmental equipment submitted 27 November 1997, 1 April 1998.

It is identified on Council’s Information System that following planning constraints apply to the subject lots:

Lot & DP Constraints

Lot 1079 DP 755808 e Potentially contaminated land

e Bushfire affected

Lot 1122 DP 39591 e Flora and Fauna study

e Bushfire affected

2. Is the land needed for an essential public purpose?
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The land is unlikely to be needed for an essential public purpose. Generally, Council does not have plans to use
the land for local government purposes, other than to provide services (water/sewer etc.).

The land has been zoned for industrial purposes since 1988. The land was zoned 4(a) Industrial under Armidale
Dumaresq Local Environmental Plan 2008 (ADLEP 2008) from 2008 to 2012 when ADLEP 2008 was replaced with
ADLEP 2012. Under ADLEP 2012 Lot 1079 DP 755808 and Lot 1122 DP 39591 are both zoned IN1 General
Industrial.

The New England Development Strategy (2010), which has been adopted by Council and endorsed by the
Director-General of the Department of Planning, outlines key land use policies and principles and provides the
planning context for the preparation of LEPs up until 2032. The Strategy does not identify the land for future
essential public purposes over this timeframe.

Please contact me by email at swang@armidale.nsw.gov.au if | can be of further assistance.

Yours sincerely

Shili Wang
Strategic Planner

Encl: Aerial Imagery dated October 2009 (extracted on 10 November 2020).

Attachment 1 Page 183


mailto:swang@armidale.nsw.gov.au

Attachment 1 Armidale WTP Weekly Water Info 16112020

As at Monday, 16 November 2020 Total water storage is at 67.1%. Individual dam levels are below;

Capacity, | Current % of
Dam % Total Storage
ML Storage, ML Dam
Malpas 12266 7913 64.5% 58.9%
Puddledock 700 660 94.3% 4.9%
Guyra 463 442 95.5% 3.3%
Total Storage 13429 9015 67.1%

Malpas Dam storage in the last two years is as below (source Water NSW real time data)

ARC Water Production
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Authored by Arun Gautam, Project Engineer
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Attachment 1 POL063 Keeping of Animals (Urban Areas)

ADOPTED BY COUNCIL: [DATE TO BE COMPLETED BY GOVERNANCE]

1. PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to detail Council policy on the keeping of animals in urban areas.

2. APPLICATION

The policy applies to all residents living with the urban areas of Armidale Regional Council

3. POLICY INTENT

The main objectives of this policy are to:

° To maintain residential amenity and minimise the nuisance affects associated with the keeping of animals
in urban areas.

4. COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN OBIJECTIVES

This policy help with good governance of the community .

5. POLICY

General
The keeping of animals, specifically in relation to animal numbers or the manner in which they are kept, can be
the subject of Orders pursuant to Section 124 of the Local Government Act 1993

The Regulation to the Act (see specifically Schedule 2 of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005)
includes standards for the keeping of specific birds or animals being poultry, swine, horses and cattle. These
provisions must be read in connection with this Policy.

Where a development application is required (for example, for the construction of housing for animals) Council
will exercise its discretion under Section 4.15 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 and
consider the circumstances of individual proposals, and will normally consult with neighbours as provided for in
Council’s Community Participation Plan.

Please note that applications involving Companion Animals Boarding and Breeding Establishments are subject to
specific requirements under Council’s Development Control Plan.

The keeping of Indigenous animals such as Kangaroos and Wallabies is regulated under Commonwealth and
State legislation such as the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (Cth).

The keeping of non-indigenous animals is regulated by the Non Indigenous Animals Act 1987 and related
Regulation and is not subject to any direct Council controls. However, if justified complaints are received,
Council may take the matter up with the relevant authority (currently the NSW Department of Primary
Industries).

Attachment 1 Page 186



Attachment 1 POL063 Keeping of Animals (Urban Areas)

The welfare of animals is also subject to the provisions of the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals Act 1979 and
NSW Department of Primary Industries published Welfare Codes. See:

http://www.dpi.nsw.gov.au/agriculture/livestock/animal-welfare/general

Policy provisions relating to specific animals/birds:

Bees
One standard 10 frame bee hive may be kept without special permission of Council. One or two boxes may be
added to the hive during summer, provided there is only one colony.

Beehives must be registered with the NSW Department of Primary Industires.

Birds

Commercial aviaries require development consent, however the construction of small private bird aviaries may
be exempt from approval pursuant to Council’s Local Environmental Plan/Development Control Plan. Noise
emissions must be maintained at or below 5dB above background noise level at the property boundary.

Cockatoo-type breeds will be the subject of strict controls relating to objectionable noise and/or unreasonable
hours.

Food storage areas and the ground surface beneath are to be cleansed as frequently as is necessary to preserve
a state of cleanliness, free from offensive odour and in such manner as to ensure that flies and/or vermin are
not attracted to the premises.

Keeping of Pigeons
The following general conditions shall apply to the keeping of pigeons:

1. The use must not be for commercial purposes.
2. The number of pigeons to be housed on the premises must be limited to:
° Members of recognised Pigeon Racing or Fanciers Association - 150 pigeons.
. Non members or non-active members - 10 pigeons unless Council determines to the

contrary, having in mind isolation, or other relevant factors in the particular case.
3. A curfew for the carrying out of flying exercises will exist between the hours of 8.00am to 3.30pm.

4, Lofts shall be located at least 12m clear of any dwelling, or a greater distance as may be determined
by Council in the particular case.

5. Lofts shall be erected clear of fences and other buildings so as to facilitate cleansing and
maintenance.

6. The loft doors/gates shall not be left open and unattended at any time, ie an "open loft" is not
permitted.
7. Pigeon lofts and the ground surface beneath are to be cleansed as frequently as is necessary to

preserve a state of cleanliness, free from offensive odour and in such manner as to ensure that flies
and/or vermin are not attracted to the premises.
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8. The loft floor must be maintained dry at all times (other than during cleaning) and must be
protected from the weather for that purpose.

9. The lofts and birds must be kept free of lice at all times.

10. Galvanised 25mm x 25mm mesh floors will be provided with a minimum clearance of 300mm
between the underside of the floor and the impervious ground surface. Timber floors are not
considered appropriate.

11. Concrete floors (where used) will be turned down a minimum distance of 200mm below the ground
surface at the perimeter of the concrete floor.

12.  Lofts will be constructed of materials that blend with the environment and that can be easily
maintained. All surfaces likely to come in contact with excreta shall be impervious to facilitate ease
of cleansing. Lofts must be proofed against rats and other vermin.

13.  All bird droppings and other waste must be collected and stored or disposed of in such a manner so
as not to create any nuisance and will be subject to the approval of Council’s Health Surveyor.

14. Grain and other foods are to be kept in a vermin proof building or containers, to the satisfaction of
Council’s Health Surveyor.

15. The premises must allow an area of 14 pigeons per cubic metre of loft space.

Cats
The keeping of cats is encouraged under the following conditions:

(i) Cats do not cause damage to other property.
(ii)  Cats do not cause a nuisance to other residents.

The behaviour of the cats is subject to the provisions of the Companion Animals Act 1998 and owners are
encouraged to contain their cats during the hours of darkness to prevent attacks on native fauna.

A maximum of 6 cats normally housed at any premises on an urban allotment, this will be used as a guide for
Council’s administration of the Orders provisions for numbers under the Local Government Act 1993.

Dogs
The behaviour of dogs is subject to the provisions of the Companion Animals Act 1998.

Dogs kept at urban properties are to have adequate shelter and protection from the weather.
The area in which the dogs are housed is to be maintained in a hygienic condition to:

(i) Limit the spread of disease; and.

(i)  Minimise offensive odour.

The following maximum numbers of dogs housed at a premises on any urban allotment will be used as a guide
only for Council’s administration of the Orders provisions for numbers under the Local Government Act 1993:

600m? 2 Dogs
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850m’ 3 Dogs
1000m* 4 Dogs
Construction of kennel facilities must comply with the Building Code of Australia.

Disposal of faeces and other animal related waste must be by an approved sewer connection or other adequate
approved means of disposal.

Goats and Sheep
The keeping of sheep or goats for commercial purposes within a residential area is not permitted.

The use of sheep and goats to maintain an area in a neat and tidy condition is encouraged provided that:
(i) The area is fenced satisfactorily to prevent their escape.

(ii)  Neighbouring trees/shrubs are protected.

(iii)  The areais kept free of offensive odour and flies.

One animal per 750m? per allotment is to be used as a basis for administering the Orders provisions for numbers
under the Local Government Act 1993.

Horses and Cattle

Note: The Regulation to the Act (see specifically Schedule 2 of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005)
includes standards for the keeping of horses and cattle. These provisions must be read in connection with this
Policy.

The keeping of horses and cattle for commercial purposes or feed lots within a residential area is not permitted.

The use of horses or cattle to maintain a vacant urban area in a neat and tidy condition is encouraged, subject to
the following conditions:

(i) That the area is fenced satisfactorily to prevent their escape.

(ii)  Horses and cattle must not be kept within 9 metres of a dwelling and other buildings usually occupied by
humans and not less than 1 metre from any boundary fences, to prevent damage to such fences.

(iii)  Neighbouring trees/shrubs are to be protected.
(iv)  The area must be kept free of offensive odour/flies and rodents.
(v)  Cattle and horses must be restricted to within not less than

One animal per 1000m? allotment is to be used as a basis for administering the Orders provisions for numbers
under the Local Government Act 1993.

Pigs
Note: The Regulation to the Act (see specifically Schedule 2 of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005)
includes standards for the keeping of swine. These provisions must be read in connection with this Policy.

One animal per 2000m? allotment is to be used as a basis for administering the Orders provisions for numbers
under the Local Government Act 1993.
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Poultry
Note: The Regulation to the Act (see specifically Schedule 2 of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005)
includes standards for the keeping of poultry.. These provisions must be read in connection with this Policy.

The keeping of poultry in a residential area is encouraged, subject to the following conditions:

(i) The area is kept free of offensive odour/flies and rodents.

(ii)  The poultry yard is fenced to ensure the poultry do not escape.

(iii)  Cages/Hen houses must have a concrete floor and comply with the Building Code of Australia.

(iv) The following distances for the location of poultry housing from a dwelling are considered adequate:
Housing for Fowls (gallus gallus) or guinea fowls 4.5 Metres
Other Housing (eg Duck/Geese) 30 Metres

(v)  Roosters are not permitted.

The following maximum numbers to be housed at a premises on any urban allotment will be used as a basis for
administering the Orders provisions for numbers under the Local Government Act 1993.

Hens 20 fowls
Other poultry 10 birds
6. LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS
. Local Government Act 1993
° Schedule 2 of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005)

7. REVIEW

This Policy will be reviewed every two years from the date of each adoption of the policy, or more frequently as
required.

8. REPORTING

The is no reporting directly linked to this policy.

9. RESPONSIBLE OFFICER

¢ This policy applied to the Rangers and is to responsibility of Coordinator Regulation

10. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Rangers are responsible for the implementation of this policy .

11. RELATED PROCEDURES
Nil
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APPROVAL AND REVIEW
Responsible Business Unit Development and Regulation
Responsible Officer Coordinator Regulations
Date/s adopted Council Executive Council
[updated by policy owner] [DD Mmmm YYYY]
Date/s of previous adoptions Version |: Revised November 2008 — supersedes adopted version from
September 2000

Version Il: March 2013

Date of next review Development 2022

TRIM Reference
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Summary of community submissions — Dumaresq Dam upgrade plan LGES

Summary of community submissions — Dumaresq Dam upgrade plan LGES

Submitter/

Date

1 Barbara Finch
29/10/20

Submission summary

Colour concrete surfaces incl. carpark as light concrete will
detract. Keep roofed picnic shelters away from water views.
Consider kiosk small and near trees away from water views. All
structures should be timber in keeping with conservation area

Key points

Suitability of design, colour,
materials and maintaining
water views

Council staff recommendation in
response to submission

Staff recommends specification changes to upgrade
Plan.

2 Jonathon Galletly
3/11/20

Maintain beach sand

Maintain beach area

Staff recommends no changes to upgrade Plan.

Comments noted and passed on to officers for
operational consideration

3 Dr Dorothy

Would like to see waterslides and flying fox

Waterslides & flying fox

Staff recommends no changes to upgrade Plan.

walking trails to Mt Duval etc.

Robinson Comments noted and passed on to officers for
4/11/20 information and future planning and consideration

4 Chris Bonning Consideration of a managed waste water system. Commercial Wastewater treatment Staff recommends specification changes to upgrade
6/11/20 Wastewater Treatment System (AWTS) that can treat 6000] a system required Plan.

day

5 Lee-Anne Needs a larger car park to accommodate »50 cars Increase capacity of car park | Staff recommends investigation of additional car
MeKinnon parking options to be incorporated in future stages if
12/11,/20 unable to be accommodated in stage 1.

6 Julie Kliendienst No kiosk, Bench seats at water's edge for parental supervision, Seating on beach for Staff recommends specification changes to upgrade
17/11,20 maintain beach parental supervision Plan.

7 lames Harris Playground required. Use portable stage instead. Prioritise Playground, walking trails, Staff recommends no changes to stage 1 of the
18/11,/20 toilets, construct cycleway to dam form Elm Avenue, Extend no stage upgrade Plan.

Comments noted and passed on to officers for
information and future planning and consideration

B8 Jock McCardell
18/11,/20

Dumaresqg Dam Rd dangerous and should be limited to
B0km/hr.

Dumaresq dam Rd should be
speed limited

Staff recommends no changes to upgrade Plan.

Comments noted and passed on to officers for
information and future planning and consideration

9 Daryl and Benal
Albertson
18/11,/20

Upgrade walking tracks and add interpretive signage. Mountain
bike separate from walking track at distance. Maintain fish
stocking and promote cance fishing

Upgrade walking tracks,
separate bike track, maintain
fish stocks

Staff recommends noting proposed distance
separation of walking tracks and bike tracks.
Fish stocking passed on to officers for operational
consideration

10 David Wright
18/11,/20

34 car spaces is inadequate. Dam buster race can attract up to
200 cars

Increase car parking

Staff recommends investigation of additional car
parking options to be incorporated in future stages if
unable to be accommodated in stage 1.

11 Suzanne Wright
18/11/20

34 car spaces is inadequate. Dam buster race can attract up to
200 cars

Increase car parking

Staff recommends investigation of additional car
parking options to be incorporated in future stages if
unable to be accommodated in stage 1.
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$3.9 MILLION ‘CASH SPLASH’ FOR DUMARESQ DAM
REC AREA UPGRADE
S —

Northern Tablelands MP Adam Marshall, left, and Armidale Regional Council
Administer Viv May at Dumaresq Dam today for the funding announcement.

Monday, 26 October 2020

DUMARESQ Dam will become the region’s next big ecotourism destination, with
Northern Tablelands MP Adam Marshall today announcing $3.9 million in funding to
redevelop recreation facilities at one of Armidale’s best kept secret locations.

Mr Marshall said the improvements, funded by the State and Commonwealth
Governments, would unleash a flood of opportunities for the previously underutilised
former water storage dam.

“Offering stunning bush walks and the perfect place for families to paddle safely on
the water, Dumaresq Dam has always had the potential to be one of Armidale’s
biggest visitor drawcards,” Mr Marshall said.

“While many locals know and access Dumaresq Dam for kayaking and water
activities, this $3,889,131 grant, through the Bushfire Local Economic Recovery
Fund, will open the area up to an additional 30,000 visitors per year.
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“Armidale Regional Council plans to modernise facilities at the dam by installing a
new amenities block, boat ramp, jetty and kiosk.

“An outdoor community stage and viewing platform at the water’s edge are also
included in the preliminary designs, along with changes to the road network to
improve traffic flow throughout the park and allow for car parking.

“Importantly, this project aims to increase Dumaresq Dam’s appeal as a campsite,
supporting efforts to generate 4,600 overnight visitors annually.

“A new limited camping area will include basic sites without power, and be
accompanied by picnic shelters, barbecue facilities and a camp kitchen.

“It's expected 10 construction jobs will be created as a result of this development and
up to 30 new full-time equivalent tourism related positions.”

NSW Public Works Advisory will act as project managers, working alongside
Armidale Regional Council.

Mr Marshall said the Dumaresq Dam Ecotourism Development would assist the
region’s economic recovery.

“It can’t be overstated how important tourism is going to be getting businesses back
on their feet after what's been a horror two years of drought, bushfires and the
COVID-19 pandemic,” he said.

“Camping is a low cost holiday but while people are here they will still buy a coffee
from a café and spend money purchasing groceries, all of which helps keep a local
employed.

“This development will definitely attract wildlife lovers with the Dumaresq Dam
reserve to be managed for the conservation of wildlife habitat and as a critical
linkage between core koala habitat between Mount Duval Nature Reserve.

“With this money now secured | look forward to seeing what is included in Council’'s
final blueprint when the designs are approved following public exhibition.”

Armidale Regional Council’s Dumaresq Dam Redevelopment Plan Stage 1 is
currently on public exhibition and can be viewed at
https://yoursay.armidale.nsw.gov.au/public-exhibition-dumaresqg-dam-
redevelopment-plan-stage-1

The redevelopment plan was informed by the Dumaresq Dam Upgrade Plan which
was adopted in 2016 and included extensive community consultation.
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Attachment 3 Letter of Offer - Dumaresq Dam Ecotourism Development

-li“"r The Hon. John Barilaro MP
@Y .__.) Deputy Premier

Minister for Regional New South Wales
covernvent  Minister for Industry and Trade

Ref: A3980558

Cr. Simon Murray

Mayor

Armidale Regional Council
PO Box 75A

Armidale NSW 2350

Dear Cr. Murray
Dumaresq Dam Ecotourism Development

| am pleased to inform you that the funding for $3,889,131 for the Dumaresq Dam Ecotourism
Development has been approved and will be jointly funded by the NSW and Australian
governments.

The NSW and Australian governments are focused on supporting the recovery of communities in
bushfire-affected regions across NSW. The funding of local infrastructure projects will drive
economic and social recovery, strengthen morale, increase preparedness for future natural
disasters and help communities get back on their feet in the short, medium and long-term.

Funding for this project is conditional on Public Works Advisory (PWA) being appointed as the
project manager. | have asked PWA to work in a close partnership with your organisation to deliver
the project.

| ask that you please sign and return the attached Confidentiality Agreement to
GMO@dpc.nsw.gov.au to enable an opportunity for a public announcement to be made by the
NSW and Australian governments. The project will still be able to progress with PWA while plans
for any public announcement are made. | encourage you to contact the office of the NSW Deputy
Premier via media@deputypremier.nsw.gov.au with any suitable media opportunities.

Please note that funding deeds are required to be finalised within 60 days of this offer. If you have
not finalised your funding deed within this period, your offer of funding may be rescinded.

After you have returned the attached Confidentiality Agreement you will be contacted by the
Department of Regional NSW to discuss the conditions for the funding of this project, how the deed
will be managed with PWA and any requirements that must be met for the project to proceed.

| look forward to seeing this important community project commence shortly.

Yours sincerely

PR

The Hon. John Barilaro MP

Deputy Premier

Minister for Regional New South Wales

Minister for Industry and Trade

CC: Mr John Rayner, Acting General Manager, Armidale Regional Council

GPO Box 5341 Sydney NSW 2001 = P: (02) 8574 5150 = F: (02) 9339 5558 = W: nsw.gov.au/deputypremier
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Attachment 1 ARC Drought Management Plan 2020 DRAFT

ARMIDALE REGIONAL COUNCIL

DROUGHT MANAGEMENT PLAN 2020

Position Name Date
Prepared | Engineer Arun Gautam 20 November 2020
Approved | Director Businesses & Scot MacDonald 30 November 2020
Services

This plan was prepared in accordance with NSW Water Directorate Drought Management Planning
Guidelines 2016 and DPIE Water’s Drought Management Checklist, August 2007.

This plan was adopted by Council on DATE
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Executive Summary

This Plan
This Drought Management Plan (DMP) , guides the Armidale Regional Council (ARC) as a Local Water
Utility. Council supplies treated water to residents and businesses in Guyra and Armidale.

The aim of the DMP is to:

Provide guidance to staff when managing drought events

Inform the community of the issues associated with drought management and the
community’s role during drought

O Extend water security to Council’s customers as long as operationally possible while
maintaining water standards to Australian Drinking Water Guidelines.

O Optimise water security for residents and businesses.
Having a sound Drought Management Plan in place is part of the NSW Government best-practice
management requirements for water supply.

This Drought Management Plan has the following uses with relation to drought management:

Operational plan
Resourcing strategy

Authorised approach, that is, staff have the confidence that the actions in this plan have
been authorised in advance

Basis for government grant applications
Basis of a public awareness and community communication program

This plan gives authority to Council’s General Manager, in consultation with Council, to declare
drought and implement the actions herein described.

This Drought Management Plan has been prepared with a view to providing Council with a
comprehensive drought management strategy. The NSW Local Government PPRR (prevention,
preparation, response and recovery) emergency management approach has been applied. This
approach provides a strategic and systematic drought management process to reduce risk to the
community and the environment. It involves effectively integrating implementation strategies before
(i.e. prevent and prepare), during and after drought events.

Drought Prevention Strategy

Drought prevention actions are proactive measures that Armidale Regional Council (ARC) can
undertake in anticipation of declining water storage levels and changing customer water use..
Prevention actions may be activated prior to drought or during drought declared stages. Preventative
actions are provided in section 0.
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Drought Preparedness Strategy

Being prepared for drought is essential to reduce the impact of water limitations and to enhance the
capacity of ARC and the community to respond to drought conditions. This drought management plan
is part of the necessary preparedness. Further discussion is provided in section 0.

Drought Response Strategy

Drought Triggers and Water Level Restrictions

Drought triggers are situations that activate staged response strategies according to the severity of the
drought. The triggers are described in Section 0 and summarised in the table below.

It is important to note, Water Triggers and Restrictions are an important feature of Council’s
strategies, however every drought event is different, and Council and staff must be adaptive to
prevailing conditions. In practice this means Council officers may recommend and Council may
approve variations to triggers and restrictions as condition warrant.

Table 1: Proposed Water Restrictions Triggers

_

P Applicable all Times 8.2*/200*
Permanent (90% of the average —
new norm)
Total storage level below 80% and adverse three month 7.4/180
climate outlook by the Bureau of Meteorology.
Authoritative advice on an adverse climatic forecast (e.g. (80% average)
drought declared by the government in the area).
Operational Issues affecting the ability to supply.
Total storage level below 70%. 7.0/170
Operational Issues affecting the ability to supply.
(75% average)
Consumption target of previous level not achieved for 2
weeks.
3 Total storage level fell below 60%. 6.6/160
High Serious Operational Issues affecting the ability to supply.
(70% average)
Consumption target of previous level not achieved for 2
weeks
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Total storage level fell below 55%. 6.4/155
Serious Operational Issues affecting the ability to supply.

(65% average)
Consumption target of previous level not achieved for 2
weeks.
Total storage level below 50%. 6.2/150
Serious Operational Issues affecting the ability to supply.

(60% average)

Consumption target of previous level not achieved for 2
weeks.

*Ninety percent of average annual water production by Armidale and Guyra WTPs over 2014 to 2018. This is
daily annual average demand and need to be adjusted for seasonal variations.
Demand-Side Actions

Demand-side actions are intended to reduce the water consumption, matching the demand to the
diminishing water resources. Restrictions on the use of water are the main actions. Details are
provided in Section 4.3.

Supply-Side Actions
Supply-side actions aim to supplement the existing water resources with additional water sources.
Details of these actions are provided in Section 0.

Drought Management Team

A Drought Management Team will be formed as part of the drought response, and will be responsible
for managing Council’s response during drought. Table 33 in section 4.2.2 lists the roles and the
responsibilities of the team.

Monitoring

A continuous monitoring program will be implemented during drought to track the availability and
quality of water, the demand, and the effectiveness of the response plan. Details are provided in
Section 0.

Drought Recovery Strategy

The recovery process is set out to support affected communities in the reconstruction of the physical
infrastructure and the restoration of emotional, social, economic and physical wellbeing. The recovery
actions are described in section 0.

Background Information

Background information on the water supply scheme, the climate, and the regulatory framework is
provided in Sections 0, 0 and 0.
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1 Introduction

1.1 Context

This Drought Management Plan (DMP) has been developed in order to:

a
a

Provide guidance to staff when managing drought events

Inform the community of the issues associated with drought management and the
community’s role during drought

Extend water security to Council’s customers as long as operationally possible while
maintaining water standards to Australian Drinking Water Guidelines.

Optimise water security for residents and businesses.

The NSW Government Best-Practice Management of Water Supply and Sewerage Guidelines (2007)

require Local Water Utilities to have a Drought Management Plan in place and be ready to

implement their plan when drought conditions arise. This plan satisfies the guidelines requirement.

A copy of the Best-Practice Guidelines Drought Management checklist is included in Appendix A.

1.2 This Plan

This DMP provides a combination of long-term and short-term management actions to respond to

drought incidents and nominates who is responsible for leading and carrying out the required

actions.. The aims of this plan are to:

a

Ensure that timely warning is provided to the appropriate authorities and other stakeholders
(including customers) in a drought event

Provide relevant information for use in response to a situation when water availability is at
risk

Identify customer groups who have different requirements during droughts, for example
hospitals and schools.

Outline procedures to Council staff so as to respond to and mitigate drought related issues
Enable timely warning to appropriate personnel to implement appropriate actions

Document how ARC will manage the water supply scheme during water shortages due to
drought

This functions of the DMP are:

As an operational plan for water supply management during drought
As a resourcing strategy and staff allocation to manage drought

As an authorised approach to drought management enabling staff to act knowing that
necessary actions have been endorsed

As the basis for government grant applications to address the needs identified in this plan
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O  As the basis of a public awareness and community engagement tool for use by Council to
demonstrate transparent and responsible drought management

The plan includes strategies specific to the ARC town water supply in Armidale and Guyra network.

1.3 Drought Planning

1.3.1 Objectives of Drought Planning

Drought planning is an emergency response plan that aims to reduce the impact of water scarcity on
the community, business, economy and environment.

1.3.2 The PPRR Approach

This plan has a four-step approach referred to as PPRR (prevention, preparation, response and
recovery) approach. The PPRR is a continuous process that involves effectively integrating
implementation strategies before (i.e. prevent and prepare), during and after drought events with
particular emphasis on response and recovery.

An overview of the four phases is provided below:

O Prevention. Actions to reduce or eliminate the likelihood or effects of drought related issues.
These include understanding the climate patterns and their impact on water availability,
understanding water sharing plans rules and analysing past drought events. They also may
include upgrading the water resources, typically through capital investment.

O Preparedness. Developing strategies for drought situations before an incident occurs, to
ensure effective response and recovery. This DMP is a key component of this phase.

O Response. Actions to control contain and/or minimise the impacts of the drought. Typically
this would involve implementation of demand-side and supply-side actions listed in this
DMP.

O Recovery. Restoration of ‘normal’ water supply conditions, including actions to assist the
community and businesses to recover from the impacts of drought.

This plan describes the actions that ARC will implement in the prevention, preparedness, response
and recovery stages of a drought incident.

Attachment 1 Page 204



Attachment 1 ARC Drought Management Plan 2020 DRAFT

2 Drought Prevention Strategy

2.1 Overview

Drought prevention actions are proactive measures that LWUs can undertake in order to increase
coping capacity. Prevention actions may be activated / implemented prior to drought or during
drought-declared periods. This will be determined at Council’s discretion.

During drought, existing water resources are expected to decrease at a rate dependent on the
respective water demand rate at a particular water restriction level. While current water resources
are diminishing, other supply options may be considered as potential alternatives for supplementary
or emergency water sources.

Some prevention actions are described below.

2.2 Short-term Actions

2.2.1 Permanent Water Conservation

ARC will implement permanent water conservation measures by encouraging water efficient
practices.

2.2.2 Voluntary Water Restrictions

When the water source’s availability is approaching the level that would trigger the implementation
of water restrictions, ARC will start a pre-activation of voluntary water restrictions
(i.e., implementation of water conservation measures).

Council will communicate the importance of using water saving measures, especially in times
developing drought.

2.2.3 Drought Water Pricing
Demand is affected by price.
ARC will consider the introduction of scarcity pricing before and/or during drought to reduce

discretionary water use (possibly a two-step usage charge). The price signal also communicates to
customers the seriousness of the event.

ARC will monitor the impact of the pricing on the demand and assess the effectiveness of this action.
Higher pricing may be necessary to meet higher costs of responding to drought and reduced revenue
that will impact the efficacy of the Water Fund to maintain and renew assets.

2.3 Long-term Actions

Hydrological studies show that the ARC water supply dams do not have sufficient storage to provide
secure supply in drought emergencies.. The ‘secure yield’ of the dams are adequate to meet the
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current demand under historic climate but are not adequate for current demand under climate
change condition and future demands under both historic and climate change conditions.

2.3.1 Renewing Puddledcok Transfer Main

ARC has secured 50% funding to renew the Puddledock transfer main under NSW Government’s Safe
and Secure Funding programme. Renewing existing Puddledock transfer main along with the pump
station will help boost the capacity of Armidale’s town water supply and it also provide
supplementary source in case of failure of Malpas Dam transfer line.

2.3.2 Increase in Surface Storage

The capacity of Malpas Dam is 12,266 ML. The capacity could be more than doubled by increasing
the FSL by 6.5m to meet future demand and to deal with potential adverse climate effect on secure
yield. Alternative surface storage options may also need to be considered. ARC will be seeking state
and federal funding for the project.

2.3.3 Groundwater

ARC engaged a hydrogeologist during drought in 2019 to report on potential Groundwater supplies .
There were 26 sites identified for test drilling. The work is still in progress but it is likely that there are
a number of bores in Guyra could be used as a town water source subject to NRAR approval. Test
drilling had less success in Armidale but has potential to reduce demand on potable supply by using
bore water for the irrigation of parks and sports fields.
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3 Preparedness

3.1 Overview

Being prepared for drought is essential to reduce the effect of and to enhance the capacity of ARC
and the community to cope with the consequences of drought. This means that ARC should have
action plans in place ready to be implemented and have ongoing activities to prepare Council staff
and the community for those situations, such as training exercises, monitoring and consultation.

The benefits of being prepared for incidents and having a drought management plan are:

O Having a pre-determined and agreed list of actions to be taken in drought , allowing for an
effective implementation of those actions

Q Allows ARC to promptly seek drought relief support and funding from relevant authorities
O Have well defined protocols of drought restriction activation and escalation

This DMP documents ARC’s preparedness in regards to incidents affecting town water supply. The
actions described in this plan have been endorsed by Council, therefore in case of emergencies, the
appointed staff can quickly activate relevant personnel required to take actions to respond to the
problem; to acquire other resources required for drought management and to quickly implement the
pre-determined drought response actions outlined in section 0. The following sections describe some
of the ongoing activities that ARC should undertake in order to be prepared for drought situations.

3.2 Exercising Drought Management

In order to ensure the effectiveness of this plan and to prepare staff for emergency situations, a
periodic program for exercising drought management will be developed and implemented in
conjunction with other emergency training programs. These exercises will be a simulation of drought
starting and intensifying, requiring actions.

3.3 Data Availability

The DMP may include, as attachments, technical information (i.e. design, operational, maintenance
plans) relevant to the water supply system. This is to ensure that in case of emergencies all relevant
information is in one document facilitating an effective and prompt response to the problem.

These attachments should be updated regularly, as the plans are modified.

3.4 Monitoring

Continuous monitoring of the water sources and water supply schemes is essential to understand the
performance of the water sources and their capability of supplying demand. Monitoring of these
parameters assists ARC in preparing for unconventional situations. In order to ensure a safe and
sustainable water supply, the following monitoring is required.

Q Drinking water daily demand
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Q Daily monitoring of water supply source
= River flows and depth

= Water level at dams / reservoirs

Daily temperature and rainfall

BoM forecasts

3.5 Consultation

3.5.1 Community Engagement
Engagement with the community is a critical element of an effective drought management program,

as it ensures customer acceptance and behavioural changes, required to reduce water demand.

ARC will inform the community about the DMP and the drought action plans in place. This will assist
the community to understand the critical importance of drought management actions and the need
to conserve water. ARC may also involve the community in the development and review of this plan.

ARC Communication and Engagement Plan 2019 (TRIM AI/2020/27191) prepared by GHD broadly
outline the approach to the communications and engagement for the leadership, communication
and long-term water planning and management during Level 5 water restrictions.

3.5.2 Government Consultation

Consultation on the implementation of the Drought Management Plan would be expected to be
with:

Department of Planning, Industry and Environment (DPIE)/ Water Group

Natural Resource Access Regulator (NRAR)

NSW Health (especially in relation to water quality)

0O 0 0O O

Neighbouring LWUs
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4 Drought Response Strategy

The response strategy consists of implementing appropriate actions to control, contain or minimise
the impacts of droughts. The implementation of the DMP includes identifying and reviewing
situations, overseeing the implementation of supply and demand actions, approving media releases
and reviewing operations. These actions will be the responsibility of the Drought Management Team.

The following sections describe the response strategy during drought incidents.

4.1 Drought Strategy Activation Plan

4.1.1 Overview
The drought response strategy will be activated in an event when the water supply is affected due to

natural climate conditions.

The main scenario that would activate a drought management response, including the introduction
of supply restrictions, is water scarcity.

4.1.2 Drought Triggers

Triggers are the conditions that will activate the response strategy plan. The triggers are based on
progressive reductions in water availability. The triggers for implementing drought restrictions are
provided in the Table 1.

These triggers initiate demand-side actions which are expected to reduce the demand to a target
daily demand (refer Table 3). If the demand reduction is not achieved by the introduction of the
restrictions for each level, the next level should be applied.

Table 2 lists water supply system drought triggers levels. The Relax column indicates the mark where
the level can be relaxed, and the status changed to a lower level.

Table 2: Proposed Water Restrictions/Relaxation Triggers

Triggers Target Total
Demand (ML/day )/

Residential Demand
(Litres/person/day)

p Applicable all Times 8.2*/200* N/A
Perman (90% of the average —
ent new norm)
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Triggers Target Total
Demand (ML/day )/

Residential Demand
(Litres/person/day)

Total storage level below 80% and adverse three 7.4/180 Total Storage
month climate outlook by the Bureau of rises to 90%
Meteorology. (80% average) Go to Water
Authoritative advice on an adverse climatic forecast Conservation
(e.g. drought declared by the government in the

area).

Operational Issues affecting the ability to supply.

Total storage level below 70%. 7.0/170 Total Storage

Operational Issues affecting the ability to supply. rises to 90%

Consumption target of previous level not achieved (75% average) Go to Water

for 2 weeks. Conservation
3 Total storage level fell below 60%. 6.6/160 Total Storage
High Serious Operational Issues affecting the ability to rises to 80%

supply. (70% average) Go to Level 1

Consumption target of previous level not achieved

for 2 weeks

Total storage level fell below 55%. 6.4/155 Total Storage

Serious Operational Issues affecting the ability to rises to 70%

supply. (65% average) Go to Level 2

Consumption target of previous level not achieved

for 2 weeks.

Total storage level below 50%. 6.2/150 Total Storage

Serious Operational Issues affecting the ability to rises to 60%

supply. (60% average) Go to Level 3

Consumption target of previous level not achieved

for 2 weeks.

*Ninety percent of average annual water production by Armidale and Guyra WTPs over 2014 to 2018. This is
daily annual average demand and need to be adjusted for seasonal variations.

4.2 Drought Management Team Roles and Responsibilities

4.2.1 Activation and Setting Restriction Level

ARC General Manager can proclaim this drought management plan to be in force once General
Manger determines that Trigger 1 has been reached. This decision should be ratified by Council.

The General Manger has the authority to change the restriction levels on the advice of the Chair of
the Drought Management Team (DMT). Changes to Water Level Restrictions should seek adoption at
a Council meeting.
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4.2.2 Drought Management Team

The General Manager will appoint the drought management team (DMT) and will activate/deactivate
DMT as required. Roles and responsibilities of DMT are in the Table 3.

Table 3: DMT Roles and Preliminary Responsibilities

Levels 1, 2, 3 and 4 : Manager of Utilities

Levels 5: Director Businesses and Services

Responsibilities Coordinate the activities of the team

Communicate with Council

Communicate with government agencies — high level
Communicate with senior management

Incident Manager Levels 1,2,3 and 4 : Operations Engineer

Level 5: Manager of Utilities

Responsibilities Monitor and assess data

Provide an assessment of the situation

Brief the DMT Chair and Council

Allocate roles to team members, including stand-ins

Prioritise tasks and develop response actions

Ensure adequate facilities and resources — both specialist and support

Communicate with stakeholders, neighbouring LWUs, government agencies and
major customers — action level

Hold regular team meetings, and chair if the Chair is not available
Monitor the use of actions and their effectiveness

Monitor team member performance and take action if required
Determine completion of the response phase, and commence recovery

Post incident, coordinate review of incident and update of the Drought
Management Plan

Communication Nominated officer from Media, Communications and Engagement
Manager

Responsibilities Support the DMT Chair and Incident Manager with communication
Prepare communication material as appropriate

Issue media statements and interviews if appropriate (and approved by the
Director or GM)

Maintain media database including social networks
Monitor and manage social networks communication

Administrative General Manger to nominate or redeploy one of the staff for administration support

Support

Responsibilities Record keeping
Prepare progress reports as required for distribution to DMT members

Provide administrative support, telephone answering, email first review and
general office duties

Attend and minute meetings
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Water Efficiency General Manger to redeploy one of the staff as Water Efficiency Officer
Officer

Responsibilities Promote Water Conservation

Work with commercial and institutional customers high water users to help
achieve water efficiency

Support the Incident Manager and Chair

Support Team Chair to nominate as required depending on the severity of the incidence

Responsibilities Support the Incident Manager and Chair

4.3 Demand-Side Action Plan

4.3.1 Water Restrictions

Water restrictions aim to reduce water demand by customers through regulating the type and
duration of water-using activities. If not specifically mentioned, the restrictions of each level apply to
the all higher levels. For example, if fixed hoses are prohibited for Level 2, fixed hoses are also
prohibited for the higher levels.

A schedule of the water restrictions levels, their definitions and comprehensive list of proposed rules
in each category of restriction are provided in Appendix B.

4.4 Supply-Side Action Plan

When drought occurs, actions must be taken to mitigate the effects of water shortage and to ensure
that a reliable water supply is available to meet the health and safety needs of the community while
supporting the economy.. Supply-side actions are actions taken by Council aimed at supporting the
restrictions as well as preparing for worsening situations.

4.4.1 Staged Action-Plan

Drought management supply-side actions should be implemented while the community, guided by
Council, takes action to reduce water demand using water restrictions as one of its strategies. The
supply actions are proposed to be implemented within a time frame so that water supply is sufficient
to sustain the estimated water demand at the particular water restriction level. The supply-side
actions are actions that the Council will undertake to continually supply water to its customers during
drought. Alternative water supply options are described in Section 0.

In 2015 Armidale Dumaresq Council engaged WREMA Pty Ltd to undertake the secure yield study of
the Armidale water supply in accordance with NOW (2013) guideline ‘Assuring future urban water
security — Assessment and adaptation guidelines for NSW local water utilities — DRAFT — December
2013’. The study found that the Malpas dam can meet the demand of Armidale for many years to
come for stationary climate while satisfying NOW (2013) 5/10/10 rule. However, in response to the
drought (2019) and in consultation with Department of Planning Industry and Environment (DPIE)
officers, Council engaged NSW Public Works to update the secure yield of its water supply dams by
extending the climate data to include the recent drought. The study found that the secure yield of
the water supply dams were severely impacted by the drought (2019) and the secure yield of water

Attachment 1 Page 212



Attachment 1

ARC Drought Management Plan 2020 DRAFT

supply dams can meet the current unrestricted demand under stationary climate but can not meet

the future demand under stationary climate or the current restricted demand under climate changed
scenarios. ARC is working with DPIE Water and NSW Public Works to develop a strategy to secure

water for the

Table 4 lays out how supply actions are implemented as restriction levels are increased.

region.

Table 4: Staged Drought Supply-Side Actions

Supply Side Activity

Potential Daily
Supply, ML/day

Commence work on the re-use scheme if found feasible.

Investigate the options to reduce evaporation losses from the dam.

Consider to stop the operation of Scour Valves at the dams. 7.4
(80% average)
Stop the operation of Scour Valves at the dams. 7.0
Stop flushing of Council mains and reservoir cleaning. (75% average)
3 Consider to operate Puddledock dam for regular supply while keeping Malpas | 6.6
High for more serious drought to come.
(70% average)
Consider to operate ground water bores if available.
Stop environmental flows at Malpas dam when the dam level reaches 55% and
below.
Investigate re-use of the backwash water.
Investigate the re-use of STP effluent at the sewer treatment plant or other
water sources for watering of Council’s parks in the city area.
Operate Puddledock dam for regular supply while keeping Malpas for more | 6.4
serious drought to come.
(65% average)
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Supply Side Activity Potential Daily

Supply, ML/day

Operate Puddledock dam in Armidale and ground water bores if available in | 6.2

Guyra for regular supply while keeping Malpas for more serious drought to

0,
come. (60% average)

Use alternative sources of water wherever possible
Use groundwater from all available ground water bores.
Commence work to reduce evaporation losses if they are cost effective.

Plan to undertake water quality testing as dam level drops which in turn will
help modify the treatment processes when required to handle the change in
incoming raw water quality

Prepare for Water carting to Guyra.

4.4.2 Water Carting

Water cartage to Armidale City is impractical and expensive. However the water carting from
Armidale to Guyra may be feasible. It is anticipated that water carting to Guyra would require 6
large trucks or semi-trailers carting water for 10 hours per day (20 kl per load x 5 loads per day x 6
trucks = 0.6MI / day). It was learned in 2019 drought it is beneficial to cart water earlier than when
dam is empty so that the supply is maintained half by dam water and half by carted water resulting
in less trucks on the local roads per day. Additionally, it will avoid the risk that Guyra town not
getting water if highways are blocked..

Technical and financial assistance towards the cost of water cartage is available from the NSW
Government but is subject to quantities and cartage arrangements being agreed with DPIE Water.
Further details regarding water carting are provided in the DPIE Water document titled “Drought
Relief for Country Towns”.

4.5 Monitoring During Drought

The following monitoring will be carried out during drought. Some of the items listed below are
recorded on a regular basis as part of the water business requirements:

Daily water demand

Daily supply from each source (including non-drinking water)

Daily monitoring of water sources (river flows, dam levels, groundwater table level)

Daily temperature and rainfall

Impact of restrictions on water consumptions

S I S A N

Comprehensive testing of water quality from any emergency supply such as new bores
before commencing supply. Assistance is available from NSW Health

O Ongoing water source quality:
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= Electrical conductivity (monthly)
=  Total Dissolved Solids (monthly)
=  pH (daily)
= Alkalinity (monthly)
= Algae levels (daily)
=  Taste and odour (on complaint)
=  Chemical analysis (monthly)
= Microbial analysis (weekly)
A chart showing the daily demand, restriction level, temperature and rainfall is to be prepared and

updated at least weekly.

Deep water samples are also need to be tested for chemical and physical analysis to adjust the
treatment processes if required as the dam level goes down.

Monitoring is intended to provide effective management of the incident. Some or all of the data may
be used as part of the communication campaign.

4.6 Communication Strategy
4.6.1 Community

Purpose

The purpose of the communication strategy is to:

O Communicate the restriction levels and expected behaviour in a timely and effective manner

Q Provide general information to the community and businesses and enlist its support and
understanding to the actions taken by ARC

Channels

Some of the communication channels that may be used:

Advertisements on radio, television and newspapers

Press releases

Social media

Interviews / media conferences / presentation to community group meetings
Signs in key locations and major roadways

Place copies of the restrictions notice on common noticeboards around the town

Have the restrictions explained in schools so that the message gets taken home

0o 0O 000 0 0 o

Letterbox drop of the notice and Brochure or mail out to all residents and business. Include
these with water bills

O

Rangers carrying additional brochures to be passed out where they initially warn residents
Announcement by high profile persons (e.g. Mayor)

Develop a program to make hotel and motel guests aware of the restrictions in place
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Messages

Typically, the messages include:

O Restriction levels and what they mean

Background / need

O 0 O

appropriately.

Contact List

Effort by Council and stakeholders (e.g. supply side projects)

Contact for special cases / exemptions / additional information

Table 5: Contact Details of the Local Media

Organisation

Armidale Express

Address

115 Faulkner Street ARMIDALE 2350

This is not a failure, but an event that occurs due to circumstances, and it is managed

Phone

02 6776 0500

The Guyra Argus 02 6776 0500
Radio 2AD 123 Rusden St Armidale 2350 026772 1144
FM 100.3 02 6772 1333

2TM (gives their news to the above)

Radio Centre, Goonoo Goonoo Road, South
Tamworth

02 6765 7055

02 6765 9585

2ARM- FM
Community Radio

92.1 Armidale

PO Box 707 ARMIDALE 2350

02 6772 1486

Tune! FM UNE 106.9 FM

University of New England

ARMIDALE 2350

026773 2399

ABC New England North West

470 Peel Street

Tamworth 2340

02 6760 2411

Fax: 02 6760 2499

Prime Television Tamworth

PO Box 634 Calala 2340

0267619777

NBN Television

226 Bridge St
TAMWORTH 2340

02 6762 1990

Fax: (02) 6762 1995

TEN Television (Northern NSW)

Shop 4 Tamworth Lifestyle centre
31-41 The Ringers Rd. Tamworth 2340

02 6763 2700

SBS Television

1800 500 727
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4.6.2 Agencies

Purpose

The separate communication strategy is required for regulators, other government agencies, Water

Managers and neighbouring utilities in order to:

O Share resources for managing the drought
O Apply for regulatory and financial support as required
O Obtain access to alternative water sources.

Contact List

Table 6: Contact Details of Government Agencies

Organisation

DPIE Water Glenn George, 02 66530127 | glenn.george@dpi.nsw.gov.
Regional Manager North au

EPA Michael Lewis, 2 6773 7000 Michael.Lewis@epa.nsw.go
Regional Operations Office - 0418 208 635 | L-au
Armidale

NSW Health Glenn Pearce, 02 6764 8000 | glenn.pearce@hnehealth.ns
Senior Environmental Health W.gov.ay,
Officer

NSW Fire Brigade 66 Barney St ARMIDALE 2350 02 6771 5076

Rural Fire Services Fire Control Centre 026771
Mann St ARMIDALE 2350 2400
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5 Recovery Strategy

The recovery process will commence at the end of the response operations. The end of the drought
should start with Council revoking drought conditions. The DMT will cease operation, but members
will still be available to assist the Recovery Coordinator, mainly in debriefing and assessing the
response.

A Recovery Coordinator will be appointed by the DMT to oversee the recovery process. The Recovery
Coordinator will be responsible for:

O Preparing a response report and recommending actions based on the experience. The report
will be submitted to the General Manager within 4 weeks of revoking the drought condition
and to Council within 8 weeks. Once endorsed by Council the report will become the main
component of the preparedness stage

O Assessing the remaining drought impacts and determining the appropriate personnel to co-
ordinate the recovery activities. This will be based on the drought recovery survey described
below.

A drought recovery survey will be developed to evaluate the recovery process needed to restore the
physical infrastructure and the restoration of emotional, social, economic and physical wellbeing. The
drought recovery survey will assess the following criteria in order to determine the recovery actions
required:

QO Ownership: Determine the ownership of private or public asset and the source of assistance
that may be available

Q Severity of impact: Develop a scale to determine the severity of social, economic and
financial impact to be based upon

O Time to recover: Evaluate a timeframe required to recover from the drought impact
O Cost of impacts: The financial loss due to the drought impact

O Resources required: Resources (financial and others) required to complete the recovery
process

With the outcomes of the drought recovery survey, ARC will be able to seek the appropriate
resources to address the recovery needs. The recovery process will involve restoring the community
to the point where normal social and economic activities may resume.

ARC will not compensate private customers for costs or financial losses caused by the drought. ARC,
however, will assist customers and co-ordinate activities associated with seeking compensation from
other sources such as government and insurance companies.

When the drought period is considered over and the conditions return to normal, the following
actions are to be considered:

O Reviewing the Drought Management Plan and actions in the light of experience

Q Insurance compensation
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Government assistance
Liaise with tax office to provide tax relief (reduction or delay of payment deadline)
Develop rehabilitation/recovery programs based on the drought recovery survey

Ensure fire control programs are in place

0O 0 0O 0 O

Assist the community in resolving conflicts.
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6 Water Supply Scheme

6.1 Location

Armidale Regional Council (ARC) located in the New England Region of New South Wales, is half-way
between Brisbane and Sydney, and was formed from amalgamation in 2016 of the former Armidale
Dumaresq Council and adjoining Guyra Shire Council. ARC is also the Local Water Utility (LWU).
Armidale city, as the region’s centre, has a population of about 22,000 and a further 2000 live in
Guyra 35Km north of Armidale and 6000 in rural areas and other villages.

‘@MOREDUN

JBBAMURRY

‘@TUBBAMURRA

SWARDS MISTAKE

ARMIDALE REGIONAL COUNCIL
ARC Losal Govemment Area (LGA)

@ Towns & Vilsges

Bl 5oooniraton
1 sours s

Major Road

. JHGUYRA
BROCKLEY
GREEN HILLS
oUNTAIN

LACK MOUNTAIN

e Raiway

AUTHOR:
SAM BURNS (IS Coordinatar]
CODRDINATE SYSTEM:

e
F OLLOMO
s HDALE
Nap Gretof Austraka {Zone 55) 3
oaTUM [KINGSTOWN] o MIDALE heronnoss WOLLOMOME!
Geodetic Datum of Austrakia (GDAS)
COUNCIL DATA:

Armidale Regional Councll
METZY QHILLGROVE

DISCLAIMER:

indication of
o

f
ground shape only.
Prowidad for ntended purpase anly and
may not to be usad for any other purpose.

copyRGHTS:
Cadastral and Topographic Information:
NSW Spatial Sevices.

ARMIDALE
Regichal Coundl
N
-
A CARRAI PLATEAU
0 10

kilometers

Figure 1: Location Map

6.2 Existing Water Supply Schemes

ARC has two water supply schemes for Armidale and Guyra as shown in Figure 2.

Armidale’s main water source is Malpas Dam holding 12,260ML and was built in 1968. The dam
provides a high level of drought security to Armidale, confirmed in a recent review of the dam’s
secure yield. Puddledock and Gara Dams have been retained as backups in case the supply from
Malpas Dam needs to be interrupted for operational reasons. Pipes from all three dams manifold to a
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common DN450 steel inlet to the single Water Treatment Plant on north side of town. Water
Treatment Plant consists of Coagulation and flocculation, Horizontal sedimentation tank, Ozonation
Plant, Biological activated carbon filtration and Soda ash, Chlorine gas and Fluoride dosing units.
Ozonation plant was installed in 2008 and has design capacity of 22.5 ML/d. Finished water
gravitates or pumped to various clear water reservoirs and then to the customers.

Guyra’s town water is sourced from two small dams located on the Gara River, 7km north of the
town. Hydrologic studies show that the dams are too small to guarantee supply during an extended
drought. The ‘secure yield’ of the dams is 390 million litres a year compared to an average annual
usage of 435 million litres.

Two 70L/s duplicate pumps transfer raw water from Guyra #1 Dam via parallel rising mains to a 0.4
ML balancing tank and then water gravitates to the water treatment plant. The plant has a nominal
capacity of 6.05 ML per day and is located approx. 2.5km north of Guyra on Falconer Road. After
treatment, water is pumped to two clear water reservoirs, 0.9 ML and 2.5 ML capacity. From the
reservoirs, water is distributed by a gravity reticulation network to consumers including a large scale
glasshouse farm to grow tomatoes. One exception is the supply by a dedicated line from the
treatment plant to the old Abattoir site on the northern side of Guyra which now operates as a rabbit
farm.

Figure 2: ARC Water Supply Schemes
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6.3 Water Sources

6.3.1 Existing Sources

Armidale water supply scheme has 3 water supply storage dams; Malpas, Puddledock and Gara Dam
and Guyra water supply has two small dams as shown in Fig 4. Malpas can also supply to the Guyra.
There is 1 additional Dumaresq Dam in Armidale but is used only for recreational purpose.

10 0 10 km

Legend

Rainfall Stations
® Dam Locations
A Streamflow Gauging Stations
Main River
B Towns
] Catchment_Subdivied_2
ROADS

OO

5araRiverRyanda

PN

Puddledock Dam

Gara Dam

GaraRiver@Gara -

Fig 4: Gara River Catchment
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Brief details of all water source dams are provided in the Table 7.

Table 7: Brief details Water Supply Sources

Dam Catchment | Total Dead Inundated | Licenced | Enviro Headworks Spillway

Area (kmz) Capacity | Storag | area at FSL | annual release Transfer Elevation

(ML) e (ML) | (ha) extractio | (ML/day) | Capacities (m)
n volume (ML/day)
(ML)*
Gravi | With
ty Pump

Armidale Water Supply Scheme
Malpas 196 12,266 105 179.67 6772 1-3* 19.0 25.9 1175.70
Dam
Puddledoc | 24 696 - 14.10 - unknown | 1.0 6.0 1063.71
k Dam
Gara Dam | 397 219 - 9.40 130 0.2 n/a 4.8 943.03
Guyra Water Supply Scheme
South 74 112 2 4.78 729 - n/a 6.0 1262.8
Guyra
Dam
North 73 352 52 13.58 - - n/a n/a 1267.3
Guyra
Dam

#If inflows measured at Willow Glenn are less than 1ML/day then release is inflows plus 1ML/day, if inflows are
>1ML/day but < 6ML/day then outflows 22 ML/day, if inflows are >6ML/day then outflows >3 ML/day. The
release will cease when dam levels reaches to 55% of its total capacity.

*Based On Bathymetric Survey — CEH 2015 for Guyra Dams and Michel 1999 in case of Malpas/Puddledock and

Gara.

Malpas has a catchment of about 195km2 which includes the catchment for Guyra’s two water

supply dams. The dam was designed with the potential to add gates to the spillway to double
storage capacity. Design drawings show a future Full Supply Level about 5.5m (18 feet) higher than
the current spillway level. The 35km long delivery pipeline from Malpas Dam to Armidale is mostly
DN450 MSCL pipe. Under gravity the main can deliver 220L/s from Malpas to Armidale. A water

pumping station was built in 1987 just downstream of the Dam which can boost flow to 300 L/s.

Water restriction has never been applied in Armidale water supply scheme since Malpas dam was
built however the dam storage went down to 5000ML (38.5% of then capacity 13000ML) in May
1981 which is the recorded lowest level and it went down to 57% more recently in January 2015 as
shownin Fig5.
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Malpas Dam Storage (%) Trend
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Fig 5: Malpas Dam Historical Storage

Puddledock dam is on Puddledock Creek about 14km northeast of Armidale and was built in 1928.
Gravity supply from the dam to Armidale Water Treatment is very limited, about 1ML/day through a
DN300 pipeline. The small Puddledock water pumping station can boost the supply to 6ML/day if
Malpas Dam is offline. Council has secured NSW Government Safe and Secure funding to replace
much of the pipeline and relocate the booster station to enable 10ML/d to be drawn from
Puddledock Dam. This work is expected to commence in the first half of 2021.

Gara Dam is a small concrete gravity dam on the Gara River about 13km east of Armidale. The dam
was built in the 1950s. Supply from the dam must be pumped to get it to the Water Treatment Plant.
There are two booster pumping stations on the DN250 delivery main, both in poor condition. Council
is considering for decommissioning of the dam.

Two Guyra dams North and South (also known as Top and Bottom or Dam 2 and Dam 1 respectively)
are located on the Gara River about 7km north of Guyra town. South or Dam 1 was built in 1957 and
the North or Dam 2 was built in 1967 in such a way that the Dam 2 flows directly into Dam 1. The
Dam 2 was designed with the provision to raise the height of dam wall by a further 3.3m. A pump
station fitted with duty/standby pumps rated at 70 I/s pumps water from South dam (Dam 1) to 0.4
ML balancing tank and then water gravitates to the water treatment plant. Frequent restrictions
have been applied in Guyra in last three years but there is no record of restrictions prior to that.

All of ARC dams had a history of cyanobacterial (blue green algae) events and ARC undertakes regular
algae monitoring of all of its dams. Cyanobacteria when in excessive number can cause odours, taints
and tastes. They can also produce harmful toxins.
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Guyra Dam Storage (%) Trend
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Fig 6: Guyra Dams Historical Storage

6.3.2 Potential Sources

Alternate sources of water in Armidale Regional Council area are limited. Few of them are discussed
below and will also require further investigation if they can be used in drought.

Dead Storage

Dead storage is the lowest portion of dam storage that is usually not accessible under normal
operations. Water quality is generally quite poor when water levels drop to such low levels. There
may be opportunities to use dead storage water for non potable use.

Ground Water

Council is in seeking approval from NRAR for Water Access Licences to extract groundwater from
four bores in Guyra. Council has sought a maximum extraction of 512 MLs per annum from the bore
network to be piped to Guyra’s water treatment plant.

Water Cartage

Water carting to Armidale may be very difficult and expensive. Any potential water source in case of
severe drought in Armidale is from Tamworth, Bellingen or Inverell which all are 100 to 200Km away
from Armidale. Using $0.56/Km/KL (the figure sourced from Coffs Harbour Drought Management
Plan 2012 which in turn was based on carting event from Berridale to Cooma to relieve a blue-green
algae incident and the cost was slightly less in case of carting water from Armidale to Guyra in 2019)
for transport, it will cost about $267 K daily or S8M for a month to supply 50 % of average demand of
6.35ML per day. It will require 2 trips for 45 water trucks each with 35KL capacity. The exercise is
going to be difficult to manage logistically and is also very expensive.

However, water carting may be possible in case of Guyra scheme. It is anticipated that water carting
from Armidale to Guyra would require 6 water trucks each with 20KL capacity for 10 hours per day
(20 kI per load x 5 loads per day x 6 trucks = 0.6MI / day) to supply 50 % of average demand of
1.22ML per day. It will approximately cost $12K per day to maintain the supply of 50% of average
demand.
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Technical and financial assistance towards the cost of water cartage is available from the NSW
Government but is subject to quantities and cartage arrangements being agreed with DPIE Water.

6.4 Water Demand

6.4.1 Water Pricing
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Fig 7: Water Usage Charge and Residential Revenue from Usage (Source: ARC TBL Water
Supply Performance 2015-16)

NSW Best-Practice Pricing states that at least 75 % of residential revenue is from water usage charges
for utilities with 4,000 or more connected properties and is at least 50% for smaller utilities. Armidale
Regional Council’s water usage charge is slightly above state median and its residential revenue from
usage charge is around 75% for a few years, which should provide a strong pricing signal as
anticipated in NSW Best-Practice Management Framework.

6.4.2 Water Users

Population of Armidale Regional Council is 30,311 (ABS ERP 2016). It is estimated that 22,000 people
in Armidale, 2000 people in Guyra is covered by reticulated water supply system. The remaining
population of about 6,000 are currently obtaining water from rainwater tanks and private bores.

As the drought becomes more severe there will be an increasing number of rural properties with
rainwater tanks requiring refill from the town water supply system. This may create an additional
demand of about 1ML per day (6000 x 150 Lpcd) in Council’s water supply system. These are
generally accessed from standpipes in Armidale (2) and Guyra. The standpipes are metered and
charged using a credit card. The standpipes have been restricted to residents of ARC Local
Government Area, but this was difficult to monitor and there was evidence of residents and water
carters transporting water outside of the LGA.

ARC’s water supply dams were designed and constructed solely to provide for the long-term security
of town water supply during any drought. Environmental release from Malpas dam will cease when it
gets to 55% of its storage and the other dams do not have requirements for environment release.
However farmers living along the Gara River downstream of the dams may demand water release
which may not be possible to meet.
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6.4.3 Historical and Current Water Usage

User pay pricing was introduced in the 1990’s, which resulted in a 35% reduction in consumption.
Nevertheless, household water consumption is higher than NSW State average and national median
as shown in the Fig 8. There has been significant increase in water usage price from 2020/21 and its
impact is still to be seen.

kLiprop
o#w B BHBEEH

LEGEND

Statewide median for all years

National median for all years X Statewide Top 20%

Fig 8: Armidale (left) and Guyra (right) Average Annual Residential Water Usage (K|/property)

In the last 10 years, Armidale average daily water production is 7.65ML with peak daily demand of
18.72ML as shown in the Fig 9.

Armidale Daily Water Production, ML

Fig 9: Armidale Historical Daily Water Production, ML

In the last 10 years, Guyra average daily water production is 1.22ML with peak daily demand of
4.71ML as shown in the Fig 9.
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Guyra Daily Water Production, ML

Fig 10: Guyra Historical Daily Water Production, ML

Breakdown of water consumption by customer category is as shown in the Fig 11 and 12. 70% of
Armidale water use is from residential customers whereas it is only 32% in case of Guyra. Glass house
tomato uses more than 40% of water in Guyra. Target restriction in case of Armidale can be achieved
with the focus on residential customers but it may not be possible in case of Guyra without the help

from the tomato farm.

3%

B Residential
B Commercial
I Instituitional

B Parks

Fig 11: Armidale Average Water Consumption by Customer Category
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Fig 12: Guyra Water Consumption by Customer Category

6.4.4 Top Water Consumers

It is recommended that ARC approaches major water users in advance of drought to make special
arrangements for water restrictions during droughts. Whilst it may be the case that significant
savings can be made during droughts, many of the large potable water users may not be able to cut
back their consumption without affecting their services, production and/or staffing levels. Council
should take this into consideration when preparing special arrangements with each customer. The
customers with higher non-essential water use should be targeted first.

6.4.5 Dry Year Annual Demand Analyses

Extract of draft IWCM Issues paper have been reproduced below for current and forecasted demand
in Armidale and Guyra.

Table 8: Armidale Water Forecast

2016 | 2018 | 2023 | 2028 | 2033 | 2038 | 2043 2048

yerage year metered 2421 2476 | 2,617 | 2762 | 2,909 | 3,064 | 3235 3414
demand (ML/year)

Peak day production

(ML/day) 18 18 20 21 22 23 24 26
Dry year extraction 3675 | 3,764 | 3,994 4230| 4470| 4722 | 4,999 | 5289
(ML/year)

Table 9: Guyra Water Forecast

2016 | 2022 | 2027 2032 | 2037 | 2042 2046

Average year demand
production (ML/year)

Peak day production (ML/day) 4.4 4.5 4.6 4.7 4.8 4.8 5.0

425 433 444 456 469 485 504

Dry year extraction (ML/year) 589 607 625 644 666 690 712
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7 Climate

7.1 Rainfall, Evaporation and Temperature

The New England Region experiences a dry sub—humid temperate climate with the majority of rain
falling in the summer months. Average annual rainfall is just less than 800mm in Armidale which goes
up to about 900mm in Guyra as shown in Fig: 13 Isohyetal Map for Gara River Catchment. Mean
monthly maximum temperatures vary from 26.8 degrees Celsius in January to 10.1 degrees Celsius in
July and mean monthly minimum temperatures vary from 13.9 degrees Celsius in January to -1.1
degrees in July. The mean annual evaporation is approximately 1600mm, with monthly values
varying from 60mm in June to 210mm in January.
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Figure 13: Isohyetal Map

Attachment 1 Page 231



Attachment 1 ARC Drought Management Plan 2020 DRAFT

ARMIDALE (RADIO STATION 2AD) GUYRA POST OFFICE

°C 40 120 mm  °C 40 120 mm
100 100
80 80
15 . . 60 15 60
40 40

20 20

[} -10
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Mean daily miimum temp. Mean daiy mirimum temp.

Mean daly masimum femp [ — Mean daiy maximum temp. i -
oan monthly il -
Highestlowest on record Highesthomest an record " i ki, 20NE Higheetlowest on record Highestfowest on record I an oy i ey Z0NS

Note: Armidale Radio (BOM station 56002) commenced in 1857 and closed in 1997 and Guyra Post Office (BOM
Station 56016) commenced in 1886 and is current.

Fig 14: Armidale (left) and Guyra (right) Climate Data

7.2 Climate Change

NSW Climate Impact Profile 2010 predicts some changes to climate. Daily maximum temperatures in
the New England/North West region are projected to increase over all seasons by 1-3°C. Rainfall is
projected to increase in all seasons except winter, when it is expected to decrease by 10-20%.
Evaporation is likely to increase throughout the year Overall water balance is likely to remain similar
to what it is at present, but with some redistribution of runoff likely to produce substantial increases
in summer and a substantial decrease during spring and winter.

The NSW Office of Water engaged NSW Public Works to conduct a pilot study to determine the
potential impact of variable climatic patterns on 11 local water utility water supply systems in
regional NSW. The pilot study found that future secure yield under the methodology proposed by
NOW(2013) also known as “5/10/10” rule, is reduced by up to 9% for coastal and table land utilities
and by approximately 30% for inland water utilities in mid and southern NSW. The pilot study used
0.92C global warming by ~ 2030 and the 15 global climate models.

Secure yield of ARC water supply dams were found to be reduced by about 32% with the
consideration of climate change (NUWS 2020). The study utilised climate data provided by DPIE
Water for a future climate change scenario corresponding to a 1 degree rise in global temperature by
year 2030.

7.3 Drought Restrictions History

Council introduced water restriction in late February 2019 in Guyra and early March 2019 in
Armidale. It was the first water restriction imposed in Armidale since Malpas Dam was built in 1968.
However, water restrictions have been applied in the past in Guyra.

Some of the actions Council took during the restrictions are listed below

e Demand management through education, rebates and imposed restrictions;

e Finding and fixing leaks in ageing infrastructure;
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e Water carting from Armidale to Guyra;

e Commissioning of Malpas Dam to Guyra pipeline.

e Additional testing — deep water samples

e Targeting high water users to constrain consumption

. (h)ffedring rebates on residential water tanks, front loading dish washers and shower
eads.
As the drought worsens, higher level of water restrictions were progressively introduced with Level 5
Emergency water restrictions on 24 June 2019 in Guyra and 1 October in Armidale. Residential water
consumption was below the target level of 160 litres per capita per day since the introduction of
level 5 restriction as shown in the graph below.

ARMIDALE REGION- PER CAPITA WATER USE
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Fig 15: Residential Water Use in Armidale and Guyra combined during the drought
Some of the highlights of 2019 drought were

e Malpas and Guyra dam catchment, as measured by Guyra Post Office weather station (the
Bureau’s Station No. 056016), observed 330.8mm of rainfall in 2019 which is NOT only the
lowest in 130 years but 40% less than the second lowest (553.9mm) recorded in 1919,
exactly a century ago.

e Guyra dam hit the level that it couldn’t supply Guyra town forcing water carting from
Armidale.

e Malpas dam level fell to 32.8% on 15th Jan 2020. The lowest since it was built in 1970.

e Poor water quality, as dam level drops to unprecedented level, provided extra challenges to
treat water.
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Fig 16: Malpas Dam Storage Trend and the Rainfall in the last 20 years
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8 Regulatory Framework

8.1 Armidale Regional Council

ARC delivers water under the provisions of the NSW Local Government Act 1993. Some aspects of the
water business are carried out under the provisions of the NSW Water Management Act 2000. ARC is
empowered to restrict water supply (e.g. by public notice published in a newspaper circulating within
Armidale Regional Council area) under the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005.

The Local Government Act 1993 Section 637 reads: “a person who wilfully or negligently wastes or
misuses water from a public water supply, or causes any such water to be wasted, is guilty of an
offence”. The maximum penalty which can apply is:

O Maximum penalty: 20 penalty units

Q Current (s17 of Crimes (Sentencing Procedure) Act 1999) penalty unit: $110

Consumers who are identified breaching water restrictions in place may have their supply cut off or
restricted by Council in accordance with Clause 144 of the Local Government (General)
Regulation 2005.

This plan is administered by the Council. During drought, this plan will be overseen by the Drought
Management Team. The implementation of this Drought Management Plan will be the responsibility
of the Drought Incident Manager.

8.2 DPIE Water

8.2.1 General

DPIE Water works with partner agencies and with the community to provide a reliable, sustainable
supply of water for households, irrigators, farmers, industry and the environment.

Available water determinations are made for each water source generally at the start of a water year
(on 1 July). The licensed volume or the percentage of the share component is defined by DPI Water.
Since the introduction of the Water Management Act 2000, DPI Water is preparing water sharing
plans for rivers and groundwater systems across New South Wales.
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8.2.2 Water Sharing Plans

By setting the rules for how water is allocated for the next 10 years, a water sharing plan provides a
decade of certainty for the environment and water users. This not only ensures that water is
specifically provided for the environment through a legally binding plan, but also allows licence
holders, such as irrigators, who require large volumes of water to plan their business activities.

No water supply dams except Malpas dam are not subject to any water sharing plans. Malpas dam is
subject to Water Sharing Plan for the Macleay Unregulated and Alluvial Water Sources 2016
(https://legislation.nsw.gov.au/#/view/subordleg/2016/385). The plan was made under section 50 of
the Water Management Act 2000 and commenced on 1 July 2016. Section 28 of the plan sets the
following rules for Malpas Dam releases (current as January 2017):

“28 Releases in the Malpas Dam Water Source

(1) In the Malpas Dam Water Source, releases of water must be made from Malpas Dam in
accordance with this clause.

(2) Subject to subclause (3), when inflows to Malpas Dam, as measured at the Gara River at Willow
Glen gauge (206035), are:

(a) less than 1 ML/day, a release equal to or greater than the inflows plus 1 ML/day, as
measured at the Gara River downstream Malpas Dam gauge (206039), must be made from
Malpas Dam, or

(b) equal to or greater than 1 ML/day and less than or equal to 6 ML/day, a release of 2
ML/day or greater, as measured at the Gara River downstream Malpas Dam gauge (206039),
must be made from Malpas Dam, or

(c) greater than 6 ML/day, a release of 3 ML/day or greater, as measured at the Gara River
downstream Malpas Dam gauge (206039), must be made from Malpas Dam.

(3) Subclause (2) does not apply when the Malpas Dam is less than or equal to 55% of the dam’s
storage capacity.”

8.3 Fire Fighting Requirements

In spite of the water restriction actions, preference will be provided to accommodating firefighting
requirements.

Minimum of 150KL of water is reserved for firefighting purpose in each reservoir, which is able to
provide water for 4 hours with a flow rate of 10I/s. In the event that the emergency conditions last
for more than 3 days, fire services will be directed to arrange alternate water source (e.g. water
tankers) if appropriate.

Council anticipates making available to the NSW RFS all of its tank storages holding groundwater.
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Appendix A DPI Water Drought Management Plan Checklist

Extract of DPI Water Best — Practice Management Guidelines — Strategic Business Plan — Drought

Management Plan Checklist

Strategic Business Plan — Check List

6.6 Drought I'«»’IanagnemEﬂt“'B

O a.

O B

Are all water supply sources suitably monitored (eg. level,
flow, relevant water quality) and recorded? If nat,
implement suitable monitoring and recording.

Includes a graph of the water demand over time with
super-imposed restriction periods, storage/ground water
level and relevant climatic data since the last SBP
Update.

Includes a summary of water supply system perfarmance
since the last SBP Update and any
management/emergency respanse actions undertaken.

. Review the adopted drought management plan, especially

the schedule of trigger points for drought water restrictions
and the level of water restrictions, and the associated
measures. Update where warranted and include as an
Appendix.

* All items under this element must be reviewed when preparing the Strategic Business Plan.

a
addressed in your SBP.

A separate Drought Management Plan with NOW Concurrence will not be necessary in the future if these items are
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Appendix B Detailed Restriction Rules

Details of Restriction Levels and Proposed Rules

In addition to Permanent Water Conservation Measures, there are five levels of water conservation
measures/ restrictions that correlate to the five drought response levels. A general description of
each level of restrictions is included below. The measures also include special provisions for the
elderly, infirmed and disabled.

Permanent Water Conservation Measures: As part of Councils overall Demand Management
strategy in conserving water at all times (during drought and non-drought periods) the following
permanent water conservation measures apply;

e Sprinklers / fixed hoses are not to be used for watering of gardens and lawns between;
8.00am to 6.00pm during Eastern Daylight Saving Time; and between 9.00am and 4.00pm
Eastern Standard Time.

e Hand held hoses fitted with a trigger nozzle may be used at any time for general watering of
gardens and vehicle washing.

e No hosing down of hard surfaces (pressurised hose to be used).

e New turf may be watered at any time with an approved Water Management Plan for up to
six weeks from installation of turf.

Permanent water conservation is voluntary only; the Local Government Act and regulation do not
currently provide a mechanism to enforce these measures except s637 of the Act which prohibits
waste of water.

Level 1 Low: This is the first temporary level of restriction and would involve a restriction on the use
of hoses and drip irrigation systems during the heat of the day, as well as limiting the use of
sprinklers to 2 hours per day. The introduction of this level of restrictions would raise community
awareness of drought conditions, however only minor reductions in water consumptions would be
achieved.

New turf may be watered at any time with an approved Water Management Plan for up to six weeks
from installation of turf.

Level 2 Moderate: This level of restriction would involve a ban on sprinklers, as well as limiting the
use of hoses and drip irrigation systems to 2 hours per day in order to reduce water consumption to
just below average consumption levels. Implementation of this level of restrictions would create
some level of inconvenience for the community; however most lawns and gardens would not be
significantly impacted.

Level 3 High: This level of restriction would further limit the use of hoses and drip irrigation to 2
hours twice a week in order to further reduce water consumption below average consumption levels.
Implementation of this level of restrictions would create inconvenience for the community. Some
losses of lawns and gardens would be expected at this stage.
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Level 4 Very High: This severe level of restriction would involve a ban on all outdoor and non-
essential usage in order to reduce water consumption to around winter consumption levels. Due to
the major impacts of this level of restrictions, implementation of level 4 restrictions would only occur
in very rare circumstances. Impacts would include the severe stress, and in many cases dying off, of
lawns and gardens. Non-residential customers would be urged to reduce their demand.

Level 5 Emergency: This extreme level of restriction would involve an all-out campaign to reduce
water consumption to absolute minimum levels (<150 L/person/day). This level of restrictions would
involve a major disruption to normal lifestyles, including reduced shower times, reduced number of
washing machine loads and a ban on the use of residential evaporative coolers (except where
exemptions apply). Non-residential customers would be requested to restrict the use of water for
only essential services. Aggressive water conservation measures are at Level 5 to extend Armidale’s
water supply for as long as possible, wit the possible temporary shutting down of non-essential,
water dependent services.

Level 5 Emergency restrictions will have further three ‘trigger points’, based on the number of days
before the town water supply runs out. Level 5 Trigger 1 will commence when total storage level get
to about 40 % (or 365 days of water is left in the dam) and progress to Triger 2 with 250 days and
Trigger 3 with 60 days. Each trigger point has specific messaging and actions and is outlined in the
ARC Drought Management Water Restrictions Communication and Engagement Strategy 2019.
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Armidale Regional Council Drought Management Plan - Water Restriction Guide

Category Activity Permanent Eeveln Level 3 Level 4
Moderate High Very High
Total storage 70% 60% 55%
(%)
Target demand 200 L/P/D 170 L/P/D 160 L/P/D 155 L/P/D
General Buckets/cans 2 hours Recycled water Recycled water Recycled water Recycled X | Recycled
watering Note D only only only water only water only
lawns and Hand held Not during heat of 2 hours 2 Hours X
gardens hoses (with the day Note E Note D On Sunday and
trigger nozzle) Wednesday Note D
Water efficient Not during heat of 2 hours X
drip irrigation the day Note E Note D
Sprinklers and Not during 2 hours only Note D X
fixed hoses heat of the
day
Watering of Not during Not during heat of 2 hours 2 Hours X
new turf for heat of the the day Note E Note D On Sunday and
upto 6 weeks day Wednesday Note D
Public parks, | Watering Not during heat of Selected parks Selected parks and X
gardens and vegetation the day Note E and sports field sports field and all
facilities and all garden garden beds. Note G&H
beds. Note E& H
Vehicle Buckets Not during heat of the Windscreen Windscreen Windscreen Windscreen R | Windscreen
washing day Note E /Licence plate /Licence plate /Licence plate /Licence plate /Licence plate
cleaning only cleaning only cleaning only cleaning only cleaning only
Hand held Not during heat of 2 hours Note D X
hoses the day Note E
Washing High pressure X
down hard cleaner
surfaces Hand held X
hoses
Private Filling Permit required for Permit required X
swimming filling pools >5kL for filling pools
pools >5kL
Topping up Buckets only - no fixed X
hoses.
Council Lawns and Lawn areas watered Lawn areas Lawn areas watered in X
swimming surrounds in accordance with watered in accordance with Level
pool Level 1 restrictions accordance 3 restrictions
with Level 2
restrictions
Topping up X
Hydrotherapy No No restrictions to No restrictions No restrictions to No restrictions No restrictions No restrictions No v | No
Pool restrictions to health facilities to health health facilities to health to health to health restrictions to restrictions to
health facilities facilities facilities facilities health health
facilities facilities facilities
Evaporative Use of water for Business, Business, Business, R Business,
coolers cooling commercial and commercial and commercial commercial
domestic aged domestic aged and domestic and domestic
and disabled and disabled aged and aged and
only. only. disabled only. disabled only.
Water Treated water Internal domestic use Internal Internal Internal Internal R | Internal
cartage for stock and only domestic use domestic use domestic use domestic use domestic use

domestic

only

only

only

only

only
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Armidale Regional Council Drought Management Plan - Water Restriction Guide

Category Activity Permanent Level 3 Level 4
High Very High

Total storage 60% 55%

(%)

Target demand 200 L/P/D 160 L/P/D 155 L/P/D

Treated water | ¥

for all other

uses
Commercial General use v Target 15% reduction Target 20% Target 25% Target 25% Target 25% Target 25%
and industrial | (excl lawns and in usage. reduction in reduction in reduction in reduction in reduction in

garden) usage. usage. usage. usage. usage.

Landscaping v Not during heat of Hand held

(incl lawns and the day Note E hoses only for 2

garden) hours Note D

Irrigation of v Not during heat of 2 hours with Target 50% reduction

sports areas the day Note E Water approved in usage

Management Plan Water
encouraged Management
Plan Note D

Elm St Guyra | Irrigation of v Target 15% reduction Target 20% Target 25% reduction in usage with approved Water Management Plan — supply
Tomato Farm | Hydroponic in usage. reduction in may be limited to the amenities when Malpas dam gets to 35%.

Tomatoes usage.
Key: Notes:

v'= Allowed at all times

A. Restrictions apply to the use of Armidale and Guyra town water.

X = Banned at all times

B. Greywater and rainwater can be used at any time provided that rainwater tanks are not topped up from town supplies.

R = Restricted use only

C. A Water Management Plan may be approved to allow the use of fixed sprinklers outside the nominated hours during Permanent and Level 1 restriction periods.

D. Any reference to 2 hours of restricted watering means between the hours of 6.00 pm and 8.00 pm during daylight saving and 5.00 pm and 7.00 pm at all other times.

E. Not during the heat of the day means not between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm during daylight saving and 10.00 am and 3.00 pm at other times.

F. Periods of water restrictions Level 1 to Level 5 will be policed by Council Officers. The maximum penalty under the Local Government Act for a breach of restrictions is $2,200 for corporations and $220 for individuals.

G. Selected parks and sports fields may be watered for 1 watering cycle on Mondays & Thursdays outside the daytime.

H. Armidale Central Park, Armidale Sportsground, Rologas Field, Harris Park, Guyra Lions Park Sporting Complex
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Survey Responses

28 October 2020 - 26 November 2020

Survey - drought management - town
water

Your Say Armidale

Project: Survey - Share your views on drought management - town water supply

eaLo* BANG THE TABLE
1~ engagementHQ.

VISITORS

114

CONTRIBUTORS RESPONSES

/2 /2
9) 2 65 9) 2 65

Registered Unverified Anonymous Registered Unverified Anonymous
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— Respondent No: 1 Responded At: Nov 16, 2020 17:17:13 pm
{ '. Login: Last Seen: Nov 26, 2020 21:15:48 pm
Email: IP Address: 106.69.132.208
Q1. During the recent stakeholder sessions on the YES

development of a new Drought Management
Plan it was generally agreed that five restriction
levels was the best option due to consistency
with neighbouring regions and ease of
messaging for the community.Level 1 = 80
%Level 2 = 70 %Level 3 = 60 %Level 4 = 55
%Level 5 = 50 %Noting that Triggers escalation
and relaxation needed to be indexed on climate
forecasts; consumption patterns and storage
behaviourNoting that Trigger relaxation needs
to consider climatic forecasting and the time of
year and there must be at available water of
next level coming out of restrictionsDo you

agree?

Q2. Atthe triggers agreed upon the litres per YES
person per day consumption target per trigger
level are listed below.Level 1 =180 LLevel 2 =
170 LLevel 3 = 160 LLevel 4 = 150 LLevel 5 = 140
LLevel 5a = 120 L / Day zero messaging just
over a yearLevel 5b = 100 LLevel 5¢ = 80 LDo
you agree?

Q3. As we move into a new understanding of 190-180 Litres /person/day
managing our town water usage for the long
term. We need to consider what our 'new
normal’ is for average per person per day water
consumption when not under water restriction
rules. The NSW State average is approx. 180L
/person/day.At the height of the drought
emergency in 2019 when we were on maximum
water saving, residents in this region did an
amazing job and managed to bring their water
consumption right down to 145L
/person/day.What do you consider should be

the Armidale region’s 'new normal'?

Q4. Public swimming pools are a valuable social NO
outlet for many people in the community, they
also provide relief from summer temperatures
and a place to regularly exercise.Should public
swimming pools be open during level 5

restrictions?
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Q5. Heritage listed public parks like Armidale's YES
Central Park are home to very old and rare
species of trees. During the drought in 2019 the
park was under extreme stress and some trees
were struggling and could have died. Council
was able to source non-potable water to try to
keep the trees alive but there was only enough
water for about two watering sessions a week
for a limited period.Should heritage listed public
parks like Central Park be watered during level
4 and 5 water restrictions?

Q6. If Council could find a sustainable source of YES
water (Ground water or safe recycled water) to
water playing fields and parks as an alternative
to using potable water, would you be in favour
of this option?

Q7. When should irrigating of sportsfields be At level 4
stopped?

Q8. To assist Council to manage the Armidale 1. Financial incentives offered to new residential and business
region's water infrastructure and to develop construction and to developers for increased water conservation
initiatives to improve water conservation please 2. Invest in Smart Water Metre Readers (approx. cost $5 million)
rank the projects below. from 1. being the 3. Continue investing in ongoing water conservation education
highest priority to 6. the lowest. programs

4. The Armidale region to become a leader in water conservation
and sustainability. Water utility management decisions would be
based on best practice water conservation strategies
5. Signage be mandated on properties that can access the potable
network but also use an alternative water source like water tanks
(not connected into the potable netwark) or underground water.
6. Change types of trees in park to be more water resistant —
Irrigation Modernisation
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— Respondent No: 2 Responded At: Nov 16, 2020 17:39:52 pm
{ 0\ Login: Anonymous Last Seen: Nov 16, 2020 17:39:52 pm
Email: n/a IP Address: n/a
Q1. During the recent stakeholder sessions on the YES

development of a new Drought Management
Plan it was generally agreed that five restriction
levels was the best option due to consistency
with neighbouring regions and ease of
messaging for the community.Level 1 = 80
%%lLevel 2 = 70 %Level 3 = 60 %Level 4 = 55
%Level 5 = 50 %Noting that Triggers escalation
and relaxation needed to be indexed on climate
forecasts; consumption patterns and storage
behaviourNoting that Trigger relaxation needs
to consider climatic forecasting and the time of
year and there must be at available water of
next level coming out of restrictionsDo you

agree?

Q2. Atthe triggers agreed upon the litres per YES
person per day consumption target per trigger
level are listed below.Level 1 =180 LLevel 2 =
170 LLevel 3 = 160 LLevel 4 = 150 LLevel 5 = 140
LLevel 5a = 120 L / Day zero messaging just
over a yearLevel 5b = 100 LLevel 5¢ = 80 LDo
you agree?

Q3. Aswe move into a new understanding of 190-180 Litres /person/day
managing our town water usage for the long
term. We need to consider what our 'new
normal' is for average per person per day water
consumption when not under water restriction
rules. The NSW State average is approx. 180L
/person/day.At the height of the drought
emergency in 2019 when we were on maximum
water saving, residents in this region did an
amazing job and managed to bring their water
consumption right down to 145L
Iperson/day.What do you consider should be
the Armidale region's 'new normal'?

Q4. Public swimming pools are a valuable social YES
outlet for many people in the community, they
also provide relief from summer temperatures
and a place to regularly exercise.Should public
swimming pools be open during level 5
restrictions?
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Q5. Heritage listed public parks like Armidale's YES
Central Park are home to very old and rare
species of trees. During the drought in 2019 the
park was under extreme stress and some trees
were struggling and could have died. Council
was able to source non-potable water to try to
keep the trees alive but there was only enough
water for about two watering sessions a week
for a limited period.Should heritage listed public
parks like Central Park be watered during level
4 and 5 water restrictions?

Q6. If Council could find a sustainable source of YES
water (Ground water or safe recycled water) to
water playing fields and parks as an alternative
to using potable water, would you be in favour
of this option?

Q7. When should irrigating of sportsfields be At level 3
stopped?

Q8. To assist Council to manage the Armidale 1. The Armidale region to become a leader in water conservation
region's water infrastructure and to develop and sustainability. Water utility management decisions would be
initiatives to improve water conservation please based on best practice water conservation strategies
rank the projects below. from 1. being the 2. Invest in Smart Water Metre Readers (approx. cost $5 million)
highest priority to 6. the lowest. 3. Change types of trees in park to be more water resistant -

Irrigation Modernisation
4. Signage be mandated on properties that can access the potable
netwark but also use an alternative water source like water tanks
(not connected into the potable network) or underground water.
5. Financial incentives offered to new residential and business
construction and to developers for increased water conservation
6. Continue investing in ongoing water conservation education
programs
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— Respondent No: 3 Responded At: Nov 16, 2020 17:43:22 pm
{ 0\ Login: Anonymous Last Seen: Nov 16, 2020 17:43:22 pm
Email: n/a IP Address: n/a
Q1. During the recent stakeholder sessions on the YES

development of a new Drought Management
Plan it was generally agreed that five restriction
levels was the best option due to consistency
with neighbouring regions and ease of
messaging for the community.Level 1 = 80
%%lLevel 2 = 70 %Level 3 = 60 %Level 4 = 55
%Level 5 = 50 %Noting that Triggers escalation
and relaxation needed to be indexed on climate
forecasts; consumption patterns and storage
behaviourNoting that Trigger relaxation needs
to consider climatic forecasting and the time of
year and there must be at available water of
next level coming out of restrictionsDo you

agree?

Q2. Atthe triggers agreed upon the litres per YES
person per day consumption target per trigger
level are listed below.Level 1 =180 LLevel 2 =
170 LLevel 3 = 160 LLevel 4 = 150 LLevel 5 = 140
LLevel 5a = 120 L / Day zero messaging just
over a yearLevel 5b = 100 LLevel 5¢ = 80 LDo
you agree?

Q3. Aswe move into a new understanding of 210-200 Litres /person/day
managing our town water usage for the long
term. We need to consider what our 'new
normal' is for average per person per day water
consumption when not under water restriction
rules. The NSW State average is approx. 180L
/person/day.At the height of the drought
emergency in 2019 when we were on maximum
water saving, residents in this region did an
amazing job and managed to bring their water
consumption right down to 145L
Iperson/day.What do you consider should be
the Armidale region's 'new normal'?

Q4. Public swimming pools are a valuable social NO
outlet for many people in the community, they
also provide relief from summer temperatures
and a place to regularly exercise.Should public
swimming pools be open during level 5
restrictions?
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Q5.

Heritage listed public parks like Armidale's
Central Park are home to very old and rare
species of trees. During the drought in 2019 the
park was under extreme stress and some trees
were struggling and could have died. Council
was able to source non-potable water to try to
keep the trees alive but there was only enough
water for about two watering sessions a week
for a limited period.Should heritage listed public
parks like Central Park be watered during level
4 and 5 water restrictions?

Other (please specify)

Q6. If Council could find a sustainable source of YES
water (Ground water or safe recycled water) to
water playing fields and parks as an alternative
to using potable water, would you be in favour
of this option?

Q7. When should irrigating of sportsfields be At level 4
stopped?

Q8. To assist Council to manage the Armidale 1. The Armidale region to become a leader in water conservation
region's water infrastructure and to develop and sustainability. Water utility management decisions would be
initiatives to improve water conservation please based on best practice water conservation strategies
rank the projects below. from 1. being the 2. Continue investing in ongoing water conservation education
highest priority to 6. the lowest. programs

3. Invest in Smart Water Metre Readers (approx. cost £5 million)
4. Financial incentives offered to new residential and business
construction and to developers for increased water conservation
5. Change types of trees in park to be more water resistant —
Irrigation Modernisation
6. Signage be mandated on properties that can access the potable
network but also use an alternative water source like water tanks
(not connected into the potable network) or underground water.
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{ 0\ Login: Anonymous Last Seen: Nov 16, 2020 17:49:39 pm
Email: n/a IP Address: n/a
Q1. During the recent stakeholder sessions on the YES

development of a new Drought Management
Plan it was generally agreed that five restriction
levels was the best option due to consistency
with neighbouring regions and ease of
messaging for the community.Level 1 = 80
%%lLevel 2 = 70 %Level 3 = 60 %Level 4 = 55
%Level 5 = 50 %Noting that Triggers escalation
and relaxation needed to be indexed on climate
forecasts; consumption patterns and storage
behaviourNoting that Trigger relaxation needs
to consider climatic forecasting and the time of
year and there must be at available water of
next level coming out of restrictionsDo you

agree?

Q2. Atthe triggers agreed upon the litres per YES
person per day consumption target per trigger
level are listed below.Level 1 =180 LLevel 2 =
170 LLevel 3 = 160 LLevel 4 = 150 LLevel 5 = 140
LLevel 5a = 120 L / Day zero messaging just
over a yearLevel 5b = 100 LLevel 5¢ = 80 LDo
you agree?

Q3. Aswe move into a new understanding of 190-180 Litres /person/day
managing our town water usage for the long
term. We need to consider what our 'new
normal' is for average per person per day water
consumption when not under water restriction
rules. The NSW State average is approx. 180L
/person/day.At the height of the drought
emergency in 2019 when we were on maximum
water saving, residents in this region did an
amazing job and managed to bring their water
consumption right down to 145L
Iperson/day.What do you consider should be
the Armidale region's 'new normal'?

Q4. Public swimming pools are a valuable social YES
outlet for many people in the community, they
also provide relief from summer temperatures
and a place to regularly exercise.Should public
swimming pools be open during level 5
restrictions?
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Q5. Heritage listed public parks like Armidale's YES
Central Park are home to very old and rare
species of trees. During the drought in 2019 the
park was under extreme stress and some trees
were struggling and could have died. Council
was able to source non-potable water to try to
keep the trees alive but there was only enough
water for about two watering sessions a week
for a limited period.Should heritage listed public
parks like Central Park be watered during level
4 and 5 water restrictions?

Q6. If Council could find a sustainable source of YES
water (Ground water or safe recycled water) to
water playing fields and parks as an alternative
to using potable water, would you be in favour
of this option?

Q7. When should irrigating of sportsfields be At level 3
stopped?

Q8. To assist Council to manage the Armidale 1. The Armidale region to become a leader in water conservation
region's water infrastructure and to develop and sustainability. Water utility management decisions would be
initiatives to improve water conservation please based on best practice water conservation strategies
rank the projects below. from 1. being the 2. Invest in Smart Water Metre Readers (approx. cost $5 million)
highest priority to 6. the lowest. 3. Signage be mandated on properties that can access the potable

network but also use an alternative water source like water tanks
(not connected into the potable network) or underground water.
4. Continue investing in ongoing water conservation education
programs
5. Financial incentives offered to new residential and business
construction and to developers for increased water conservation
6. Change types of trees in park to be more water resistant —
Irrigation Modernisation
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— Respondent No: 5 Responded At: Nov 16, 2020 17:50:28 pm
{ 0\ Login: Anonymous Last Seen: Nov 16, 2020 17:50:28 pm
Email: n/a IP Address: n/a
Q1. During the recent stakeholder sessions on the YES

development of a new Drought Management
Plan it was generally agreed that five restriction
levels was the best option due to consistency
with neighbouring regions and ease of
messaging for the community.Level 1 = 80
%%lLevel 2 = 70 %Level 3 = 60 %Level 4 = 55
%Level 5 = 50 %Noting that Triggers escalation
and relaxation needed to be indexed on climate
forecasts; consumption patterns and storage
behaviourNoting that Trigger relaxation needs
to consider climatic forecasting and the time of
year and there must be at available water of
next level coming out of restrictionsDo you

agree?

Q2. Atthe triggers agreed upon the litres per YES
person per day consumption target per trigger
level are listed below.Level 1 =180 LLevel 2 =
170 LLevel 3 = 160 LLevel 4 = 150 LLevel 5 = 140
LLevel 5a = 120 L / Day zero messaging just
over a yearLevel 5b = 100 LLevel 5¢ = 80 LDo
you agree?

Q3. Aswe move into a new understanding of 200-190 Litres /person/day
managing our town water usage for the long
term. We need to consider what our 'new
normal' is for average per person per day water
consumption when not under water restriction
rules. The NSW State average is approx. 180L
/person/day.At the height of the drought
emergency in 2019 when we were on maximum
water saving, residents in this region did an
amazing job and managed to bring their water
consumption right down to 145L
Iperson/day.What do you consider should be
the Armidale region's 'new normal'?

Q4. Public swimming pools are a valuable social YES
outlet for many people in the community, they
also provide relief from summer temperatures
and a place to regularly exercise.Should public
swimming pools be open during level 5
restrictions?

Attachment 2 Page 254



Attachment 2 Survey - Drought Management survey detailed 28 October 20 to 26 November20

Q5. Heritage listed public parks like Armidale's YES
Central Park are home to very old and rare
species of trees. During the drought in 2019 the
park was under extreme stress and some trees
were struggling and could have died. Council
was able to source non-potable water to try to
keep the trees alive but there was only enough
water for about two watering sessions a week
for a limited period.Should heritage listed public
parks like Central Park be watered during level
4 and 5 water restrictions?

Q6. If Council could find a sustainable source of NO
water (Ground water or safe recycled water) to
water playing fields and parks as an alternative

to using potable water, would you be in favour

of this option?

Q7. When should irrigating of sportsfields be At level 3
stopped?

Q8. To assist Council to manage the Armidale 1. The Armidale region to become a leader in water conservation
region's water infrastructure and to develop and sustainability. Water utility management decisions would be

initiatives to improve water conservation please based on best practice water conservation strategies
rank the projects below. from 1. being the 2. Signage be mandated on properties that can access the potable
highest priority to 6. the lowest. network but also use an alternative water source like water tanks
(not connected into the potable network) or underground water.
3. Continue investing in ongoing water conservation education
programs
4. Financial incentives offered to new residential and business
construction and to developers for increased water conservation
5. Change types of trees in park to be more water resistant —
Irrigation Modernisation

6. Invest in Smart Water Metre Readers (approx. cost $5 million)
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— Respondent No: 6 Responded At: Nov 16, 2020 17:54:16 pm
{ 0\ Login: Anonymous Last Seen: Nov 16, 2020 17:54:16 pm
Email: n/a IP Address: n/a
Q1. During the recent stakeholder sessions on the YES

development of a new Drought Management
Plan it was generally agreed that five restriction
levels was the best option due to consistency
with neighbouring regions and ease of
messaging for the community.Level 1 = 80
%%lLevel 2 = 70 %Level 3 = 60 %Level 4 = 55
%Level 5 = 50 %Noting that Triggers escalation
and relaxation needed to be indexed on climate
forecasts; consumption patterns and storage
behaviourNoting that Trigger relaxation needs
to consider climatic forecasting and the time of
year and there must be at available water of
next level coming out of restrictionsDo you

agree?

Q2. Atthe triggers agreed upon the litres per YES
person per day consumption target per trigger
level are listed below.Level 1 =180 LLevel 2 =
170 LLevel 3 = 160 LLevel 4 = 150 LLevel 5 = 140
LLevel 5a = 120 L / Day zero messaging just
over a yearLevel 5b = 100 LLevel 5¢ = 80 LDo
you agree?

Q3. Aswe move into a new understanding of 210-200 Litres /person/day
managing our town water usage for the long
term. We need to consider what our 'new
normal' is for average per person per day water
consumption when not under water restriction
rules. The NSW State average is approx. 180L
/person/day.At the height of the drought
emergency in 2019 when we were on maximum
water saving, residents in this region did an
amazing job and managed to bring their water
consumption right down to 145L
Iperson/day.What do you consider should be
the Armidale region's 'new normal'?

Q4. Public swimming pools are a valuable social YES
outlet for many people in the community, they
also provide relief from summer temperatures
and a place to regularly exercise.Should public
swimming pools be open during level 5
restrictions?
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Q5. Heritage listed public parks like Armidale's NO
Central Park are home to very old and rare
species of trees. During the drought in 2019 the
park was under extreme stress and some trees
were struggling and could have died. Council
was able to source non-potable water to try to
keep the trees alive but there was only enough
water for about two watering sessions a week
for a limited period.Should heritage listed public
parks like Central Park be watered during level
4 and 5 water restrictions?

Q6. If Council could find a sustainable source of YES
water (Ground water or safe recycled water) to
water playing fields and parks as an alternative
to using potable water, would you be in favour
of this option?

Q7. When should irrigating of sportsfields be At level 4
stopped?

Q8. To assist Council to manage the Armidale 1. The Armidale region to become a leader in water conservation
region's water infrastructure and to develop and sustainability. Water utility management decisions would be
initiatives to improve water conservation please based on best practice water conservation strategies
rank the projects below. from 1. being the 2. Invest in Smart Water Metre Readers (approx. cost $5 million)
highest priority to 6. the lowest. 3. Continue investing in ongoing water conservation education

programs
4, Change types of trees in park to be more water resistant —
Irrigation Modernisation
5. Financial incentives offered to new residential and business
construction and to developers for increased water conservation
6. Signage be mandated on properties that can access the potable
network but also use an alternative water source like water tanks
(not connected into the potable network) or underground water.
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— Respondent No: 7 Responded At:  Nov 16, 2020 17:57:54 pm
{ 0\ Login: Anonymous Last Seen: Nov 16, 2020 17:57:54 pm
Email: n/a IP Address: n/a
Q1. During the recent stakeholder sessions on the YES

development of a new Drought Management
Plan it was generally agreed that five restriction
levels was the best option due to consistency
with neighbouring regions and ease of
messaging for the community.Level 1 = 80
%%lLevel 2 = 70 %Level 3 = 60 %Level 4 = 55
%Level 5 = 50 %Noting that Triggers escalation
and relaxation needed to be indexed on climate
forecasts; consumption patterns and storage
behaviourNoting that Trigger relaxation needs
to consider climatic forecasting and the time of
year and there must be at available water of
next level coming out of restrictionsDo you

agree?

Q2. Atthe triggers agreed upon the litres per YES
person per day consumption target per trigger
level are listed below.Level 1 =180 LLevel 2 =
170 LLevel 3 = 160 LLevel 4 = 150 LLevel 5 = 140
LLevel 5a = 120 L / Day zero messaging just
over a yearLevel 5b = 100 LLevel 5¢ = 80 LDo
you agree?

Q3. Aswe move into a new understanding of 200-190 Litres /person/day
managing our town water usage for the long
term. We need to consider what our 'new
normal' is for average per person per day water
consumption when not under water restriction
rules. The NSW State average is approx. 180L
/person/day.At the height of the drought
emergency in 2019 when we were on maximum
water saving, residents in this region did an
amazing job and managed to bring their water
consumption right down to 145L
Iperson/day.What do you consider should be
the Armidale region's 'new normal'?

Q4. Public swimming pools are a valuable social YES
outlet for many people in the community, they
also provide relief from summer temperatures
and a place to regularly exercise.Should public
swimming pools be open during level 5
restrictions?
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Q5. Heritage listed public parks like Armidale's NO
Central Park are home to very old and rare
species of trees. During the drought in 2019 the
park was under extreme stress and some trees
were struggling and could have died. Council
was able to source non-potable water to try to
keep the trees alive but there was only enough
water for about two watering sessions a week
for a limited period.Should heritage listed public
parks like Central Park be watered during level
4 and 5 water restrictions?

Q6. If Council could find a sustainable source of YES
water (Ground water or safe recycled water) to
water playing fields and parks as an alternative

to using potable water, would you be in favour

of this option?

Q7. When should irrigating of sportsfields be At level 4
stopped?

Q8. To assist Council to manage the Armidale 1. The Armidale region to become a leader in water conservation
region's water infrastructure and to develop and sustainability. Water utility management decisions would be

initiatives to improve water conservation please based on best practice water conservation strategies
rank the projects below. from 1. being the 2. Change types of trees in park to be more water resistant —
highest priority to 6. the lowest. Irrigation Modernisation

3. Financial incentives offered to new residential and business

construction and to developers for increased water conservation
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— Respondent No: 8 Responded At: Nov 16, 2020 18:00:17 pm
{ 0\ Login: Anonymous Last Seen: Nov 16, 2020 18:00:17 pm
Email: n/a IP Address: n/a
Q1. During the recent stakeholder sessions on the YES

development of a new Drought Management
Plan it was generally agreed that five restriction
levels was the best option due to consistency
with neighbouring regions and ease of
messaging for the community.Level 1 = 80
%%lLevel 2 = 70 %Level 3 = 60 %Level 4 = 55
%Level 5 = 50 %Noting that Triggers escalation
and relaxation needed to be indexed on climate
forecasts; consumption patterns and storage
behaviourNoting that Trigger relaxation needs
to consider climatic forecasting and the time of
year and there must be at available water of
next level coming out of restrictionsDo you

agree?

Q2. Atthe triggers agreed upon the litres per YES
person per day consumption target per trigger
level are listed below.Level 1 =180 LLevel 2 =
170 LLevel 3 = 160 LLevel 4 = 150 LLevel 5 = 140
LLevel 5a = 120 L / Day zero messaging just
over a yearLevel 5b = 100 LLevel 5¢ = 80 LDo
you agree?

Q3. Aswe move into a new understanding of 200-190 Litres /person/day
managing our town water usage for the long
term. We need to consider what our 'new
normal' is for average per person per day water
consumption when not under water restriction
rules. The NSW State average is approx. 180L
/person/day.At the height of the drought
emergency in 2019 when we were on maximum
water saving, residents in this region did an
amazing job and managed to bring their water
consumption right down to 145L
Iperson/day.What do you consider should be
the Armidale region's 'new normal'?

Q4. Public swimming pools are a valuable social NO
outlet for many people in the community, they
also provide relief from summer temperatures
and a place to regularly exercise.Should public
swimming pools be open during level 5
restrictions?
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Q5. Heritage listed public parks like Armidale's NO
Central Park are home to very old and rare
species of trees. During the drought in 2019 the
park was under extreme stress and some trees
were struggling and could have died. Council
was able to source non-potable water to try to
keep the trees alive but there was only enough
water for about two watering sessions a week
for a limited period.Should heritage listed public
parks like Central Park be watered during level
4 and 5 water restrictions?

Q6. If Council could find a sustainable source of YES
water (Ground water or safe recycled water) to
water playing fields and parks as an alternative
to using potable water, would you be in favour

of this option?

Q7. When should irrigating of sportsfields be At level 3
stopped?

Q8. To assist Council to manage the Armidale 1.
region's water infrastructure and to develop
initiatives to improve water conservation please
rank the projects below. from 1. being the
highest priority to 6. the lowest.
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— —\ Respondent No: 9 Responded At: Nov 16, 2020 18:03:57 pm
{ 0 Login: Anonymous Last Seen: Nov 16, 2020 18:03:57 pm
Email: n/a IP Address: n/a
Q1. During the recent stakeholder sessions on the YES

development of a new Drought Management
Plan it was generally agreed that five restriction
levels was the best option due to consistency
with neighbouring regions and ease of
messaging for the community.Level 1 = 80
%%lLevel 2 = 70 %Level 3 = 60 %Level 4 = 55
%Level 5 = 50 %Noting that Triggers escalation
and relaxation needed to be indexed on climate
forecasts; consumption patterns and storage
behaviourNoting that Trigger relaxation needs
to consider climatic forecasting and the time of
year and there must be at available water of
next level coming out of restrictionsDo you

agree?

Q2. Atthe triggers agreed upon the litres per YES
person per day consumption target per trigger
level are listed below.Level 1 =180 LLevel 2 =
170 LLevel 3 = 160 LLevel 4 = 150 LLevel 5 = 140
LLevel 5a = 120 L / Day zero messaging just
over a yearLevel 5b = 100 LLevel 5¢ = 80 LDo
you agree?

Q3. Aswe move into a new understanding of 190-180 Litres /person/day
managing our town water usage for the long
term. We need to consider what our 'new
normal' is for average per person per day water
consumption when not under water restriction
rules. The NSW State average is approx. 180L
/person/day.At the height of the drought
emergency in 2019 when we were on maximum
water saving, residents in this region did an
amazing job and managed to bring their water
consumption right down to 145L
Iperson/day.What do you consider should be
the Armidale region's 'new normal'?

Q4. Public swimming pools are a valuable social YES
outlet for many people in the community, they
also provide relief from summer temperatures
and a place to regularly exercise.Should public
swimming pools be open during level 5
restrictions?
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Q5. Heritage listed public parks like Armidale's YES
Central Park are home to very old and rare
species of trees. During the drought in 2019 the
park was under extreme stress and some trees
were struggling and could have died. Council
was able to source non-potable water to try to
keep the trees alive but there was only enough
water for about two watering sessions a week
for a limited period.Should heritage listed public
parks like Central Park be watered during level
4 and 5 water restrictions?

Q6. If Council could find a sustainable source of YES
water (Ground water or safe recycled water) to
water playing fields and parks as an alternative

to using potable water, would you be in favour

of this option?

Q7. When should irrigating of sportsfields be At level 5
stopped?

Q8. To assist Council to manage the Armidale 1. The Armidale region to become a leader in water conservation
region's water infrastructure and to develop and sustainability. Water utility management decisions would be

initiatives to improve water conservation please based on best practice water conservation strategies
rank the projects below. from 1. being the 2. Continue investing in ongoing water conservation education
highest priority to 6. the lowest. programs
3. Signage be mandated on properties that can access the potable
network but also use an alternative water source like water tanks
(not connected into the potable netwark) or underground water.
4. Financial incentives offered to new residential and business
construction and to developers for increased water conservation
5. Invest in Smart Water Metre Readers (approx. cost $5 million)
6. Change types of trees in park to be more water resistant —

Irrigation Modernisation
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— Respondent No: 10 Responded At: Nov 16, 2020 18:20:44 pm
{ 0\ Login: Anonymous Last Seen: Nov 16, 2020 18:20:44 pm
Email: n/a IP Address: n/a
Q1. During the recent stakeholder sessions on the YES

development of a new Drought Management
Plan it was generally agreed that five restriction
levels was the best option due to consistency
with neighbouring regions and ease of
messaging for the community.Level 1 = 80
%%lLevel 2 = 70 %Level 3 = 60 %Level 4 = 55
%Level 5 = 50 %Noting that Triggers escalation
and relaxation needed to be indexed on climate
forecasts; consumption patterns and storage
behaviourNoting that Trigger relaxation needs
to consider climatic forecasting and the time of
year and there must be at available water of
next level coming out of restrictionsDo you

agree?

Q2. Atthe triggers agreed upon the litres per YES
person per day consumption target per trigger
level are listed below.Level 1 =180 LLevel 2 =
170 LLevel 3 = 160 LLevel 4 = 150 LLevel 5 = 140
LLevel 5a = 120 L / Day zero messaging just
over a yearLevel 5b = 100 LLevel 5¢ = 80 LDo
you agree?

Q3. Aswe move into a new understanding of 190-180 Litres /person/day
managing our town water usage for the long
term. We need to consider what our 'new
normal' is for average per person per day water
consumption when not under water restriction
rules. The NSW State average is approx. 180L
/person/day.At the height of the drought
emergency in 2019 when we were on maximum
water saving, residents in this region did an
amazing job and managed to bring their water
consumption right down to 145L
Iperson/day.What do you consider should be
the Armidale region's 'new normal'?

Q4. Public swimming pools are a valuable social YES
outlet for many people in the community, they
also provide relief from summer temperatures
and a place to regularly exercise.Should public
swimming pools be open during level 5
restrictions?
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Q5. Heritage listed public parks like Armidale's YES
Central Park are home to very old and rare
species of trees. During the drought in 2019 the
park was under extreme stress and some trees
were struggling and could have died. Council
was able to source non-potable water to try to
keep the trees alive but there was only enough
water for about two watering sessions a week
for a limited period.Should heritage listed public
parks like Central Park be watered during level
4 and 5 water restrictions?
Q6. If Council could find a sustainable source of YES
water (Ground water or safe recycled water) to
water playing fields and parks as an alternative
to using potable water, would you be in favour
of this option?
Q7. When should irrigating of sportsfields be At level 5
stopped?
Q8. To assist Council to manage the Armidale 1. Change types of frees in park to be more water resistant —
region's water infrastructure and to develop Irrigation Modernisation
initiatives to improve water conservation please 2. Continue investing in ongoing water conservation education
rank the projects below. from 1. being the programs
highest priority to 6. the lowest. 3. Invest in Smart Water Metre Readers (approx. cost $5 million)
4. Signage be mandated on properties that can access the potable
network but also use an alternative water source like water tanks
(not connected into the potable netwark) or underground water.
5. The Armidale region to become a leader in water conservation
and sustainability. Water utility management decisions would be
based on best practice water conservation strategies
6. Financial incentives offered to new residential and business
construction and to developers for increased water conservation
Attachment 2 Page 265



Attachment 2 Survey - Drought Management survey detailed 28 October 20 to 26 November20

— —\ Respondent No: 11 Responded At: Nov 16, 2020 18:35:30 pm
{ 0 Login: Anonymous Last Seen: Nov 16, 2020 18:35:30 pm
Email: n/a IP Address: n/a
Q1. During the recent stakeholder sessions on the NO

development of a new Drought Management
Plan it was generally agreed that five restriction
levels was the best option due to consistency
with neighbouring regions and ease of
messaging for the community.Level 1 = 80
%%lLevel 2 = 70 %Level 3 = 60 %Level 4 = 55
%Level 5 = 50 %Noting that Triggers escalation
and relaxation needed to be indexed on climate
forecasts; consumption patterns and storage
behaviourNoting that Trigger relaxation needs
to consider climatic forecasting and the time of
year and there must be at available water of
next level coming out of restrictionsDo you

agree?

Q2. Atthe triggers agreed upon the litres per NO
person per day consumption target per trigger
level are listed below.Level 1 =180 LLevel 2 =
170 LLevel 3 = 160 LLevel 4 = 150 LLevel 5 = 140
LLevel 5a = 120 L / Day zero messaging just
over a yearLevel 5b = 100 LLevel 5¢ = 80 LDo
you agree?

Q3. Aswe move into a new understanding of 190-180 Litres /person/day
managing our town water usage for the long
term. We need to consider what our 'new
normal' is for average per person per day water
consumption when not under water restriction
rules. The NSW State average is approx. 180L
/person/day.At the height of the drought
emergency in 2019 when we were on maximum
water saving, residents in this region did an
amazing job and managed to bring their water
consumption right down to 145L
Iperson/day.What do you consider should be
the Armidale region's 'new normal'?

Q4. Public swimming pools are a valuable social YES
outlet for many people in the community, they
also provide relief from summer temperatures
and a place to regularly exercise.Should public
swimming pools be open during level 5
restrictions?
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Q5. Heritage listed public parks like Armidale's YES
Central Park are home to very old and rare
species of trees. During the drought in 2019 the
park was under extreme stress and some trees
were struggling and could have died. Council
was able to source non-potable water to try to
keep the trees alive but there was only enough
water for about two watering sessions a week
for a limited period.Should heritage listed public
parks like Central Park be watered during level
4 and 5 water restrictions?

Q6. If Council could find a sustainable source of YES
water (Ground water or safe recycled water) to
water playing fields and parks as an alternative
to using potable water, would you be in favour
of this option?

Q7. When should irrigating of sportsfields be At level 5
stopped?

Q8. To assist Council to manage the Armidale 1. Financial incentives offered to new residential and business
region's water infrastructure and to develop construction and to developers for increased water conservation
initiatives to improve water conservation please 2. The Armidale region to become a leader in water conservation
rank the projects below. from 1. being the and sustainability. Water utility management decisions would be
highest priority to 6. the lowest. based on best practice water conservation strategies

3. Continue investing in ongoing water conservation education
programs
4. Change types of trees in park to be more water resistant —
Irrigation Modernisation
5. Invest in Smart Water Metre Readers (approx. cost $5 million)
6. Signage be mandated on properties that can access the potable
network but also use an alternative water source like water tanks
(not connected into the potable network) or underground water.
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— —\ Respondent No: 12 Responded At: Nov 16, 2020 18:35:48 pm
{ 0 Login: Anonymous Last Seen: Nov 16, 2020 18:35:48 pm
Email: n/a IP Address: n/a
Q1. During the recent stakeholder sessions on the YES

development of a new Drought Management
Plan it was generally agreed that five restriction
levels was the best option due to consistency
with neighbouring regions and ease of
messaging for the community.Level 1 = 80
%%lLevel 2 = 70 %Level 3 = 60 %Level 4 = 55
%Level 5 = 50 %Noting that Triggers escalation
and relaxation needed to be indexed on climate
forecasts; consumption patterns and storage
behaviourNoting that Trigger relaxation needs
to consider climatic forecasting and the time of
year and there must be at available water of
next level coming out of restrictionsDo you

agree?

Q2. Atthe triggers agreed upon the litres per YES
person per day consumption target per trigger
level are listed below.Level 1 =180 LLevel 2 =
170 LLevel 3 = 160 LLevel 4 = 150 LLevel 5 = 140
LLevel 5a = 120 L / Day zero messaging just
over a yearLevel 5b = 100 LLevel 5¢ = 80 LDo
you agree?

Q3. Aswe move into a new understanding of 200-190 Litres /person/day
managing our town water usage for the long
term. We need to consider what our 'new
normal' is for average per person per day water
consumption when not under water restriction
rules. The NSW State average is approx. 180L
/person/day.At the height of the drought
emergency in 2019 when we were on maximum
water saving, residents in this region did an
amazing job and managed to bring their water
consumption right down to 145L
Iperson/day.What do you consider should be
the Armidale region's 'new normal'?

Q4. Public swimming pools are a valuable social YES
outlet for many people in the community, they
also provide relief from summer temperatures
and a place to regularly exercise.Should public
swimming pools be open during level 5
restrictions?

Attachment 2 Page 268



Attachment 2

Survey - Drought Management survey detailed 28 October 20 to 26 November20

Q5. Heritage listed public parks like Armidale's YES
Central Park are home to very old and rare
species of trees. During the drought in 2019 the
park was under extreme stress and some trees
were struggling and could have died. Council
was able to source non-potable water to try to
keep the trees alive but there was only enough
water for about two watering sessions a week
for a limited period.Should heritage listed public
parks like Central Park be watered during level
4 and 5 water restrictions?

Q6. If Council could find a sustainable source of YES
water (Ground water or safe recycled water) to
water playing fields and parks as an alternative
to using potable water, would you be in favour
of this option?

Q7. When should irrigating of sportsfields be At level 5
stopped?

Q8. To assist Council to manage the Armidale 1. Financial incentives offered to new residential and business
region's water infrastructure and to develop construction and to developers for increased water conservation
initiatives to improve water conservation please 2. Invest in Smart Water Metre Readers (approx. cost $5 million)
rank the projects below. from 1. being the 3. Continue investing in ongoing water conservation education
highest priority to 6. the lowest. programs

4. The Armidale region to become a leader in water conservation
and sustainability. Water utility management decisions would be
based on best practice water conservation strategies
5. Signage be mandated on properties that can access the potable
network but also use an alternative water source like water tanks
(not connected into the potable netwark) or underground water.
6. Change types of trees in park to be more water resistant —
Irrigation Modernisation
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— —\ Respondent No: 13 Responded At: Nov 16, 2020 18:38:02 pm
{ 0 Login: Anonymous Last Seen: Nov 16, 2020 18:38:02 pm
Email: n/a IP Address: n/a
Q1. During the recent stakeholder sessions on the YES

development of a new Drought Management
Plan it was generally agreed that five restriction
levels was the best option due to consistency
with neighbouring regions and ease of
messaging for the community.Level 1 = 80
%%lLevel 2 = 70 %Level 3 = 60 %Level 4 = 55
%Level 5 = 50 %Noting that Triggers escalation
and relaxation needed to be indexed on climate
forecasts; consumption patterns and storage
behaviourNoting that Trigger relaxation needs
to consider climatic forecasting and the time of
year and there must be at available water of
next level coming out of restrictionsDo you

agree?

Q2. Atthe triggers agreed upon the litres per YES
person per day consumption target per trigger
level are listed below.Level 1 =180 LLevel 2 =
170 LLevel 3 = 160 LLevel 4 = 150 LLevel 5 = 140
LLevel 5a = 120 L / Day zero messaging just
over a yearLevel 5b = 100 LLevel 5¢ = 80 LDo
you agree?

Q3. Aswe move into a new understanding of 190-180 Litres /person/day
managing our town water usage for the long
term. We need to consider what our 'new
normal' is for average per person per day water
consumption when not under water restriction
rules. The NSW State average is approx. 180L
/person/day.At the height of the drought
emergency in 2019 when we were on maximum
water saving, residents in this region did an
amazing job and managed to bring their water
consumption right down to 145L
Iperson/day.What do you consider should be
the Armidale region's 'new normal'?

Q4. Public swimming pools are a valuable social YES
outlet for many people in the community, they
also provide relief from summer temperatures
and a place to regularly exercise.Should public
swimming pools be open during level 5
restrictions?
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Q5. Heritage listed public parks like Armidale's YES
Central Park are home to very old and rare
species of trees. During the drought in 2019 the
park was under extreme stress and some trees
were struggling and could have died. Council
was able to source non-potable water to try to
keep the trees alive but there was only enough
water for about two watering sessions a week
for a limited period.Should heritage listed public
parks like Central Park be watered during level
4 and 5 water restrictions?

Q6. If Council could find a sustainable source of YES
water (Ground water or safe recycled water) to
water playing fields and parks as an alternative

to using potable water, would you be in favour

of this option?

Q7. When should irrigating of sportsfields be At level 3
stopped?

Q8. To assist Council to manage the Armidale 1. Financial incentives offered to new residential and business
region's water infrastructure and to develop construction and to developers for increased water conservation

initiatives to improve water conservation please 2. Signage be mandated on properties that can access the potable
rank the projects below. from 1. being the network but also use an alternative water source like water tanks
highest priority to 6. the lowest. (not connected into the potable network) or underground water.
3. The Armidale region to become a leader in water conservation
and sustainability. Water utility management decisions would be
based on best practice water conservation strategies
4. Invest in Smart Water Metre Readers (approx. cost $5 million)
5. Continue investing in ongoing water conservation education
pragrams
6. Change types of trees in park to be more water resistant —

Irrigation Modernisation
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— Respondent No: 14 Responded At: Nov 16, 2020 18:49:20 pm
{ 0\ Login: Anonymous Last Seen: Nov 16, 2020 18:49:20 pm
Email: n/a IP Address: n/a
Q1. During the recent stakeholder sessions on the YES

development of a new Drought Management
Plan it was generally agreed that five restriction
levels was the best option due to consistency
with neighbouring regions and ease of
messaging for the community.Level 1 = 80
%%lLevel 2 = 70 %Level 3 = 60 %Level 4 = 55
%Level 5 = 50 %Noting that Triggers escalation
and relaxation needed to be indexed on climate
forecasts; consumption patterns and storage
behaviourNoting that Trigger relaxation needs
to consider climatic forecasting and the time of
year and there must be at available water of
next level coming out of restrictionsDo you

agree?

Q2. Atthe triggers agreed upon the litres per YES
person per day consumption target per trigger
level are listed below.Level 1 =180 LLevel 2 =
170 LLevel 3 = 160 LLevel 4 = 150 LLevel 5 = 140
LLevel 5a = 120 L / Day zero messaging just
over a yearLevel 5b = 100 LLevel 5¢ = 80 LDo
you agree?

Q3. Aswe move into a new understanding of 200-190 Litres /person/day
managing our town water usage for the long
term. We need to consider what our 'new
normal' is for average per person per day water
consumption when not under water restriction
rules. The NSW State average is approx. 180L
/person/day.At the height of the drought
emergency in 2019 when we were on maximum
water saving, residents in this region did an
amazing job and managed to bring their water
consumption right down to 145L
Iperson/day.What do you consider should be
the Armidale region's 'new normal'?

Q4. Public swimming pools are a valuable social YES
outlet for many people in the community, they
also provide relief from summer temperatures
and a place to regularly exercise.Should public
swimming pools be open during level 5
restrictions?
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Q5.

Heritage listed public parks like Armidale's
Central Park are home to very old and rare
species of trees. During the drought in 2019 the
park was under extreme stress and some trees
were struggling and could have died. Council
was able to source non-potable water to try to
keep the trees alive but there was only enough
water for about two watering sessions a week
for a limited period.Should heritage listed public
parks like Central Park be watered during level
4 and 5 water restrictions?

YES

Q6. If Council could find a sustainable source of Other (please specify)
water (Ground water or safe recycled water) to
water playing fields and parks as an alternative
to using potable water, would you be in favour
of this option?

Q7. When should irrigating of sportsfields be At level 5
stopped?

Q8. To assist Council to manage the Armidale 1. The Armidale region to become a leader in water conservation
region's water infrastructure and to develop and sustainability. Water utility management decisions would be
initiatives to improve water conservation please based on best practice water conservation strategies
rank the projects below. from 1. being the 2. Continue investing in ongoing water conservation education
highest priority to 6. the lowest. programs

3. Financial incentives offered to new residential and business
construction and to developers for increased water conservation
4. Signage be mandated on properties that can access the potable
network but also use an alternative water source like water tanks
(not connected into the potable network) or underground water.
5. Change types of trees in park to be more water resistant —
Irrigation Modernisation
6. Invest in Smart Water Metre Readers (approx. cost $5 million)
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— Respondent No: 15 Responded At: Nov 16, 2020 20:44.34 pm
{ '. Login: Last Seen: Nov 16, 2020 09:30:29 am
Email: IP Address: 49.180.3.150
Q1. During the recent stakeholder sessions on the YES

development of a new Drought Management
Plan it was generally agreed that five restriction
levels was the best option due to consistency
with neighbouring regions and ease of
messaging for the community.Level 1 = 80
%%lLevel 2 = 70 %Level 3 = 60 %Level 4 = 55
%Level 5 = 50 %Noting that Triggers escalation
and relaxation needed to be indexed on climate
forecasts; consumption patterns and storage
behaviourNoting that Trigger relaxation needs
to consider climatic forecasting and the time of
year and there must be at available water of
next level coming out of restrictionsDo you

agree?

Q2. Atthe triggers agreed upon the litres per NO
person per day consumption target per trigger Other (please specify)
level are listed below.Level 1 =180 LLevel 2 =
170 LLevel 3 = 160 LLevel 4 = 150 LLevel 5 = 140
LLevel 5a = 120 L / Day zero messaging just
over a yearLevel 5b = 100 LLevel 5¢ = 80 LDo
you agree?

Q3. Aswe move into a new understanding of 190-180 Litres /person/day
managing our town water usage for the long
term. We need to consider what our 'new
normal' is for average per person per day water
consumption when not under water restriction
rules. The NSW State average is approx. 180L
/person/day.At the height of the drought
emergency in 2019 when we were on maximum
water saving, residents in this region did an
amazing job and managed to bring their water
consumption right down to 145L
Iperson/day.What do you consider should be
the Armidale region's 'new normal'?

Q4. Public swimming pools are a valuable social YES
outlet for many people in the community, they
also provide relief from summer temperatures
and a place to regularly exercise.Should public
swimming pools be open during level 5
restrictions?
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Q5. Heritage listed public parks like Armidale's YES
Central Park are home to very old and rare
species of trees. During the drought in 2019 the
park was under extreme stress and some trees
were struggling and could have died. Council
was able to source non-potable water to try to
keep the trees alive but there was only enough
water for about two watering sessions a week
for a limited period.Should heritage listed public
parks like Central Park be watered during level
4 and 5 water restrictions?

Q6. If Council could find a sustainable source of YES
water (Ground water or safe recycled water) to Other (please specify)
water playing fields and parks as an alternative
to using potable water, would you be in favour
of this option?

Q7. When should irrigating of sportsfields be At level 5
stopped?

Q8. To assist Council to manage the Armidale 1. Financial incentives offered to new residential and business
region's water infrastructure and to develop construction and to developers for increased water conservation
initiatives to improve water conservation please 2. The Armidale region to become a leader in water conservation
rank the projects below. from 1. being the and sustainability. Water utility management decisions would be
highest priority to 6. the lowest. based on best practice water conservation strategies

3. Continue investing in ongoing water conservation education
programs
4. Signage be mandated on properties that can access the potable
network but also use an alternative water source like water tanks
(not connected into the potable network) or underground water.
5. Change types of trees in park to be more water resistant —
Irrigation Modernisation
6. Invest in Smart Water Metre Readers (approx. cost $5 million)
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— Respondent No: 16 Responded At: Nov 16, 2020 20:47:51 pm
{ 0\ Login: Anonymous Last Seen: Nov 16, 2020 20:47:51 pm
Email: n/a IP Address: n/a
Q1. During the recent stakeholder sessions on the YES

development of a new Drought Management
Plan it was generally agreed that five restriction
levels was the best option due to consistency
with neighbouring regions and ease of
messaging for the community.Level 1 = 80
%%lLevel 2 = 70 %Level 3 = 60 %Level 4 = 55
%Level 5 = 50 %Noting that Triggers escalation
and relaxation needed to be indexed on climate
forecasts; consumption patterns and storage
behaviourNoting that Trigger relaxation needs
to consider climatic forecasting and the time of
year and there must be at available water of
next level coming out of restrictionsDo you

agree?

Q2. Atthe triggers agreed upon the litres per YES
person per day consumption target per trigger
level are listed below.Level 1 =180 LLevel 2 =
170 LLevel 3 = 160 LLevel 4 = 150 LLevel 5 = 140
LLevel 5a = 120 L / Day zero messaging just
over a yearLevel 5b = 100 LLevel 5¢ = 80 LDo
you agree?

Q3. Aswe move into a new understanding of 230-220 Litres /person/day
managing our town water usage for the long
term. We need to consider what our 'new
normal' is for average per person per day water
consumption when not under water restriction
rules. The NSW State average is approx. 180L
/person/day.At the height of the drought
emergency in 2019 when we were on maximum
water saving, residents in this region did an
amazing job and managed to bring their water
consumption right down to 145L
Iperson/day.What do you consider should be
the Armidale region's 'new normal'?

Q4. Public swimming pools are a valuable social Other (please specify)
outlet for many people in the community, they
also provide relief from summer temperatures
and a place to regularly exercise.Should public
swimming pools be open during level 5
restrictions?
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Q5. Heritage listed public parks like Armidale's YES
Central Park are home to very old and rare
species of trees. During the drought in 2019 the
park was under extreme stress and some trees
were struggling and could have died. Council
was able to source non-potable water to try to
keep the trees alive but there was only enough
water for about two watering sessions a week
for a limited period.Should heritage listed public
parks like Central Park be watered during level
4 and 5 water restrictions?

Q6. If Council could find a sustainable source of YES
water (Ground water or safe recycled water) to
water playing fields and parks as an alternative
to using potable water, would you be in favour
of this option?

Q7. When should irrigating of sportsfields be At level 3
stopped?

Q8. To assist Council to manage the Armidale 1. Signage be mandated on properties that can access the potable
region's water infrastructure and to develop network but also use an alternative water source like water tanks
initiatives to improve water conservation please (not connected into the potable network) or underground water.
rank the projects below. from 1. being the 2. Financial incentives offered to new residential and business
highest priority to 6. the lowest. construction and to developers for increased water conservation

3. Continue investing in ongoing water conservation education
programs
4. The Armidale region to become a leader in water conservation
and sustainability. Water utility management decisions would be
based on best practice water conservation strategies
5. Change types of trees in park to be more water resistant —
Irrigation Modernisation
6. Invest in Smart Water Metre Readers (approx. cost $5 million)
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— —\ Respondent No: 17 Responded At: Nov 17, 2020 06:43:38 am
{ 0 Login: Anonymous Last Seen: Nov 17, 2020 06:43:38 am
Email: n/a IP Address: n/a
Q1. During the recent stakeholder sessions on the YES

development of a new Drought Management
Plan it was generally agreed that five restriction
levels was the best option due to consistency
with neighbouring regions and ease of
messaging for the community.Level 1 = 80
%%lLevel 2 = 70 %Level 3 = 60 %Level 4 = 55
%Level 5 = 50 %Noting that Triggers escalation
and relaxation needed to be indexed on climate
forecasts; consumption patterns and storage
behaviourNoting that Trigger relaxation needs
to consider climatic forecasting and the time of
year and there must be at available water of
next level coming out of restrictionsDo you

agree?

Q2. Atthe triggers agreed upon the litres per Other (please specify)
person per day consumption target per trigger
level are listed below.Level 1 =180 LLevel 2 =
170 LLevel 3 =160 LLevel 4 = 150 LLevel 5= 140
LLevel 5a = 120 L / Day zero messaging just
over a yearLevel 5b = 100 LLevel 5¢ = 80 LDo
you agree?

Q3. Aswe move into a new understanding of 190-180 Litres /person/day
managing our town water usage for the long
term. We need to consider what our 'new
normal' is for average per person per day water
consumption when not under water restriction
rules. The NSW State average is approx. 180L
/person/day.At the height of the drought
emergency in 2019 when we were on maximum
water saving, residents in this region did an
amazing job and managed to bring their water
consumption right down to 145L
Iperson/day.What do you consider should be
the Armidale region's 'new normal'?

Q4. Public swimming pools are a valuable social YES
outlet for many people in the community, they
also provide relief from summer temperatures
and a place to regularly exercise.Should public
swimming pools be open during level 5
restrictions?
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Q5. Heritage listed public parks like Armidale's Other (please specify)
Central Park are home to very old and rare
species of trees. During the drought in 2019 the
park was under extreme stress and some trees
were struggling and could have died. Council
was able to source non-potable water to try to
keep the trees alive but there was only enough
water for about two watering sessions a week
for a limited period.Should heritage listed public
parks like Central Park be watered during level
4 and 5 water restrictions?
Q6. If Council could find a sustainable source of YES
water (Ground water or safe recycled water) to Other (please specify)
water playing fields and parks as an alternative
to using potable water, would you be in favour
of this option?
Q7. When should irrigating of sportsfields be At level 5
stopped?
Q8. To assist Council to manage the Armidale 1. Continue investing in ongoing water conservation education
region's water infrastructure and to develop programs
initiatives to improve water conservation please 2. Change types of trees in park to be more water resistant —
rank the projects below. from 1. being the Irrigation Modernisation
highest priority to 6. the lowest. 3. Financial incentives offered to new residential and business
construction and to developers for increased water conservation
4, Invest in Smart Water Metre Readers (approx. cost $5 million)
5. The Armidale region to become a leader in water conservation
and sustainability. Water utility management decisions would be
based on best practice water conservation strategies
6. Signage be mandated on properties that can access the potable
network but also use an alternative water source like water tanks
(not connected into the potable network) or underground water.
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— Respondent No: 18 Responded At:  Nov 17, 2020 09:02:25 am
{ 0\ Login: Anonymous Last Seen: Nov 17, 2020 09:02:25 am
Email: n/a IP Address: n/a
Q1. During the recent stakeholder sessions on the YES

development of a new Drought Management
Plan it was generally agreed that five restriction
levels was the best option due to consistency
with neighbouring regions and ease of
messaging for the community.Level 1 = 80
%%lLevel 2 = 70 %Level 3 = 60 %Level 4 = 55
%Level 5 = 50 %Noting that Triggers escalation
and relaxation needed to be indexed on climate
forecasts; consumption patterns and storage
behaviourNoting that Trigger relaxation needs
to consider climatic forecasting and the time of
year and there must be at available water of
next level coming out of restrictionsDo you

agree?

Q2. Atthe triggers agreed upon the litres per YES
person per day consumption target per trigger
level are listed below.Level 1 =180 LLevel 2 =
170 LLevel 3 = 160 LLevel 4 = 150 LLevel 5 = 140
LLevel 5a = 120 L / Day zero messaging just
over a yearLevel 5b = 100 LLevel 5¢ = 80 LDo
you agree?

Q3. Aswe move into a new understanding of 220-210 Litres /person/day
managing our town water usage for the long
term. We need to consider what our 'new
normal' is for average per person per day water
consumption when not under water restriction
rules. The NSW State average is approx. 180L
/person/day.At the height of the drought
emergency in 2019 when we were on maximum
water saving, residents in this region did an
amazing job and managed to bring their water
consumption right down to 145L
Iperson/day.What do you consider should be
the Armidale region's 'new normal'?

Q4. Public swimming pools are a valuable social NO
outlet for many people in the community, they
also provide relief from summer temperatures
and a place to regularly exercise.Should public
swimming pools be open during level 5
restrictions?
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Q5. Heritage listed public parks like Armidale's NO
Central Park are home to very old and rare
species of trees. During the drought in 2019 the
park was under extreme stress and some trees
were struggling and could have died. Council
was able to source non-potable water to try to
keep the trees alive but there was only enough
water for about two watering sessions a week
for a limited period.Should heritage listed public
parks like Central Park be watered during level
4 and 5 water restrictions?

Q6. If Council could find a sustainable source of YES
water (Ground water or safe recycled water) to
water playing fields and parks as an alternative
to using potable water, would you be in favour
of this option?

Q7. When should irrigating of sportsfields be At level 4
stopped?

Q8. To assist Council to manage the Armidale 1. Signage be mandated on properties that can access the potable
region's water infrastructure and to develop network but also use an alternative water source like water tanks
initiatives to improve water conservation please (not connected into the potable network) or underground water.
rank the projects below. from 1. being the 2. Change types of trees in park to be more water resistant —
highest priority to 6. the lowest. Irrigation Modernisation

3. Continue investing in ongoing water conservation education
programs
4. The Armidale region to become a leader in water conservation
and sustainability. Water utility management decisions would be
based on best practice water conservation strategies
5. Invest in Smart Water Metre Readers (approx. cost $5 million)
6. Financial incentives offered to new residential and business
construction and to developers for increased water conservation
Attachment 2 Page 281



Attachment 2 Survey - Drought Management survey detailed 28 October 20 to 26 November20

— Respondent No: 19 Responded At: Nov 17, 2020 10:14:02 am
{ '. Login: Last Seen: Nov 16, 2020 23:10:29 pm
Email: IP Address: 203.35.32.87
Q1. During the recent stakeholder sessions on the YES

development of a new Drought Management
Plan it was generally agreed that five restriction
levels was the best option due to consistency
with neighbouring regions and ease of
messaging for the community.Level 1 = 80
%Level 2 = 70 %Level 3 = 60 %Level 4 = 55
%Level 5 = 50 %Noting that Triggers escalation
and relaxation needed to be indexed on climate
forecasts; consumption patterns and storage
behaviourNoting that Trigger relaxation needs
to consider climatic forecasting and the time of
year and there must be at available water of
next level coming out of restrictionsDo you

agree?

Q2. Atthe triggers agreed upon the litres per YES
person per day consumption target per trigger
level are listed below.Level 1 =180 LLevel 2 =
170 LLevel 3 = 160 LLevel 4 = 150 LLevel 5 = 140
LLevel 5a = 120 L / Day zero messaging just
over a yearLevel 5b = 100 LLevel 5¢ = 80 LDo
you agree?

Q3. As we move into a new understanding of 190-180 Litres /person/day
managing our town water usage for the long
term. We need to consider what our 'new
normal’ is for average per person per day water
consumption when not under water restriction
rules. The NSW State average is approx. 180L
/person/day.At the height of the drought
emergency in 2019 when we were on maximum
water saving, residents in this region did an
amazing job and managed to bring their water
consumption right down to 145L
/person/day.What do you consider should be

the Armidale region’s 'new normal'?

Q4. Public swimming pools are a valuable social YES
outlet for many people in the community, they
also provide relief from summer temperatures
and a place to regularly exercise.Should public
swimming pools be open during level 5

restrictions?
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Q5. Heritage listed public parks like Armidale's YES
Central Park are home to very old and rare
species of trees. During the drought in 2019 the
park was under extreme stress and some trees
were struggling and could have died. Council
was able to source non-potable water to try to
keep the trees alive but there was only enough
water for about two watering sessions a week
for a limited period.Should heritage listed public
parks like Central Park be watered during level
4 and 5 water restrictions?

Q6. If Council could find a sustainable source of YES
water (Ground water or safe recycled water) to
water playing fields and parks as an alternative
to using potable water, would you be in favour
of this option?

Q7. When should irrigating of sportsfields be Never
stopped?

Q8. To assist Council to manage the Armidale 1. Financial incentives offered to new residential and business
region's water infrastructure and to develop construction and to developers for increased water conservation
initiatives to improve water conservation please 2. Invest in Smart Water Metre Readers (approx. cost $5 million)
rank the projects below. from 1. being the 3. Change types of trees in park to be more water resistant —
highest priority to 6. the lowest. Irrigation Modernisation

4. Signage be mandated on properties that can access the potable
network but also use an alternative water source like water tanks
(not connected into the potable netwark) or underground water.
5. Continue investing in ongoing water conservation education
programs
6. The Armidale region to become a leader in water conservation
and sustainability. Water utility management decisions would be
based on best practice water conservation strategies
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— Respondent No: 20 Responded At: Nov 17, 2020 12:44:11 pm
{ 0\ Login: Anonymous Last Seen: Nov 17, 2020 12:44:11 pm
Email: n/a IP Address: n/a
Q1. During the recent stakeholder sessions on the NO
development of a new Drought Management Other (please specify)

Plan it was generally agreed that five restriction
levels was the best option due to consistency
with neighbouring regions and ease of
messaging for the community.Level 1 = 80
%%lLevel 2 = 70 %Level 3 = 60 %Level 4 = 55
%Level 5 = 50 %Noting that Triggers escalation
and relaxation needed to be indexed on climate
forecasts; consumption patterns and storage
behaviourNoting that Trigger relaxation needs
to consider climatic forecasting and the time of
year and there must be at available water of
next level coming out of restrictionsDo you

agree?

Q2. Atthe triggers agreed upon the litres per NO
person per day consumption target per trigger
level are listed below.Level 1 =180 LLevel 2 =
170 LLevel 3 = 160 LLevel 4 = 150 LLevel 5 = 140
LLevel 5a = 120 L / Day zero messaging just
over a yearLevel 5b = 100 LLevel 5¢ = 80 LDo
you agree?

Q3. Aswe move into a new understanding of 240-230 Litres /person/day
managing our town water usage for the long
term. We need to consider what our 'new
normal' is for average per person per day water
consumption when not under water restriction
rules. The NSW State average is approx. 180L
/person/day.At the height of the drought
emergency in 2019 when we were on maximum
water saving, residents in this region did an
amazing job and managed to bring their water
consumption right down to 145L
Iperson/day.What do you consider should be
the Armidale region's 'new normal'?

Q4. Public swimming pools are a valuable social YES
outlet for many people in the community, they
also provide relief from summer temperatures
and a place to regularly exercise.Should public
swimming pools be open during level 5
restrictions?
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Q5. Heritage listed public parks like Armidale's YES
Central Park are home to very old and rare
species of trees. During the drought in 2019 the
park was under extreme stress and some trees
were struggling and could have died. Council
was able to source non-potable water to try to
keep the trees alive but there was only enough
water for about two watering sessions a week
for a limited period.Should heritage listed public
parks like Central Park be watered during level
4 and 5 water restrictions?

Q6. If Council could find a sustainable source of YES
water (Ground water or safe recycled water) to
water playing fields and parks as an alternative

to using potable water, would you be in favour

of this option?

Q7. When should irrigating of sportsfields be At level 5
stopped?

Q8. To assist Council to manage the Armidale 1. Continue investing in ongoing water conservation education
region's water infrastructure and to develop programs

initiatives to improve water conservation please 2. Signage be mandated on properties that can access the potable
rank the projects below. from 1. being the network but also use an alternative water source like water tanks
highest priority to 6. the lowest. (not connected into the potable network) or underground water.
3. Invest in Smart Water Metre Readers (approx. cost £5 million)
4. Financial incentives offered to new residential and business
construction and to developers for increased water conservation
5. The Armidale region to become a leader in water conservation
and sustainability. Water utility management decisions would be
based on best practice water conservation strategies
6. Change types of trees in park to be more water resistant —

Irrigation Modernisation

Attachment 2 Page 285



Attachment 2 Survey - Drought Management survey detailed 28 October 20 to 26 November20

— Respondent No: 21 Responded At: Nov 17, 2020 19:06:17 pm
{ 0\ Login: Anonymous Last Seen: Nov 17, 2020 19:06:17 pm
Email: n/a IP Address: n/a
Q1. During the recent stakeholder sessions on the YES

development of a new Drought Management
Plan it was generally agreed that five restriction
levels was the best option due to consistency
with neighbouring regions and ease of
messaging for the community.Level 1 = 80
%%lLevel 2 = 70 %Level 3 = 60 %Level 4 = 55
%Level 5 = 50 %Noting that Triggers escalation
and relaxation needed to be indexed on climate
forecasts; consumption patterns and storage
behaviourNoting that Trigger relaxation needs
to consider climatic forecasting and the time of
year and there must be at available water of
next level coming out of restrictionsDo you

agree?

Q2. Atthe triggers agreed upon the litres per YES
person per day consumption target per trigger
level are listed below.Level 1 =180 LLevel 2 =
170 LLevel 3 = 160 LLevel 4 = 150 LLevel 5 = 140
LLevel 5a = 120 L / Day zero messaging just
over a yearLevel 5b = 100 LLevel 5¢ = 80 LDo
you agree?

Q3. Aswe move into a new understanding of 190-180 Litres /person/day
managing our town water usage for the long
term. We need to consider what our 'new
normal' is for average per person per day water
consumption when not under water restriction
rules. The NSW State average is approx. 180L
/person/day.At the height of the drought
emergency in 2019 when we were on maximum
water saving, residents in this region did an
amazing job and managed to bring their water
consumption right down to 145L
Iperson/day.What do you consider should be
the Armidale region's 'new normal'?

Q4. Public swimming pools are a valuable social NO
outlet for many people in the community, they
also provide relief from summer temperatures
and a place to regularly exercise.Should public
swimming pools be open during level 5
restrictions?

Attachment 2 Page 286



Attachment 2 Survey - Drought Management survey detailed 28 October 20 to 26 November20

Q5. Heritage listed public parks like Armidale's YES
Central Park are home to very old and rare
species of trees. During the drought in 2019 the
park was under extreme stress and some trees
were struggling and could have died. Council
was able to source non-potable water to try to
keep the trees alive but there was only enough
water for about two watering sessions a week
for a limited period.Should heritage listed public
parks like Central Park be watered during level
4 and 5 water restrictions?

Q6. If Council could find a sustainable source of YES
water (Ground water or safe recycled water) to
water playing fields and parks as an alternative
to using potable water, would you be in favour
of this option?

Q7. When should irrigating of sportsfields be At level 3
stopped?

Q8. To assist Council to manage the Armidale 1. The Armidale region to become a leader in water conservation
region's water infrastructure and to develop and sustainability. Water utility management decisions would be
initiatives to improve water conservation please based on best practice water conservation strategies
rank the projects below. from 1. being the 2. Financial incentives offered to new residential and business
highest priority to 6. the lowest. construction and to developers for increased water conservation

3. Invest in Smart Water Metre Readers (approx. cost £5 million)
4. Continue investing in ongoing water conservation education
programs
5. Signage be mandated on properties that can access the potable
network but also use an alternative water source like water tanks
(not connected into the potable netwark) or underground water.
6. Change types of trees in park to be more water resistant —
Irrigation Modernisation
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— Respondent No: 22 Responded At: Nov 18, 2020 11:31:24 am
{ 0\ Login: Anonymous Last Seen: Nov 18, 2020 11:31:24 am
Email: n/a IP Address: n/a
Q1. During the recent stakeholder sessions on the YES

development of a new Drought Management
Plan it was generally agreed that five restriction
levels was the best option due to consistency
with neighbouring regions and ease of
messaging for the community.Level 1 = 80
%%lLevel 2 = 70 %Level 3 = 60 %Level 4 = 55
%Level 5 = 50 %Noting that Triggers escalation
and relaxation needed to be indexed on climate
forecasts; consumption patterns and storage
behaviourNoting that Trigger relaxation needs
to consider climatic forecasting and the time of
year and there must be at available water of
next level coming out of restrictionsDo you

agree?

Q2. Atthe triggers agreed upon the litres per YES
person per day consumption target per trigger
level are listed below.Level 1 =180 LLevel 2 =
170 LLevel 3 = 160 LLevel 4 = 150 LLevel 5 = 140
LLevel 5a = 120 L / Day zero messaging just
over a yearLevel 5b = 100 LLevel 5¢ = 80 LDo
you agree?

Q3. Aswe move into a new understanding of 240-230 Litres /person/day
managing our town water usage for the long
term. We need to consider what our 'new
normal' is for average per person per day water
consumption when not under water restriction
rules. The NSW State average is approx. 180L
/person/day.At the height of the drought
emergency in 2019 when we were on maximum
water saving, residents in this region did an
amazing job and managed to bring their water
consumption right down to 145L
Iperson/day.What do you consider should be
the Armidale region's 'new normal'?

Q4. Public swimming pools are a valuable social YES
outlet for many people in the community, they
also provide relief from summer temperatures
and a place to regularly exercise.Should public
swimming pools be open during level 5
restrictions?
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Q5. Heritage listed public parks like Armidale's YES
Central Park are home to very old and rare
species of trees. During the drought in 2019 the
park was under extreme stress and some trees
were struggling and could have died. Council
was able to source non-potable water to try to
keep the trees alive but there was only enough
water for about two watering sessions a week
for a limited period.Should heritage listed public
parks like Central Park be watered during level
4 and 5 water restrictions?

Q6. If Council could find a sustainable source of YES
water (Ground water or safe recycled water) to
water playing fields and parks as an alternative

to using potable water, would you be in favour

of this option?

Q7. When should irrigating of sportsfields be At level 5
stopped?

Q8. To assist Council to manage the Armidale 1. Financial incentives offered to new residential and business
region's water infrastructure and to develop construction and to developers for increased water conservation

initiatives to improve water conservation please 2. Continue investing in ongoing water conservation education

rank the projects below. from 1. being the programs

highest priority to 6. the lowest. 3. Signage be mandated on properties that can access the potable
network but also use an alternative water source like water tanks
(not connected into the potable network) or underground water.
4. The Armidale region to become a leader in water conservation
and sustainability. Water utility management decisions would be
based on best practice water conservation strategies
5. Change types of trees in park to be more water resistant —
Irrigation Modernisation

6. Invest in Smart Water Metre Readers (approx. cost $5 million)
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— Respondent No: 23 Responded At: Nov 18, 2020 11:36:48 am
{ 0\ Login: Anonymous Last Seen: Nov 18, 2020 11:36:48 am
Email: n/a IP Address: n/a
Q1. During the recent stakeholder sessions on the YES

development of a new Drought Management
Plan it was generally agreed that five restriction
levels was the best option due to consistency
with neighbouring regions and ease of
messaging for the community.Level 1 = 80
%%lLevel 2 = 70 %Level 3 = 60 %Level 4 = 55
%Level 5 = 50 %Noting that Triggers escalation
and relaxation needed to be indexed on climate
forecasts; consumption patterns and storage
behaviourNoting that Trigger relaxation needs
to consider climatic forecasting and the time of
year and there must be at available water of
next level coming out of restrictionsDo you

agree?

Q2. Atthe triggers agreed upon the litres per YES
person per day consumption target per trigger
level are listed below.Level 1 =180 LLevel 2 =
170 LLevel 3 = 160 LLevel 4 = 150 LLevel 5 = 140
LLevel 5a = 120 L / Day zero messaging just
over a yearLevel 5b = 100 LLevel 5¢ = 80 LDo
you agree?

Q3. Aswe move into a new understanding of 200-190 Litres /person/day
managing our town water usage for the long
term. We need to consider what our 'new
